
  
 

 
 
 

AGENDA – Part A 
(Open to the public) 

1. Welcome, Apologies & quorum

2. Declarations of Interest by Board Members and Officers
Members and officers to declare any interests not in the Register

3. Minutes of previous meeting (Page 3)
To approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting held on 24th April
2019 and to deal with any matters arising.

4. Voice Your View

ITEMS FOR DECISION

NB: Please note that following management restructure, the Operational 
Scheme of Delegation has been postponed to the September Board meeting, 

5. Code of Governance (Page 11)
Lucy Williams, Board Assurance Officer

6. Approval of Company Accounts (Page 35)
Brian Richardson, Director of Resources / Glenn Houchell, CBH Board 
Member

7. Business Development Plan Review (Part A) (Page 97)
Matthew Armstrong, Director of Property Services

8. Strategic Risk Register Review (Page 103)
Brian Richardson, Director of Resources

9. Setting new approach to risk management, including appetite areas and 
impact tables (Page 107)
Brian Richardson, Director of Resources

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

10. Strategic Plan Assurance Report Q4 (Page 125) 
Gareth Mitchell, Chief Executive

11. Medium Term Delivery Plan – Q4 questions (Page 133) 
Gareth Mitchell, Chief Executive

12. Regulator of Social Housing New Consumer Standards (Page 143)  
Karen Loweman, Director of Housing

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED  
ONE-HUNDRED-AND-EIGHTH BOARD MEETING 

To be held 5.30pm, Wednesday 3rd July 2019 
Room 1, Rowan House, 33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester CO3 3WG 
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13. Annual Health and Safety Report (Page 153)
Kirk Braker, Head of Operations

STANDING ITEMS 

14. Finance Assurance Report (Page 193)
Brian Richardson, Director of Resources

15. Annual Report from Finance & Audit Committee (Page 197)
Glenn Houchell, Chair of Finance & Audit Committee

16. Update from the Chair of the Resident’s Panel 
Michael Campbell, Chair of Resident Panel and Mark Healy, Resident Insight 
& Engagement

17. Committee Minutes & Chair Reports (Page 203)
Finance & Audit Committee 4th June 2019 
Business Opportunities Panel 18th June 2019 

18. Forward Look (Page 212)
An update of future decisions required and items to be discussed at future 
Board meetings.

19. Any Other Business

• Board Members’ activities.

20. Exclusion of the Public

21. Confidential Board Meeting

Items to be considered in confidential session:

• Chief Executive’s Report
• Confidential Finance Assurance Report

Forthcoming meetings: 

Meeting Dates for 2019 
Monday 9th September 

Thursday 24th October (AGM) 
Monday 9th December 
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Minutes of the Hundred-and-Seventh Board Meeting of Colchester Borough 
Homes 
 
Wednesday 24 April 2019 
Room 1, CBH offices at Rowan House 
Colchester, CO3 3WG 
 
Present:  In Attendance:  
Anne Grahamslaw (Chair) Karen Loweman Director - Housing 
Cllr Nigel Chapman (Vice Chair)  Brian Richardson Director - Resources 
Gareth Mitchell  Angelique Ryan Head of HR & Governance 
Michael Campbell  Gerardine Murphy Service Development Manager 
Geoff Foster  Tracey Brushett Housing Options Manager  
Glenn Houchell    
Cllr Cyril Liddy    
Julie Parker  Lucy Williams Board Assurance Officer 
Cllr Philip Coleman   (Minutes) 
  Observing:  

 
 

Dan Gascoyne 
 Assistant Director, Policy and 
Corporate (Colchester Borough 
Council) 

  Richard Bruce (Member of Public) 
  Gordon Rix (Member of Public) 
    

 
1. Apologies and quorum 
  
1.1 Apologies were recorded from Matt Armstrong, Head of Asset Management. The 

meeting was confirmed as being quorate. 
  
2. Declarations of Interest by Board Members and Officers 
  
2.1 None.  
  
3. Minutes of previous meeting 
  
3.1 The minutes were approved for the Chair to sign with no matters arising. 
  
4. Voice Your View 
  
4.1 None raised.  
  
5. Board Member Recruitment Policy 
  
5.1 Lucy Williams detailed the minor adjustments made to the policy and invited 

comments from the Board.  
  
5.2 Amendments requested by Board Members: 

• Section 1 – promotion of post should be detailed in a more general way so that it is 
shared ‘widely’, rather than ‘widely within the Borough’ Approved 

• Section 2.4 – remove reference to resident election process from the document. 
The Board felt that the interview process was a more appropriate recruitment 
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process. Brian confirmed that the resident election procedure could be removed as 
this was not directly stated within the Memorandum and Articles of Association.. 
Approved  

• Section 3 – Reimbursement of transport costs should be ‘reasonable’ transport. 
Approved 

• Recruitment Procedure Section 1 – amend the CBC rep to ‘Council representative’. 
Approved 

• Recruitment Procedure Section 2 – New Board member induction meetings should 
ideally be condensed into one day.  
Approved 

5.3 Decision: The Board Member Recruitment Policy should be amended as outlined 
above and circulated for electronic approval. 
 

6. Invite Chair Appointment Panel to carry out processes to appoint new Chair 
and agree recruitment process 

  
6.1 Anne Grahamslaw outlined the recruitment process for the positions of Chair and 

Independent Board Member. It was noted that either the CBC Housing Portfolio 
Holder or Chief Executive would be invited onto the panel.  

  
6.2 The Board agreed: 

• The recruitment process for the Chair and Independent board members as 
outlined within the report 

• that the panel would consist of: 

Chair Cllr Nigel Chapman 
Independent Member Julie Parker (Anne Grahamslaw to stand in if needed) 
CBC representative TBC 

 Approved 
  
6.3 The recruitment of the independent board member was discussed and at present 

the panel consists of Chair (independent), Vice Chair (CBC) and Chief Executive. 
There was a suggestion for including a resident board member in the panel. The 
Board agreed that a Resident could sit on the panel for interviewing the 
independent member and that the Chief Executive could also be present. 
Approved 

  
6.4 It was agreed that Geoff Foster would act as resident board member of the 

independent selection panel. Approved 
  
6.5 Regarding the psychometric test it was discussed that this test is a useful indicator 

and can be used to tailor interview questions. It was agreed that the resident board 
member could sit the test to better understand it. Action: HR to invite Geoff Foster 
to complete the psychometric test.  

  
6.6 
 
 
 
 
6.7 

Further to the discussions held during Item 5, the timetable for the recruitment of 
Independent Board Member should be tweaked to reduce the number of meetings 
that candidates would need to attend. Action: HR to update the Recruitment 
Timetable for the role of Independent Board Member 
 
Decision: The Board approved the Chair recruitment process and the Chair 
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recruitment panel.  
  
7. Information and Confidentiality Policy 
  
7.1 Lucy Williams introduced the Information and Confidentiality Policy and referred to 

the amendments outlined in the report.  
  
7.2 Amendment suggestions from the Board included: 

• Section 2.7 – second from last bullet, amend to say Data Protection Officer 
(DPO) to inform Chair of the Board ‘and Finance and Audit Committee’. 
Approved 

• Section 2.7 – 13th bullet, it was felt that stating all contracts would be 
examined for disclosures of personal data was too broad. While the 
compliance had been followed to ensure information and contracts were 
properly managed it was agreed that Lucy would check with the DPO 
whether the statement was appropriate. Action: Lucy to check above bullet 
to discuss stating that each contract would be examined for compliance with 
legislation.  

• Section 3.6 and 3.7– it was highlighted that the DPO has provided an annual 
review of GDPR and that this was shared with the Board as part of the Chief 
Executive’s report. It was requested that the Board should receive an annual 
report from the DPO on compliance against GDPR, breaches and near 
misses. Approved 

• Section 4 – align bullet points. 
• A suggestion was made for including the Document Retention Procedure on 

the CBH website. The BAO was not sure and agreed to find out whether this 
was appropriate. Action: Lucy Williams to investigate whether the 
Document Retention Policy should be uploaded on to the public facing area 
of the CBH website.  

  
7.6 Decision: The board approved the policy subject to the amendments once 

checked.   
  
8. Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy & Procedure 
  
8.1 Brian Richardson referred to his report and advised the Board that the changes 

had primarily been around DBS checks. Brian shared that this had also been 
reviewed at the Finance and Audit Committee and following discussions can 
confirm that it is not possible to carry out enhanced DBS checks on any staff roles.   

  
8.2 Section 4.3 – Brian highlighted that the Directors Management Team are reviewing 

whether to conduct basic checks on staff in certain job roles and the consideration 
that needs to be given to that. It was noted that this does not need to be written in 
to the policy.  

  
8.3 Section 2 – 5th bullet from end, the Board felt that IT equipment was authorised to 

be used for personal use during breaks and the wording should reflect that. Amend 
sentence to begin with ‘Unauthorised use of Company’s vehicles, IT equipment…’. 
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Approved 
 

8.2 Decision The Board approved the Policy & Procedure.  
  
9. Whistle Blowing Policy 
  
9.1 Brian Richardson introduced his report and shared that few changes had been 

made. No queries or comments were put forward. 
  
9.3 Decision: The Board approved this policy.  

 
  
10. People Plan Review 
  
10.1 Angelique Ryan referred to the achievements against the People Plan over the last 

12 months. Overall the report was very positive and Angelique shared some of the 
key successes with the Board. It was noted that positive results had been obtained 
from the Staff Survey, although the return rate had decreased. A handout was 
given to Board members breaking down the Staff Survey results by team and 
directorate. 

  
10.2 The Board heard of the success of achieving IIP Gold and noted that the next goal 

was to achieve IIP Platinum in 2021.  
  
10.3 In answer to questions the Board were advised about the Essex Faith Covenant 

which involved a wide range of agencies within the Public and Volunteering sector. 
Andrew Harley (Equality, Diversity and Safeguarding Officer) attends these 
meetings on behalf of CBH. Angelique agreed to share the Essex Safe Covenant 
Terms of Reference (ToR) with Geoff Foster. Action: Angelique to share Essex 
Faith Covenant ToR with Geoff.  

  
10.4 The Board discussed the staff and Board appraisals. It was felt that the Board 

appraisal process was adequate.  
  
  
10.5 Recruitment process was discussed by the Board. Angelique shared with the 

Board the work that has taken place to broaden the scope of recruitment.  
  
10.6 Regarding the Total Reward Statements, the Board heard that the staff have been 

advised of the wider benefit package that they receive, which should result in 
improved staff satisfaction in this area.  

  
10.7 It was noted that the HR team have joined Colchester travel plan in order to 

encourage staff to use 'greener' modes of transport to and from work.   
  
10.8 The Board highlighted the value of using these positives to promote CBH in 

recruitment materials.   
  
10.9 Decision: The Board approved the 2019/20 People Plan targets and action plan.  
  
11. Strategic Risk Register Review 
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11.1 Brian introduced the Strategic Risk Register Review and advised Members that 
there had been no new risks or risks removed since the last report. No changes 
were requested. 

  
11.3 Decision: The Board approved the Strategic Risk Register.  
  
12. Housing Revenue Account Future Projects 
  
12.1 Karen Loweman presented the item and the Board were taken through a range of 

projects that were being worked on by CBH teams to meet housing need. This 
includes sourcing garage sites for building homes as well as design work, the Right 
to buy Buy Back (RTBB) as well as ‘Air Space’ to create an extra storey on top of a 
block of flats.  

  
12.2 In response to questions Karen confirmed that once homes are acquired or built 

then CBH will manage them through the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 
Regarding the conversion of buildings into homes, properties under consideration 
include former shops (previously homes) and large properties that can be 
extended. Large office blocks are not being considered.  

  
12.3 Further queries were raised regarding HRA borrowing and impacts but it was noted 

this these items were not appropriate for the CBH Board [Dan Gascoyne provided 
information about the 30-year model post-meeting available at 
https://colchester.cmis.uk.com/colchester/MeetingCalendar/tabid/70/ctl/ViewMeetin
gPublic/mid/397/Meeting/624/Committee/8/Default.aspx]  

  
13. Homelessness Reduction Act (HRAct) One year on Report 
  
13.1 Karen reminded the Board that it was now one year since this Act was introduced 

and of the initial concern that had been expressed at the time.  
  
13.2 Tracey Brushett highlighted some of the key activities.  
  
13.3 In answer to a question Tracey advised the Board that there was no evidence that 

people of no fixed abode could not access support by digital means. Access is 
available at the library and with one to one support available, and access is also 
available through mobile phones, friends and through a support worker.  

  
13.4 The Board heard that the team size is usually 26 people which includes a range of 

contract types. 
  
13.5 The Board congratulated Tracey on the successes that had been achieved and the 

work of the team.    
  
14. Housing Management System / Project Aurora 
  
14.1 Gerardine Murphy highlighted the projects and systems that were being worked on 

to replace the housing management systems. The work is being progressed in 
partnership with CBC and is planned to transform working methods. So far 
engagement and feedback has been successful.  

  
14.2 The Board heard that the work was on track but of the importance of getting the 
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application to tender in May.  
  
14.3 It was noted that CBH is somewhat bound by the restrictions imposed by CBC. The 

Board queried the mitigation measures being used to ensure deadlines are made 
and that the company will not be left without a system, and also the expected 
lifetime of the system. Gerardine addressed the concerns raised and also 
explained that the contract for the new system should be in place for 7 – 10 years 
with option to extend.  

  
15. Finance Assurance Report 
  
15.1 Brian informed the Board that the data in the pack was based on data from 

February. The Board were informed that they were now closing the financial year 
end accounts. No comments or queries were raised.   

  
16. Verbal update from Chair of Resident’s Panel 
  
16.1 Michael Campbell updated the Board that the next Resident’s Panel would be on 

the 16th May and would be held in two parts on the topic of homelessness.  
  
  
17. Committee Minutes & Chair Reports 
  
17.1 Glenn Houchell highlighted the activities of the Finance and Audit Committee. No 

questions or comments were raised.  
  
18. Forward Look 
  
18.1 Lucy Williams referred to the Forward Look. A request was approved to move the 

Finance and Audit annual report to the July Board meeting. Action: Lucy to update 
the Forward Look so that the F+A Annual Report is presented at the July meeting.  

  
19. Any Other Business 
  
19.1 None raised.  
  
20. Any other business 
  
 Board Member Activities 
20.1 Anne Grahamslaw shared with the Members of her attendance at the recent at the 

National Federation of ALMO’s conference. Anne emphasised the learning that 
was shared during the event.     
 
 

  
 With no further business, the open meeting concluded at 19:24.  
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Item Action Who By When Done 

6.5 HR to invite Geoff Foster to complete 
the psychometric test. 

HR 
 

12 June 
2019 Yes 

6.6 
HR to update the Recruitment 
Timetable for the role of Independent 
Board Member 

HR 12 June 
2019 Yes 

7.2 

Section 2.7 – 13th bullet, it was felt that 
stating all contracts would be 
examined for disclosures of personal 
data was too broad. While the 
compliance had been followed to 
ensure information and contracts were 
properly managed it was agreed that 
Lucy would check with the DPO 
whether the statement was 
appropriate. 
Lucy to check above bullet to discuss 
stating that each contract would be 
examined for compliance with 
legislation. 
 

BAO 12 June 
2019 Yes 

10.3 

 
Angelique to share Essex Faith 
Covenant ToR with Geoff Foster. 
 

Angelique 
Ryan 3 May 2019 Yes 

18.1 

 
Lucy to update the Forward Look so 
that the F+A Annual Report is 
presented at the July meeting. 
 

BAO 3 May 2019 Yes 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 
 
 
 
DATE:  3 July 2019 
 
TIME:   5:30pm 
 
VENUE:  Room 1, Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 5.  
 
SUBJECT: Code of Governance 
 
REPORT BY: Lucy Williams, Board Assurance Officer 
    (01206) 282719  
     Lucy.Williams@cbhomes.org.uk 
 
 
 
 
FOR APPROVAL 
 
1. Decision Required 
  
1.1 Board is asked to approve the amendments Code of Governance - Appendix 

1. 
  
2. Purpose of Report  
  
2.1 To review the Code of Governance and present it to Board for approval. This 

new Code has been reviewed by the Directors Management Team (DMT) 
who recommend it to Board for their approval. 

  
3. Background & Content 
  
3.1 In 2017 there was a full review of this document in line with the latest 

principles of good governance from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA), meaning that much of this document was 
rewritten. The sub-principles were greatly expanded and cover far more detail 
than the previous version which dated 2007. 

  
3.2 This document is reviewed annually and so at this time it is not proposed to 

alter it substantially. However, some changes have been made to reflect the 
changes in our corporate documents.  

  
3.3 Minor amendments to this document have been recommended. These include 

some of the words used, and the change of the word ‘citizen’ to ‘resident’ to 
keep in line with CBH language.  

  
3.4 Please note that documents on the Code of Governance can be kept 

confidential, should they contain content that is commercially sensitive. 
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Current documents kept confidential include the Trading Strategy and 
Protocol, and the Management Agreement. Board Members are asked to 
consider whether there are other documents listed within the Code which 
should be kept confidential. Board will then vote on whether to keep any 
further documents confidential. 

  
4. Risk Management 
  
4.1 The production of, and adherence to, a comprehensive Code of Governance 

is an important way to mitigate a wide range of risks for the Company. It also 
ensures that risks are effectively identified and monitored. 

  
5. HR and Health & Safety Implications 
  
5.1 The Code of Governance has no direct HR implications relating to staffing 

levels. However, the importance of Board oversight on issues such as staff 
development and Health & Safety management is significant. The Code of 
Governance ensures that policies and strategies are in place to show 
members of staff what is expected of them and details how the Company will 
support them, help them develop and safeguard them at work. 

  
6. Legal Implications 
  
6.1 Adherence to a strong and clear Code of Governance can help ensure that 

Board Members carry out their duties and take heed of their liabilities as 
directors. The documents which are included on the Code are vital to ensure 
that Board Members and members of staff adhere to ethical values, statutory 
requirements and the rule of law.  

  
7. Financial Implications 
  
7.1 No specific implications, but a strong Code of Governance assists officers and 

Board Members in avoiding unnecessary financial losses. 
  
8. Value for Money 
  
8.1 None. 
  
9. Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
9.1 The Code emphasises the commitment by Colchester Borough Homes to 

ensuring fair access to our services and an awareness of the importance of 
equality & diversity considerations in decision making and service provision. 

  
10. 
 
10.1 

Residents at the Heart 
 
The Code of Governance shows our commitment, as a Company, to good 
governance and shows our service users and the general public what they 
can expect from us as an organization. The Code and the documents 
contained within it show how we are committed to providing the best possible 
services by ensuring CBH is an effectively- and ethically-run company. 
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11. 
 
11.1 
 
12. 
 
12.1 

Decision Required? 
 
YES: Approval required 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Draft 2019 Code of Governance 
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Glossary 

Business 
Opportunities 
Panel 

A Panel which examines potential trading opportunities. The 
majority of Members of this panel are serving Board Members. 
Sometimes referred to as ‘BOP.’ 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. A 
professional institute for accountants working in the public 
sector. 

Finance & 
Audit 
Committee 

An official Board Committee which chiefly scrutinizes issues 
regarding the finances of Colchester Borough Homes, as well as 
monitoring the Company Strategic Risk Register. Possesses 
delegated powers to make certain decisions within these fields. 
Sometimes referred to as ‘F&A.’  

Appointments 
& 
Remuneration 
Committee 

An official Board Committee which chiefly scrutinises 
appointments and remuneration. Possesses delegated powers 
to make certain decisions within these fields. Sometimes 
referred to as ‘A&R.’ 

Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPIs) 

The set of quantifiable measures which the Company uses to 
gauge and compare performance in meeting strategic and 
operational goals and standards. These are also used to 
compare our performance with that of other housing providers. 

Memorandum 
and Articles of 
Association 

The Constitution of Colchester Borough Homes, detailing the 
responsibilities and powers of Board Members, the obligations 
and powers of the Company and the objects of the Company. 

Resident 
Panel 

A group comprising Board members and CBH tenants and 
leaseholders. 

Scheme of 
Delegation 

A document detailing where responsibilities and/or authority for 
authorizing certain actions lie within an organization. 

SOLACE Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior 
Managers. A representative body for senior managers working 
within local government. 
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1. Introduction & purpose 

Governance is about how organisations ensure that they are doing the right things, 
in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and 
accountable manner. 

Governance comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by 
which organisations are directed and controlled and through which they account to, 
engage with and, where appropriate, provide leadership to their communities. 

At Colchester Borough Homes we recognise that: 

• Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good 
stewardship of an organisation’s money, good public engagement and, 
ultimately, good outcomes for citizens residents and service users; 

• Good governance enables organisations to pursue their visions in an effective 
manner, as well as underpinning their visions with appropriate mechanisms 
for control and management of risk; 

• All organisations should aim to meet the highest standards, and governance 
arrangements should not only be sound but also be seen to be sound. 

We are committed to applying the core principles set out in the SOLACE/CIPFA 
Good Governance Framework (2016) of: 

• Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, 
and respecting the rule of law. 

• Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 

• Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental 
benefits. 

• Determining the interventions necessary to optimisze the achievement of the 
intended outcomes. 

• Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and 
the individuals within it. 

• Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management. 

• Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 
effective accountability. 

The key principles, policies and strategies that set out the way we will conduct its 
overall governance arrangements are outlined below. 

We are mindful of our duty to promote good governance for its tenants & 
leaseholders and the wider community of Colchester. We have a range of policies 
and governance documents in place to achieve this, alongside our Memorandum & 
Articles of Association and our Management Agreement with Colchester Borough 
Council. 
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The purpose of this Code of Governance, therefore, is to provide a simple list of 
relevant documents relating to governance, which are available free of charge on the 
Company's website: http://www.cbhomes.org.uk/governance 

All documents within the Code of Governance are reserved for the approval of the 
full Board of Colchester Borough Homes.  

For further information on our governance arrangements, please contact: 

Lucy Williams, Board Assurance Officer Colchester Borough Homes Rowan House,  
33 Sheepen Road Colchester CO3 3WG 
  (01206) 282518 
  lucy.williams@cbhomes.org.uk 
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2. Code of Governance 

Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

Principle A 

Behaving with integrity, 
demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting 
the rule of law. 

Colchester Borough 
Homes is accountable not 
only for how much we 
spend, but also for how we 
use the resources under 
our stewardship. This 
includes accountability for 
outputs, both positive and 
negative, and for the 
outcomes we have 
achieved. In addition, we 
have an overarching 
responsibility to serve the 
public interest in adhering 
to the requirements of 
legislation and government 
policies.  

It is essential that, as a 
whole, the Company can 

• Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and lead 
a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly and 
consistently demonstrated, thereby protecting the reputation of 
the organiszation. 

• Ensuring members take the lead in establishing specific 
standard operating principles or values for the organisation 
and its staff and that they are communicated and understood. 
These should build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (the 
Nolan Principles)  

• Leading by example and using the above standard operating 
principles or values as a framework for decision making and 
other actions. 

• Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard 
operating principles or values as a framework for decision 
making and other actions. 

• Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the Company’s 
ethical standards and performance. 

• Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and 
ensuring they permeate all aspects of the Company’s culture 
and operation. 

• Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures 
which place emphasis on agreed ethical values. 

• Ensuring that external providers of services on behalf of the 

• Code of Governance 

• Board Member Code 
of Conduct 

• Board Member 
Expenses Scheme 

• Board Member 
Register of Interests 

• Staff Code of Conduct 

• Hospitality & Gifts 
Policy 

• Equality 
StrategyObjectives 

• Business 
Opportunities Panel 
terms of reference 

• Finance & Audit 
Committee terms of 
reference 

• Appointments & 
Remuneration 
Committee terms of 
reference 
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Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

demonstrate the 
appropriateness of all our 
actions across all activities 
and have mechanisms in 
place to encourage and 
enforce adherence to 
ethical values and to 
respect the rule of law. 

organisation are required to act with integrity and in 
compliance with ethical standards expected by the 
organisation  

• Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong 
commitment to the rule of law as well as adhering to relevant 
laws and regulations. 

• Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, 
other key post holders, and members, are able to fulfil their 
responsibilities in accordance with legislative and regulatory 
requirements. 

• Striving to optimisze the use of the full powers available for the 
benefit of citizensresidents, communities and other 
stakeholders. 

•  Resident Panel terms 
of reference 

• Value for money, 
Technology & 
Investment Plan 

• Anti-fraud & 
Corruption Policy 

• Standing Financial 
Instructions 

• Contract Procedure 
Rules 

Principle B 
Ensuring openness and 
comprehensive 
stakeholder 
engagement. 

Colchester Borough 
Homes is run for the public 
good and therefore should 
ensure openness in our 
activities. Clear, trusted 
channels of communication 
and consultation should be 
used to engage effectively 
with all stakeholders, such 

• Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting 
and communicating the Company’s commitment to openness. 

• Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource 
use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption is for 
openness. If that is not the case, a justification for the 
reasoning for keeping a decision confidential should be 
provided.  

• Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both 
public records and explanations to stakeholders and being 
explicit about the criteria, rationale and considerations used. In 
due course, ensuring that the impact and consequences of 
those decisions are clear.  

• Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to 

• Annual report 
• Anti-fraud & 

Corruption Policy  
• Risk Management 

Policy & Strategy 
• Whistleblowing Policy 
• Safeguarding Policy 
• Information & 

Confidentiality Policy 
• Customer Plan 
• Resident insight & 
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Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

as individual 
citizensresidents/service 
users, and institutional 
stakeholders such as 
Colchester Borough 
Council.  

 

determine the most appropriate and effective interventions/ 
courses of action.  
NB institutional stakeholders are the other organisations that 
local government needs to work with to improve services and 
outcomes (such as commercial partners and suppliers as 
well as other public or third sector organisations) or 
organisations to which they are accountable.  

• Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders to ensure 
that the purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each 
stakeholder relationship are clear so that outcomes are 
achieved successfully and sustainably.  

• Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for 
resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes achieved 
more effectively.  

• Ensuring that partnerships are based on:  
I. trust and shared values 

II. a shared commitment to change 
III. a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among 

partners 

• and that the added value of partnership working is explicit  

• Establishing clear policy on the type of issues that the 
Company will meaningfully consult with or involve 
communities, individual citizensresidents, service users and 
other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is 
contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes  

engagement strategy 
• Complaints policy 
• Resident Panel Terms 

of Reference 
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Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

• Ensuring that communication methods are effective and that 
members and officers are clear about their roles with regard to 
community engagement.  

• Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and 
experiences of communities, citizensresidents, service users 
and organiszations of different backgrounds including 
reference to future needs.  

• Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to 
demonstrate how views have been taken into account.  

• Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups with 
other stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity.  

• Taking account of the impact of decisions on future 
generations of tax payers and service users. 

Principle C 
Defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable 
economic, social, and 
environmental 
benefits.  
The long-term nature 
and impact of many of 
the Company’s 
responsibilities mean 
that it should define and 
plan outcomes and that 
these should be 

• Having a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of 
the Company’s purpose and intended outcomes containing 
appropriate performance indicators, which provide the basis for 
the Company’s overall strategy, planning and other decisions.  

• Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, 
stakeholders including citizens residents and service users. It 
could be immediately or over the course of a year or longer.  

• Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the 
resources that will be available.  

• Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of 
outcomes. 

• Managing service users’ expectations effectively with regard to 

• CBH Vision, Mission 
and Values 

• CBH Strategic Plan 
• Community Plan 
• Management 

Agreement 
(Confidential) 

• Memorandum & 
Articles of Association 

• Medium Term Delivery 
Plan 

• Equality 
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sustainable. Decisions 
should further the 
Company’s purpose, 
contribute to intended 
benefits and outcomes, 
and remain within the 
limits of authority and 
resources. Input from all 
groups of stakeholders, 
including 
citizensresidents, 
service users, and 
institutional 
stakeholders, is vital to 
the success of this 
process and in 
balancing competing 
demands when 
determining priorities for 
the finite resources 
available.  
 

determining priorities and making the best use of the resources 
available.  

• Considering and balancing the combined economic, social and 
environmental impact of policies and plans when taking 
decisions about service provision.  

• Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, 
taking account of risk and acting transparently where there are 
potential conflicts between the Company’s intended outcomes 
and short-term factors such as the political cycle or financial 
constraints.  

• Determining the wider public interest associated with balancing 
conflicting interests between achieving the various economic, 
social and environmental benefits, through consultation where 
possible, in order to ensure appropriate trade-offs.  

• Ensuring fair access to services. 

StrategyObjectives 
• Asset management 

strategy 

Principle D 
Determining the 
interventions 
necessary to 
optimizse the 
achievement of the 
intended outcomes.  

• Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous 
analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended 
outcomes would be achieved and associated risks. Therefore 
ensuring best value is achieved however services are 
provided.  

• Considering feedback from citizens residents and service 
users when making decisions about service improvements or 

• Scheme of Delegation 
• Medium Term Delivery 

Plan 
• Annual Budgets 
• Leadership plan 
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The Company achieves its 
intended outcomes by 
providing a mixture of 
legal, regulatory, and 
practical interventions 
(courses of action). 
Determining the right mix 
of these courses of action 
is a critically important 
strategic choice that the 
Company has to make to 
ensure intended outcomes 
are achieved. Robust 
decision-making 
mechanisms are needed to 
ensure that defined 
outcomes can be achieved 
in a way that provides the 
best trade-off between the 
various types of resource 
inputs while still enabling 
effective & efficient 
operations. 
Decisions made need to be 
reviewed frequently to 
ensure that achievement of 
outcomes is optimised.  
 

where services are no longer required in order to prioritize 
competing demands within limited resources available 
including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind 
future impacts.  

• Establishing and implementing robust planning and control 
cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, priorities and 
targets.  

• Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in 
determining how services and other courses of action should 
be planned and delivered.  

• Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when 
working collaboratively, including shared risks.  

• Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 
mechanisms for delivering goods and services can be adapted 
to changing circumstances.  

• Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as 
part of the planning process in order to identify how the 
performance of services and projects is to be measured.  

• Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required 
to review service quality regularly.  

• Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies 
and the medium term financial plan.  

• Informing medium and long term resource planning by drawing 
up realistic estimates of revenue and capital expenditure 
aimed at developing a sustainable funding strategy 

• Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and 

• Customer plan 
• Value for Money, 

Technology & 
Investment plan 

• Business 
Development Plan 

• Trading protocol 
(Confidential) 
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balances service priorities, affordability and other resource 
constraints.  

• Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into 
account the full cost of operations over the medium and longer 
term.  

• Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context 
for ongoing decisions on significant delivery issues or 
responses to changes in the external environment that may 
arise during the budgetary period in order for outcomes to be 
achieved while optimizing resource usage.  

• Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service 
planning and commissioning. 

Principle E 
Developing the 
Company’s capacity, 
including the capability 
of its leadership and 
the individuals within 
it.  

Appropriate structures and 
leadership is required, as 
well as people with the 
right skills, appropriate 
qualifications and mindset, 
to operate efficiently and 
effectively and achieve 

• Making sure Board Members and staff have the skills, 
knowledge, experience and resources they need to perform 
well in their roles. 

• Developing the capability of people and evaluating their 
performance, both as individuals and as a group. 

• Encouraging new talent for membership of the Company so 
that best use can be made of individuals’ skills and resources 
for balancing continuity and renewal. 

• Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets on a 
regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness.  

• Improving resource use through appropriate application of 
techniques such as benchmarking and other options in order to 
determine how resources are allocated so that defined 

• Board Member 
Recruitment Policy 

• Board Member Code 
of Conduct 

• People Plan 
• Leadership Plan 
• Asset Management 

Strategy 
• Management 

Agreement 
(confidential) 

• Scheme of Delegation 
• Strategic Health & 
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intended outcomes within 
the specified periods.  

A public sector 
organisation must ensure 
that it has both the 
capacity to fulfil its own 
mandate and to make 
certain that there are 
policies in place to 
guarantee that its 
management has the 
operational capacity for the 
organisation as a whole. 
Because both individuals 
and the environment in 
which Colchester Borough 
Homes operates will 
change over time, there 
will be a continuous need 
to develop our capacity as 
well as the skills and 
experience of individual 
staff members.  

Leadership in the 
Company is strengthened 
by the participation of 
people with many different 
types of backgrounds, 

outcomes are achieved effectively and efficiently.  

• Recognizing the benefits of partnerships and collaborative 
working where added value can be achieved.  

• Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to 
enhance the strategic allocation of resources.  

• Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed 
leaders negotiate with each other regarding their respective 
roles early on in the relationship and that a shared 
understanding of roles and objectives is maintained.  

• Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions 
that are delegated and those reserved for the collective 
decision making of the governing body.  

• Ensuring the Board and the Chief Executive have clearly 
defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure 
whereby the chief executive leads in implementing strategy 
and managing the delivery of services and other outputs set by 
members and each provides a check and a balance for each 
other’s authority.  

• Developing the capabilities of members and senior 
management to achieve effective leadership and to enable the 
Company to respond successfully to changing legal and policy 
demands as well as economic, political and environmental 
changes and risks by:  

• Ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate 
induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training and 
development matching individual and organizational 

Safety Policy 
• Health & Safety Policy 

Statement 
• Fire Safety Policy 
• Wellbeing Policy 
• Resident Panel Terms 

of Reference 
• Repairs Policy 
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reflecting the structure and 
diversity of communities. 

requirements is available and encouraged.  

• Ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills, 
knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their roles and 
responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their 
knowledge on a continuing basis  

• Ensuring personal, organiszational and system-wide 
development through shared learning, including lessons learnt 
from governance weaknesses both internal and external.  

• Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public 
participation.  

• Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness 
and ensuring leaders are open to constructive feedback from 
peer review and inspections.  

• Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews 
which take account of training or development needs.  

• Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and 
wellbeing of the workforce and support individuals in 
maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing. 

Principle F 
Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal control 
and strong public 
financial management.  
Colchester Borough 

• Recognizing that risk management is an integral part of all 
activities and must be considered in all aspects of decision 
making.  

• Implementing robust and integrated risk management 
arrangements and ensuring that they are working effectively.  

• Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are 
clearly allocated.  

• Risk Management 
Policy & Strategy 

• Scheme of Delegation 
• Business 

Opportunities Panel 
Terms of Reference 

• Finance & Audit 
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Principle Sub-principles CBH documents 

Homes must ensure that 
its governance structure 
that it has implemented, 
can sustain an effective 
performance 
management system that 
facilitates effective and 
efficient delivery of 
planned services.  
Risk management and 
internal control are 
important and integral 
parts of a performance 
management system and 
are crucial to the 
achievement of 
outcomes. Risk should be 
considered and 
addressed as part of all 
decision-making 
activities.  
A strong system of 
financial management is 
essential for the 
implementation of policies 
and the achievement of 
intended outcomes, as it 
will enforce financial 
discipline, strategic 
allocation of resources, 

• Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, 
specification, execution and independent post implementation 
review.  

• Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and 
advice pointing out the implications and risks inherent in the 
Company’s financial, social and environmental position and 
outlook.  

• Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place 
which provides constructive challenge and debate on policies and 
objectives before, during and after decisions are made thereby 
enhancing the Company performance and that of any 
organization for which it is responsible.  

• Encouraging effective and constructive challenge and debate on 
policies and objectives to support balanced and effective decision 
making.  

• Providing members and senior management with regular reports 
on service delivery plans and on progress towards outcome 
achievement.  

• Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such 
as budgets) and post implementation reporting (e.g. financial 
statements).  

• Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal 
control with achieving objectives.  

• Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal control 
on a regular basis.  

• Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements 

Committee Terms of 
Reference 

• Appointments & 
Remuneration 
Committee Terms of 
Reference 

• Resident Panel Terms 
of Reference 

• Board Member Code 
of Conduct 

• Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy 

• Internal Audit Charter 
• External Audit Terms 

of Reference 
• Information & 

Confidentiality Policy 
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efficient service delivery 
and accountability. 
It is also essential that a 
culture and structure for 
scrutiny are in place as a 
key part of accountable 
decision making, policy 
making and review. A 
positive working culture 
that accepts, promotes 
and encourages 
constructive challenge is 
critical to successful 
scrutiny and successful 
service delivery. 
Importantly, this culture 
does not happen 
automatically, it requires 
repeated public 
commitment from those in 
authority.  
 

are in place.  
• Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk management 
and control is provided by the internal auditor.  

• Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group/ function, which 
is independent of the executive and accountable to the governing 
body:  

I. Provides a further source of effective assurance regarding 
arrangements for managing risk and maintaining an 
effective control environment  

II. That its recommendations are listened to and acted upon  
• Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe 

collection, storage, processing and sharing of data, including 
processes to safeguard personal data.  

• Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating 
effectively when sharing data with other bodies.  

• Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data 
used in decision making and performance monitoring.  

• Ensuring financial management supports both long-term 
achievement of outcomes and short-term financial and 
operational performance. 

• Ensuring well-developed financial management is integrated at all 
levels of planning and control, including management of financial 
risks and controls. 

Principle G • Writing and communicating reports for the public and other • Board meeting reports 
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Implementing good 
practices in 
transparency, reporting, 
and audit to deliver 
effective accountability.  
Accountability is about 
ensuring that those making 
decisions and delivering 
services are answerable 
for them. Effective 
accountability is concerned 
not only with reporting on 
actions completed, but also 
ensuring that stakeholders 
are able to understand and 
respond as Colchester 
Borough Homes plans and 
carries out its activities in a 
transparent manner. Both 
external and internal audit 
contribute to effective 
accountability.  

stakeholders in a fair, balanced and understandable style 
appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring that they 
are easy to access and interrogate.  

• Striking a balance between providing the right amount of
information to satisfy transparency demands and enhance
public scrutiny while not being too onerous to provide and for
users to understand.

• Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money
and stewardship of resources to stakeholders in a timely and
understandable way.

• Ensuring members and senior management own the results
reported.

• Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to
which the principles contained in this Framework have been
applied and publishing the results on this assessment,
including an action plan for improvement and evidence to
demonstrate good governance (the annual governance
statement).

• Ensuring that this Framework is applied to jointly managed or
shared service organizations as appropriate.

• Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the
financial statements is prepared on a consistent and timely
basis and the statements allow for comparison with other,
similar organiszations.

• Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by
external audit are acted upon.

published on website 
• Annual Report
• Customer Plan
• AGM
• Annual Governance

Statement (within
Financial Statements)

• Annual Financial
Statements

• Finance & Audit
Committee terms of
reference

• Internal Audit Charter
• External Audit Terms

of Reference.
• Leadership Plan
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• Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access 
to members is in place, providing assurance with regard to 
governance arrangements and that recommendations are 
acted upon.  

• Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from 
regulatory bodies and implementing recommendations.  

• Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services 
through third parties and that this is evidenced in the annual 
governance statement.  

• Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for 
accountability are clear and the need for wider public 
accountability has been recognized & met.  
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3. References

Best practice and guidance from CIPFA. The document was produced and compiled 
in line with the SOLACE/CIPFA ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
Framework (2016). 

4. Related documents

All documents listed within the Code of Governance. 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 
 
 
DATE:   03 July 2019 
 
TIME:   5.30 pm 
 
VENUE:  Room 1, Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 6. 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Company Accounts 
 
REPORT BY: Brian Richardson 

Interim Director of Resources 
    07957 371581   
     brian.richardson@cbhomes.org.uk 
 
 
FOR DECISION   
 
1. Decision Required 
 Following its meeting on 4 June 2019 the Finance and Audit Committee 

recommends that the Board: 
  
1.1 Approves the Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 

2019; 
  
1.2 Authorises the Chair to sign the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and 

Statement of Financial Position on behalf of the Directors; 
  
1.3 Authorises the Chair, Chair of Finance and Audit Committee and CEO to sign 

the Annual Governance Statement on behalf of the Board; 
  
1.4 Authorises the Chair and CEO to sign the Letter of Representation from the 

Company to its Auditor Scrutton Bland. 
  
  
2. Purpose of Report  
  
2.1 
 
 

The purpose of this report is to present to the Board the audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 for the Board’s consideration 
and approval.  

  
3. Background & Content 
  
3.1 
 
 
 

As a private company limited by guarantee. Under the Companies Act 2006 
CBH is required to prepare annual accounts that must be audited and filed at 
Companies House. The attached Financial Statements have been audited by 
Scrutton Bland and, if approved by the Board and filed, will meet this 
requirement. 
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3.2 These Financial Statements have been examined by the Finance and Audit 
Committee at their meeting on 4 June 2019 which was attended by Mr Luke 
Morris the audit partner from Scrutton Bland. Mr Morris presented Scrutton 
Bland’s audit report and the Financial Statements to the Committee.  

  
3.3 Scrutton Bland’s audit report is attached as Appendix 1. This report fulfils the 

requirements of International Standards on Auditing 260 which obliges an 
auditor to communicate the outcome of the audit to those charged with 
governance.   

  
3.4 Mr Morris confirmed that the audit is complete and unless there are significant 

post balance sheet date events, Scrutton Bland will be issuing an unqualified 
opinion. The audit did not find any matters to bring to the Directors’ attention.      

  
4. The Financial Statements 
  
4.1 The Financial Statements are attached as Appendix 2. This is the first year 

that the accounts have been prepared under International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) rather than FRS 102. This change was made at the request 
of CBC (who have already converted to IFRS) to make it easier for them to 
consolidate CBH’s accounts into theirs. 
 
In section 2.12 of Appendix 1 Scrutton Bland explains the impact that this 
change has had on the presentation of the balance sheet. 
 

4.2 Pension Adjustment 
As in previous years, these Financial Statements include an adjustment for 
pension scheme liabilities (formerly known as FRS17 now IAS19). The impact 
of this adjustment is to increase the deficit from £224,000 to £1,833,000. 
 
In summary the pension adjustment is: 
 

 £000 
Deficit per management accounts (233,996) 
Additional pension charge per IAS19 (1,399,000) 
Interest adjustment per IAS19 (210,000) 
Deficit per Financial Statements (1,832,996) 

 

  
4.3 Directors’ Responsibilities 

As part of approving the Financial Statements the Chair is required to sign the 
statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on behalf of the Board. This is set out 
on pages 4 to 5 of the Financial Statements shown in Appendix 2.  
 
Additionally, the Chair and CEO are required to sign the Letter of 
Representation on behalf of the Board which is shown in Appendix 1 on page 
9.  
 
The following arrangements have been put in place to give the Board 
confidence that they can give these two assurances: 
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• Accounting policies are disclosed in the Financial Statements and their 
appropriateness has been reviewed by Scrutton Bland as part of their 
audit; 

• The accounts have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union; 

• The accounts have been closed on an accruals basis and working 
papers to support this have been made available to Scrutton Bland; 

• Regular management accounts have been supplied to the Finance and 
Audit Committee with an outturn forecast inline with the actual result 
before IAS19 shown in the Financial Statements; 

• The Interim Director of Resources and Finance Department met with 
Scrutton Bland at the start of the audit to provide all audit information 
that Scrutton Bland had specified and have cooperated fully throughout 
the audit to supply any additional information or explanations that 
Scrutton Bland have required.    

  
5. Risk Management 
  
5.1 If the Financial Statements are not approved by the Board and filed at 

Companies House by 31 December 2019, the Company and Directors may 
be liable for a penalty. 

  
6. HR Implications 
  
6.1 There are no direct HR implications arising from this report 
  
7. Legal Implications 
  
7.1 The legal implications are set out in the risks paragraph. 

 
8. Financial Implications 
  
8.1 There are no direct financial implications from this report.   
  
9. Value for Money 
  
9.1 There are no direct value for money implications from this report.   
  
10. Health & Safety Implications 
  
10.1 None.  
  
11. Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
11.1 None.   
  
12. 
 
12.1 
 
 
 

Residents at the Heart 
 
None.       
 
Decision Required? 
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13. 
 
13.1 
 
13.2 
 

Yes 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix 1 Report on the Audit by Scrutton Bland 
 
Appendix 2 Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019 

  
  

 

38



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 
 
 

REPORT TO THE BOARD 
 

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 
 

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

39



 
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 
 
REPORT TO THE BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 

Contents 
 
 
 
1 Introduction .................................................................................................................. 2 

 
2 The Financial Statements .............................................................................................. 2 

 
3 Main Areas of Audit Risk ................................................................................................ 5 

 
4 Controls ......................................................................................................................... 7 

 
5 Taxation ........................................................................................................................ 7 

 
6 Independence ................................................................................................................ 7 

 
 
 

Appendices 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 1 

Adjustments to the Financial Statements ...................................................................... 8 

 
Appendix 2 

Letter of Representation ................................................................................................ 9 

 
Appendix 3 

Management Letter...................................................................................................... 13 

 
  

40



COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES 

REPORT TO THE BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2 

1 Introduction 

1.1 In accordance with International Standard on Auditing 260 (“Communication with 
those charged with governance) we are setting out various matters relating to our 
audit of the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes (“the Company”) for 
the year ended 31 March 2019.  

1.2 We can confirm that we have completed our audit work, subject only to the 
finalisation of our work in respect of events since the balance sheet date and the 
receipt of a signed letter of representation. We currently anticipate being able to 
give an unqualified opinion on these financial statements in accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.  

2 The Financial Statements 

The financial statements can be summarised as follows:  

2.1 Income and expenditure account 

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£ £ 

Turnover 14,299,576 13,195,259

Staff costs (6,747,569) (6,315,894)
Other operating charges (7,786,371) (6,912,993) 

___________ ___________
(234,364) (33,628)

Interest income 10,368 7,617 
___________ ___________

Operating deficit before taxation (223,996) (26,011)

Tax on ordinary activities - -
___________ ___________

Operating deficit after taxation (223,996) (26,011)

Defined benefit pension scheme charges: 
    Staff costs adjustment (1,399,000) (1,049,000)
    Interest costs (210,000) (272,000) 

___________ ___________
Deficit after defined benefit pension charges 
per financial statements       £ (1,832,996) £ (1,347,011) 
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3 
 

 
2.2 The income and expenditure account has been presented in the above format in this 

report in order to show the results before and after adjustments under IAS 19 in 
respect of the defined benefit pension scheme. The results before the IAS 19 defined 
benefit pension scheme adjustments are the results that management are able to 
influence and control. The IAS 19 defined benefit pension scheme adjustments are 
only known after the end of the financial year and are determined by the actuary of 
the Essex County Council Pension Scheme (“LGPS”) 

 
2.3 The income and expenditure account of the Company can be considered to have 

three discrete components:  
 

• There are the costs of subcontractors and costs of materials which are invoiced at 
cost to Colchester Borough Council: therefore these transactions produce neither 
a surplus nor a deficit;  

 
• There are then the various overheads costs of the Company which are funded, in 

accordance with a budget, by a management fee from Colchester Borough 
Council. To the extent that the actual costs are greater than or less than the 
management fee, the Company records either a deficit or a surplus.  

 
• Finally, commercial activities such as the management of properties for external 

organisations. 
 
2.4 We do not consider that the surplus made by the Company in respect of the ALMO 

activity with Colchester Borough Council to be taxable. Any other surpluses made 
will be subject to corporation tax. Our work in respect of taxation is set out in 
Section 5.  

 
2.5 The comparative figures in the income and expenditure account have been restated 

to reclassify staff costs in accordance with the basis adopted for the year to 31 March 
2019. This has resulted in costs of £311,116 being reclassified as other operating 
charges. 
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2.6 Balance sheet 
 

 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 
 £      £      
 
Net current assets 1,205,155 1,431,656 
 
Less: Provisions (193,195) (195,700) 
 ___________ ___________ 
Net assets before defined benefit pension 
scheme adjustments 

1,011,960 1,235,956

   
Net pension liability (8,665,000) (8,368,000)
 ___________ ___________ 
Net liabilities including defined benefit 
pension scheme adjustments £ (7,653,040) £ (7,132,044) 

 
2.7 The balance sheet of the Company shows net liabilities of £7,653,040 compared to 

£7,132,044 in the previous year.  
 
2.8 We consider that the most meaningful figure in considering the ability of the 

Company to continue as a going concern is the net current assets figure per 2.6 
above of £1,205,155  (2018: £1,431,656). This is the surplus of the current assets over 
the current liabilities, after adding back provisions, and is therefore closer than 
other figures on the balance sheet to a cash flow measure. This, together with the 
knowledge that the Company generally forecasts to breakeven, and that the 
management fee is received on a profiled basis from Colchester Borough Council, is 
indicative of the robustness of the balance sheet.  

 
2.9 The large liability of £8,665,000 (2018: £8,368,000) in respect of pension obligations 

is not an immediate liability to be met from cash flows: it represents the current best 
estimate of the pension deficit for those Company employees in the LGPS. The 
expectation is that future budgets presented to Colchester Borough Council will 
include the appropriate amounts in respect of future employer contributions and 
that these contributions will be then be funded by the management fee.  

 
2.10 Under IFRS there is a requirement for the pension surplus or deficit to be shown on 

the face of the balance sheet. As noted above, there is also a requirement for the 
income and expenditure account to be amended in order to show pension costs 
based on the current costs accruing, rather than on the basis of the employer 
contributions payable to the scheme. 
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2.11 The net movements in the pension scheme liability are set out in Appendix 1. The 

liability has increased from £8,368,000 to £8,665,000, being an increase of £297,000. 
The increase in the assumed rate of increase in salaries and pensions in payment, 
which increased from 3.8% and 2.3% in 2018 to 3.9% and 2.4% respectively, have 
contributed to the increase of the estimated scheme liability. The impact of these 
factors has been exacerbated by the impact of the discount rate falling which has 
reduced from 2.55%, as used in the 2018 calculation, to 2.4% for the 2019 
calculation. The impact of the changes in these assumptions on the liability has been 
offset to some extent by the change in demographic assumptions reflected in the 
calculations which has resulted in a significant reduction in the net liability. 

 
2.12 Balance sheet (IFRS vs FRS 102) 
 

This is the first year the company has adopted International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS). There have been no changes required to the figures are a result of 
this change in accounting framework, but the presentation and layout of the balance 
sheet has changed as a result. The current year condensed balance sheet is shown 
below under the current IFRS format and previous FRS 102 format for comparability: 

 
 

IFRS  

 --------------------------------- 

Total assets 2,900,661 
 ==================================================================

 
Total equity 

 
(7,653,040)

 
Non-current liabilities    

 

  
 Defined benefit pension fund liability  8,665,000
  
 Total current liabilities 1,888,701 
 ---------------------------------

 Total equity and liabilities 2,900,661 
 =================================================================== 
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 FRS 102 

 Current assets  2,900,661 

 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year  (1,695,506)
---------------------------------

 Net current assets 1,205,155 

 Provisions for liabilities 
 Other provisions (193,195) 

------------------------------- 

 Net assets excluding pension fund  1,011,960 

 Estimated pension fund liability       (8,665,000) 
--------------------------------

 Net liabilities  (7,653,040) 
=================================================================== 

 Reserves 
 Income and expenditure account – 
 excluding defined benefit  
 pension scheme reserve 1,011,960 

 Defined benefit pension  
 scheme reserve (8,665,000) 

----------------------------------

 Member's funds deficit (7,653,040) 
=================================================================== 

3 Main Areas of Audit Risk 

3.1 There is always a concern that certain material or subcontractors’ costs incurred by 
the Company may not be accepted by Colchester Borough Council. The Company 
makes no margin on the recharge of such materials and there is therefore no surplus 
available to absorb costs in such a situation. We have obtained confirmation from 
the management of the Company that there have been no such cases; we are able to 
confirm this by reviewing the recharges made to Colchester Borough Council and the 
accounting evidence that all costs have been recharged and not challenged to date.  

3.2 There is an audit risk that late costs may be incurred in relation to overheads of the 
Company. We therefore carry out a review of purchase invoices and payments after 
the end of the year in order to identify any such costs. We also seek to agree larger 
supplier balances on the bought ledger to statements from those suppliers.  
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3.3 There is a significant audit risk that the information in respect of the defined benefit 
pension scheme accounting requirements under IFRS may be presented incorrectly 
or may be based on inappropriate assumptions. We therefore review the detailed 
figures provided by the Actuary, including the assumptions, and carry out detailed 
reviews of the information provided in the financial statements with regard to the 
net pension liability and the pension costs. 

4 Controls 

4.1 During our audit we examined certain control procedures operated by the 
management team. We also reviewed the various reports issued by Mazars, the 
internal audit service to the Company. We note that there were various issues raised 
in respect of the procurement systems by Mazars, but do not consider that these 
have a material impact upon the financial statements or our report thereon. 

5 Taxation 

5.1 We are responsible for the corporation tax compliance work for the Company.  

5.2 It is our opinion that the nature of the surpluses made by the Company (comprising 
the making of savings on a management fee awarded by the sole member of the 
Company) is such that they are not subject to corporation tax as they do not 
represent surpluses from a taxable undertaking.   

5.3 During the year the Company has engaged in a number of trading activities, and as 
such any surplus in this area is subject to Corporation Tax.  

6 Independence 

6.1 We can confirm that we consider the partners and employees of Scrutton Bland LLP 
and Scrutton Bland Limited to be independent of both the Company and also 
Colchester Borough Council.  

6.2 In addition to the audit services, we provide tax compliance services to the 
Company. The fee in respect of these tax compliance services is very much less than 
our audit fee; we therefore do not consider that our undertaking this extra service 
impacts on our independence from the Company.  

Scrutton Bland LLP 

22 May 2019 
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Appendix 1 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Charge Adjustment 
 
 
  Balance Sheet  I & E 
  Dr Cr  Dr Cr 
   
    
IAS 19 interest adjustment   210,000 

Employer service costs   1,399,000 

IAS 19 interest adjustment  210,000   

Employer service costs 1,399,000   

Balance brought forward  8,368,000   

Actuarial gain  1,312,000   

Balance carried forward 8,665,000   

Adjustment to reserves  1,609,000   

  9,977,000    11,586,000  1,609,000 0
   

Effect on pension reserve  (1,609,000) 

   

Effect on deficit:    

- Pension charge  (1,609,000) 

Deficit after tax per CBH draft  (223,996) 

Deficit after tax per accounts   (1,832,996) 
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     Appendix 2 
 
 

Letter of Representation 
 

 
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 

1st Floor  
Rowan House 

33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester  
CO3 3WG 

 
Company Number: 04843624 

A company incorporated in England and Wales 
 

 
 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
And Statutory Auditor 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
CO4 9YQ 
 
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 
 
We confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience and where appropriate, of 
inspection of supporting documentation, sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly 
make each of the following representations to you in connection with your audit of the 
company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019. 
 
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as 
auditors and confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information 
needed by you in connection with preparing your audit report of which you are unaware.  
Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you are 
aware of that information. 
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Financial Statements: 
 
1. We acknowledge, and have fulfilled, as directors, our collective responsibility under 

the Companies Act 2006 for presenting financial statements (in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards), which give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the company at the reporting date, and 
of its result for the period then ended, and for making accurate representations to 
you.  We confirm that we have approved the financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2019. 

 
2. We confirm that the accounting policies and estimation techniques adopted for the 

preparation of the financial statements are the most appropriate to the 
circumstances in which the company operates. 
 

3. Other than as disclosed in the financial statements, the company has not entered 
into any transactions involving directors, officers or other related parties, which 
require disclosure under the Companies Act or International Financial Reporting 
Standards. Appropriate disclosure has been made of the control of the company. 

 
4. We have disclosed all known or possible litigation and claims whose effects should 

be considered when preparing the financial statements and these have been 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of accounting standards. 

 
5. The financial statements of the company have been prepared on the going concern 

basis as we believe that adequate cash resources will be available to cover the 
company’s requirements for working capital and capital expenditure for at least the 
next twelve months. We are not aware of any other factors which could put into 
jeopardy the company’s going concern status during or beyond this period, other 
than as disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
6. There have been no events since the reporting date which necessitate revision of the 

figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto.  Should 
further material events occur, which may necessitate revision of the figures included 
in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you 
accordingly. 

 
7. We confirm that we have been notified by you that either no unadjusted or only 

clearly trivial errors were identified during the audit. 
 
8. We confirm that we have agreed the adjustments appended to this letter which have 

been made to the Trial Balance which we presented to you for audit. (See Appendix 
1). 
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9. We confirm we have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying 

value or classification of any assets and liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements. 

 
10. With regard to the defined benefit pension plan, we are satisfied that: 
 

 the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation are consistent with our 
knowledge of the plan and our business; 

 all significant retirement benefits have been identified and properly 
accounted for; and 

 all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted 
for. 

 
Information provided: 
 
11. All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your 

audit and all the transactions undertaken by the company have been properly 
reflected and recorded in the accounting records.  We have provided to you all other 
information requested and given unrestricted access to persons within the entity to 
whom you have deemed it necessary to speak. All other records and relevant 
information, including minutes of all management and shareholders’ meetings, have 
been made available to you. 

 
12. Other than those disclosed in the financial statements we are not aware of any 

material liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets or contracted 
for capital commitments, that need to be provided for or disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

 
13. We confirm that we have notified you of all related party relationships, and 

transactions that the company has entered into with those related parties during the 
year of which we are aware. 
 

14. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal 
controls to prevent and detect errors or fraud, and have disclosed to you the results 
of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of fraud. We are unaware of any irregularities, including fraud 
and suspected fraud, involving management, employees or others who have 
significant roles in internal control, or those employed by the company where the 
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.  No allegations of 
such irregularities or breaches have come to our notice. 
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15. We are unaware of any breaches or possible breaches of statute, regulations, 

contracts, agreements or the company's Memorandum and Articles of Association 
which might result in the company suffering significant penalties or other loss.  No 
allegations of such irregularities or breaches have come to our notice. 

 
16. We confirm that we have been notified by you that there are no matters which you 

are required to raise with us to comply with your profession’s ethical guidance which 
are in addition to the matters included in your external audit plan. 

 
17. We confirm receipt of your external audit plan and we confirm receipt of your 

management letter. 
 

18. We confirm that two directors received remuneration during the year and that the 
remuneration of these directors, excluding benefits in kind, but including any board 
expenses was £108,712 in the period. 

 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Executive 
 
Date: 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
Date: 
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     Appendix 3 
 

Management Letter 
 
 
 
The Directors 
Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
CO3 3WG 
 
 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
Colchester Borough Homes Limited 
 
Following our recent final audit in connection with the financial statements of Colchester 
Borough Homes Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019, we are writing to bring to your 
attention certain matters that arose during the course of our work, together with 
suggestions for improvements of procedures operated by the company. We hope that you 
will find our comments helpful and constructive. 
 
Our work during the audit included an examination of some of the company’s transactions 
and procedures with a view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements for the 
year. This work was not directed primarily towards discovering weaknesses or towards the 
detection of fraud. We have only considered matters that have come to our attention as a 
result of our normal audit procedures and consequently our comments should not be 
regarded as a comprehensive record of all weaknesses that may exist or of all improvements 
that might be made. 
 
Our work also included a review of the adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements 
and consideration of the appropriateness of the accounting policies and estimation 
techniques adopted by the company. This review identified no significant matters which we 
believe are necessary to draw to your attention. 
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We would particularly draw your attention to the following matters: 
 
Going Concern - Pension liability 
 
The balance sheet includes a large provision of £8,665,000 in respect of the IAS 19 defined 
benefit pension fund deficit. The inclusion of this provision means that there is a deficit of 
member’s funds of £7,653,000. If the future performance of the pension scheme remains 
identical to the assumptions made by the Actuary, then there would need to be an increase 
in total contributions into the pension scheme in order to cover the funding shortfall. 
 
We consider that the financial statements should continue to be prepared on the going 
concern basis, provided that the directors are of the view that increased pension 
contributions in future years will be met by the funding received each year from Colchester 
Borough Council. 
 
Conclusion 
 
If you require any further information or assistance, we shall be very pleased to help you. 
 
We would appreciate an acknowledgement of the receipt of this letter and look forward to 
receiving your comments when you have had the opportunity of considering the matter that 
we have raised. 
 
This letter is for private use only. It has been prepared on the understanding that it will not 
be disclosed to any third party, or quoted to or referred to, without our prior written consent 
and we assume no responsibility to any other party. 
  
We should like to take this opportunity of thanking you and your staff for the assistance and 
co-operation we have received during the course of our work. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
 
 

53



COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER 04843624 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED 

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

54



 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 
 
 
 
 

CONTENTS PAGES 

Officers and professional advisers 1 
 

Strategic report 2 to  3 
 

Directors' report 4 to 5 
 

Independent auditor's report to the member of 
Colchester Borough Homes 6 to 8 

Income and expenditure account 9 

Statement of comprehensive income 10 

Statement of changes in equity 11 

Statement of financial position 12 

Statement of cash flow 13 

Notes to the financial statements 14 to 30 

The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial 
statements: 

Detailed income statement 32 

Notes to the detailed income statement 33 to 34 

Annual governance statement 35 to 40 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



 

OFFICERS AND PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Company registration number 04843624 
 
 

The board of directors Mr M Campbell 
Cllr N Chapman 
Cllr P Coleman (appointed 6 June 2018) 
Mr G Foster 
Ms A Grahamslaw 
Mr G Houchell 
Cllr C Liddy 
Mr G Mitchell 
Miss J Parker 

 
 

Registered office 1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO3 3WG 

 
 

Statutory auditor Scrutton Bland LLP 
Chartered Accountants & 
Statutory Auditor 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO4 9YQ 

 
 

Internal auditor Mazars LLP 
Tower Bridge House 
St Katharine’s Way 
London 
E1W 1DD 

56



 

The  directors  have  pleasure  in  presenting  their  strategic  report  for  the  year  ended   31 
March 2019. 

Principal activities and business review 
The principal activity of the Company during the period was the repair and improvement of 
council properties, tenancy management, rent collection and arrears, and other property 
management associated services. 

 
The maintenance and repairs service contract with Colchester Borough Council (the ‘Council’) 
continued throughout the year. 

Results 
The loss after tax, but before defined benefit pension scheme adjustments for the year was 
£223,996 (2018 :  loss of  £26,011). This  resulted  in  a loss  of  £1,832,996  (2018 :  loss  of 
£1,347,011) for the year, after adjustments for the defined benefit pension scheme. 

 
Included in the deficit for the year were some planned investments from reserves in developing 
a SharePoint environment for the Company’s files and data, IT training for staff and a Board 
effectiveness review. The Company also invested in staff resource to prepare for compliance 
with the new General Data Protection Regulations. 

 
Financial risk management objectives and policies 
The directors consider that the main risks to the Company are that expenditure is not controlled 
in line with the core funding provided by the ‘Council’. The Company has budgeting and 
management accounting procedures in place so as to control these risks and is developing a 
plan to ensure that its cost base is brought in-line with the core funding. The company is also 
exposed to the prospect of greater cash outflows in future years in order to fund the deficit in 
the pension scheme, to the extent that this is not covered by improved investment 
performance. 

 
The Company is assessed by various metrics applicable to similar housing organisations and 
is looking to be in the upper quartile in the various cost and quality benchmarks. The main key 
performance indicators include the cost of housing management, the cost of repairs, tenant 
satisfaction, the levels of overdue rents, the length of time taken to re-let empty properties and 
customer satisfaction with repairs. 

 
The Company retains sufficient cash for its working capital needs and does not use other 
financial instruments for treasury management. The company therefore has very little exposure 
to cash flow risk. 

 
The Company is following government policy changes signalled by the Social Housing Green 
Paper 2018, particularly in respect of tighter regulation around consumer standards, decent 
homes standards and building safety, which may have cost implications to implement fully. 
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The directors are committed to ensuring that proper governance arrangements are in place. 
 
 

Registered office: Signed on behalf of the directors 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex Ms A Grahamslaw 
CO3 3WG Director 

 
 

Approved by the directors on 
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The directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2019. 

Matters covered in the strategic report 
Financial risk management objectives and policies are disclosed in the strategic report. 

 
Directors 
The directors who served the Company during the year were as follows: 

Mr A Blois (resigned 21 June 2018) 
Mr M Campbell 
Miss M Carey (resigned 1 November 2018) 
Cllr N Chapman 
Cllr P Coleman (appointed 6 June 2018) 
Mr G Foster 
Ms A Grahamslaw 
Cllr M Hogg (resigned 6 June 2018) 
Mr G Houchell 
Cllr C Liddy 
Mr G Mitchell 
Miss J Parker 
Ms A Szaboova (appointed 1 November 2018, resigned 7 January 2019) 

 
Directors' responsibilities 
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. 
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union 
and applicable law. 

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each 
financial year the company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This 
requires faithful representation of the effect of transactions, other events and conditions in 
accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses set out on the International Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework for the 
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements'. In virtually all situations, a fair 
presentation will be achieved by complying with all applicable IFRSs. Under company law  the 
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the surplus or deficit of the 
company for that period. 
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Directors' responsibilities (continued) 
 

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are also required to: 
 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 

• make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 

• state whether applicable IFRS’s as adopted by the European Union have been 
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial 
statements; and 

 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the company will continue in business. 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps 
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the company website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 

 
In so far as the directors are aware: 

 
• there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware; and 

 
• the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as directors to make 

themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s 
auditor is aware of that information. 

 
The directors are committed to ensuring that proper governance arrangements are in place. 

 
 

Registered office: Signed on behalf of the directors 
1st Floor 
Rowan House 
33 Sheepen Road 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO3 3WG Ms A Grahamslaw 

Director 
 

Approved by the directors on 
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Opinion on financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes Limited for the year 
ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Income and expenditure account, the Statement of 
comprehensive income, the Statement of financial position, the Statement of changes in 
equity, the Statement of cash flow, and the Notes to the financial statements. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and
of its loss for the year then ended; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs 
(UK) require us to report to you where: 

• The directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or

• the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Other information 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether 
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the 
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given 
in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and the strategic report 
and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained 
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report 
or the directors’ report. 

 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have 
not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; 
or 

• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
 

Responsibilities of directors 
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out in the Directors’ 
Report the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for 
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Responsibilities of directors (continued) 
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located 
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

 
Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the Company’s member, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might 
state to the Company’s member those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s 
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s member, for our 
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 
 
 

Mr Luke Morris (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
For and on behalf of: 

 
Scrutton Bland LLP 
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor 
820 The Crescent 
Colchester Business Park 
Colchester 
Essex 
CO4 9YQ 

 

Date: 
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 
 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

    
As Restated 

 Note 2019 2018 
  £ £ 

Revenue 3 14,299,576 13,195,259 

Employee costs 5 (6,747,569) (6,315,894) 
Defined benefit pension staff cost adjustment 5/13f (1,399,000) (1,049,000) 
Other operating charges  (7,786,371) 

------------------------------------------------- 
(6,912,993) 

--------------------------------------------------- 

Operating deficit 4 (1,633,364) (1,082,628) 

Interest receivable  10,368 7,617 
Defined benefit pension interest adjustment 13f (210,000) 

-------------------------------------------------- 
(272,000) 

-------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit on ordinary activities before taxation  (1,832,996) (1,347,011) 

Income tax expense 
 - 

------------------------------------------------ 
- 

-------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit for the financial year  (1,832,996) 
======================== 

(1,347,011) 
========================= 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The deficit for the financial year before and after adjustments 
required under IAS 19 in respect of defined benefit pension 
schemes is as follows: 

 
Operating deficit after tax (223,996) (26,011) 

 
Defined benefit pension scheme charges: 

Staff costs adjustment (1,399,000)  (1,049,000) 
Interest costs (210,000) (272,000) 

----------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------- 

Loss for the financial year (1,832,996) (1,347,011) 
=========================== ========================== 

 
 
 

All of the activities of the Company are classed as continuing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes on pages 14 to 30 form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Note 2019 2018 
£ £ 

Deficit for the financial year  (1,832,996) (1,347,011) 

Actuarial gains arising from pension liabilities 13b 228,000 1,253,000 

Difference between expected and actual return on pension 
fund assets and other actuarial losses 13b    1,084,000    1,800,000 

 
------------------------------------------------ -------------------------------------------------- 

Total recognised (deficit)/gain for the year (520,996)   1,705,989 
======================== ========================= 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes on pages 14 to 30 form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

   
Income and 

 

 Defined expenditure  
 benefit account  
 pension excluding  
 scheme pension  
 reserve reserve Total 
 £ £ £ 

Balance at 1 April 2017 (10,100,000) 1,261,967 (8,838,033) 

Deficit for the financial year (1,321,000) (26,011) (1,347,011) 

Other comprehensive income for the year 3,053,000 
------------------------------------------ 

- 
----------------------------------------------- 

3,053,000 
------------------------------------------------- 

Balance at 31 March 2018 (8,368,000) 1,235,956 (7,132,044) 

Deficit for the financial year (1,609,000) (223,996) (1,832,996) 

Other comprehensive income for the year 1,312,000 - 1,312,000 
  

------------------------------------------------ 
 

-------------------------------------------------- 
 

------------------------------------------------- 

Balance at 31 March 2019 (8,665,000) 
======================== 

1,011,960 
======================= 

(7,653,040) 
======================= 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes on pages 14 to 30 form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 

31 March 31 March 1 April 
Note 2019 2018 2017 

£ £ £ 

Current assets 
Trade and other receivables 6 1,537,604 803,925 1,407,255 
Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,363,057 1,769,285 1,408,507 

--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------ 

Total assets 2,900,661
========================= 

2,573,210 
======================== 

2,815,762 
=======-=================== 

Equity 

Reserves 
Defined benefit pension scheme reserve (8,665,000) (8,368,000) (10,100,000) 
Income and expenditure account – 
excluding defined benefit pension 
scheme reserve 8 1,011,960 

------------------------------------------------- 
1,235,956 1,261,967 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------- 

Total equity (7,653,040) (7,132,044) (8,838,033) 

Non-current liabilities 
Defined benefit pension fund 
liability 13a 8,665,000 8,368,000 10,100,000 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 9 1,695,506 1,141,554 1,429,042 
Provisions 10 193,195 

--------------------------------------------------- 
195,700 

----------------------------------------------------- 
124,753 

------------------------------------------------------------- 

Total current liabilities 1,888,701 
========================= 

1,337,254 
========================== 

1,553,795 
============================== 

Total liabilities 10,553,701 
--------------------------------------------------- 

9,705,254 
----------------------------------------------------- 

11,653,795 
------------------------------------------------------------- 

Total equity and liabilities 2,900,661 
========================= 

2,573,210 
========================== 

2,815,762 
============================== 

The directors can voluntarily amend these financial statements if they subsequently prove to 
be defective under section 454 of the Companies Act 2006. 

Authorised by the Board on and signed on its behalf by 

...................................... 
Ms A Grahamslaw 
Director 

Company registration number: 04843624 

The notes on pages 14 to 30 form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

2019 2018 
£ £ 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Deficit for the financial year (1,832,996) (1,347,011) 

 
Adjustments to reconcile deficit from operations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes on pages 14 to 30 form part of these financial statements. 

Interest receivable (10,368) 
------------------------------------------ 

(7,617) 
----------------------------------------- 

 (10,368) (7,617) 

Non-cash adjustments   

(Decrease)/increase in provisions (2,505) 70,947 
Defined benefit scheme pension adjustment 1,609,000 

---------------------------------------------- 
1,321,000 
--------------------------------------------- 

 1,606,495 1,391,947 

Cash flows before changes in working capital (236,869) 37,319 

Increase/(decrease) in working capital   

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (733,679) 603,330 
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 553,952 

--------------------------------------------- 
(287,488) 

---------------------------------------- 

 (179,727) 
------------------------------------------- 

315,842 
---------------------------------------- 

Net cash flows from operating activities (416,596) 353,161 

Cash flows from investing activities   

Interest received 10,368 
----------------------------------------- 

7,617 
---------------------------------------- 

Net cash flows from investing activities 10,368 
----------------------------------------- 

7,617 
---------------------------------------- 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (406,228) 360,778 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,769,285 

----------------------------------------------- 
1,408,507 
------------------------------------------------ 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,363,057 
========================= 

1,769,285 
======================== 
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1. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND STATEMENT OF 
COMPLIANCE WITH IFRS'S 

The Company's financial statements for the year were  authorised  for  issue  on  DATE 
HERE and the statement of financial position signed on the board's behalf by A 
Grahamslaw. Colchester Borough Homes Limited is a private company limited by 
guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales. Its registered number is 04843624. The 
registered office is Rowan House, 33 Sheepen Road, Colchester, Essex, CO3 3WG. 

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union 
and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The 
principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are set out in note 2. This is the 
first year in which the financial statements have been prepared under IFRS. The date of 
transition is 1 April 2017. There was no impact on the reported financial performance, 
position, equity and cash flows from first-time adoption of IFRS. The last financial 
statements presented under Financial Reporting Standard 102 were for the year ended 
31 March 2018. Certain comparatives have been restated so that the classification is 
consistent with that adopted for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of accounting 

The financial statements are presented in sterling, are rounded to the nearest £1 and 
have been prepared under the historical cost basis. Sterling is also considered to be the 
functional currency of the Company. 

 
Going concern 

 
The financial statements show net assets before pension liabilities of  £1,011,960 (2018 
: £1,235,956) but net liabilities of £7,653,040 (2018 : £7,132,044) once the provision for 
pension liabilities is included. The financial statements have been prepared on the basis 
of a going concern, on the assumption that the core funding from the Council in future 
years will enable the increased pension contributions to be met. 

 
After reviewing the Company’s forecasts and projections, the directors have a 
reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources and support to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Company therefore 
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements. 

Revenue 
 

Revenue principally comprises of income derived from the Council and is stated 
exclusive of Value Added Tax. 

 
Income received from the Council is for the management of Colchester Borough Homes 
and also relates to specific projects for which the money is earmarked. Costs are also 
recharged direct to the Council in respect of additional property services work outside 
the management fee. 
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits 
 

The Company participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by 
Essex County Council, where benefits are currently provided based on career average 
revalued earnings. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the 
Company. 

 
There are no minimum funding requirements but the contributions are generally set to 
target a funding level of 100% using the actuarial valuation assumptions. On the 
Employer’s withdrawal from the Fund, a cessation valuation will be carried out in 
accordance with Regulation 64 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 which will determine the 
termination contribution due by the Employer, on a set of assumptions deemed 
appropriate by the Fund Actuary. 

 
In general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that the Company 
is exposed to a number of risks: 

 
• Investment risk - The Fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, 

which have volatile market values and while these assets are expected to provide 
real returns over the long-term, the short-term volatility can cause additional 
funding to be required if a deficit emerges; 

 
• Interest rate risk - The Fund’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on high 

quality corporate bonds to discount future liability cashflows. As the Fund holds 
assets such as equities the value of the assets and liabilities may not move in 
the same way; 

 
• Inflation risk - All of the benefits under the Fund are linked to inflation and so 

deficits may emerge to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation; and 
 

• Longevity risk - In the event that the members live longer than assumed a deficit 
will emerge in the Fund. There are also other demographic risks. 

 
In addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the Essex Pension Fund, there 
is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient assets to 
cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining 
employers. 

 
All of the risks above may also benefit the Company e.g. higher than expected 
investment returns or employers leaving the Fund with excess assets which eventually 
get inherited by the remaining employers. 

 
Pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using a projected unit 
method and are discounted to their present value using a quality corporate bond rate. 

 
Pension scheme assets are valued at fair value at the reporting date. 

 
The pension scheme deficit is recognised in full on the statement of financial position. 
There are no deferred tax implications. 
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2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The Company’s bank balances are managed as part of the treasury operations of the 
‘Council’. Each evening the balances are aggregated with those of the Council and 
placed on overnight deposit. 

 
Financial instruments 

 
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment. 

Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price. 

Financial assets that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the end 
of each reporting period for objective evidence of impairment. If objective evidence of 
impairment is found, an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account. 

 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the Statement 
of Financial Position when there is an enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 

 
Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation that arises as a 
consequence of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will  be required 
to settle that obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated. The provisions are 
measured as the estimated expenditure that will be required to settle such obligations 
as at the date of the statement of financial position. 

 
A provision has been included for the expected reinstatement costs of the Company’s 
offices at the end of the lease. 

 
The Company recognises a provision for the annual leave accrued by employees as a 
result of services rendered in the current period, and which employers are entitled to 
carry forward. The provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of 
absence. 

 
Operating lease agreements 

 
Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of 
ownership remain with the lessor are charged against income on a straight line basis 
over the period of the lease. 

 
The benefits of lease incentives are recognised in the Income Statement over the  lease 
term on a straight line basis. 
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Current and deferred taxation 

Any operating profit of the Company, before IAS 19 defined benefit pension scheme 
adjustments, arising from savings of overhead costs compared to the core funding 
provided by the ‘Council’, is non-taxable. Taxation is chargeable only on the profit from 
its activities with other housing organisations. 

 
Standards that have been issued but not yet effective 

 
The below accounting standards have been issued but are not yet effective. The impact 
of the initial application of these standards is not reasonably estimable at this stage. 

 
• IFRS 16 Leases (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019). 

 
• IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective for 

periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019). 
 

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Amendments regarding prepayment features 
with negative compensation and modifications of financial liabilities (effective 
for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019). 

 
• IAS 12 Income Taxes – Amendments resulting from ‘Annual Improvements 

2015-2017 Cycle’ (income tax consequences of dividends) (effective for periods 
commencing on or after 1 January 2019). 

 
• IAS 19 Employee Benefits – Amendments regarding plan amendments, 

curtailments or settlements (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2019). 

 
• IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements – Amendments regarding the 

definition of material (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 
2020). 

 
• IAS 6 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors – 

Amendments regarding the definition of material (effective for periods on or 
after 1 January 2020). 
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation 
uncertainty 

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Company’s directors to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk 
of causing material misstatement to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year are those made in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme. 

 
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex 
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to 
increase, changes in retirement rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. An 
independent firm of consulting actuaries has been engaged to provide expert advice 
regarding the assumptions to be applied in the calculation of the defined pension scheme 
liability, which at 31 March 2019 amounts to £8,665,000. Further details of the 
assumptions made are disclosed in note 13. 

 
 

3. REVENUE 

The revenue and loss before tax are attributable to the one principal activity of the 
Company. 

 
All revenue arose in the United Kingdom. 

 
An analysis of revenue by class of business is given below: 

 
2019 2018 

£ £ 
 

Rendering of services 14,299,576 13,195,259 
======================================================= 
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4. OPERATING DEFICIT 

The operating deficit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: 

2019 2018 
£ £ 

Included in administrative expenses: 
 

Auditor's remuneration - audit of the financial statements 14,850 
=================== 

12,000 
=================== 

Operating lease expenses 361,840 
==================== 

374,807 
================== 

Internal audit   

Internal audit relates to services provided by Mazars LLP 29,100 
==================== 

23,346 
================== 

 
5. EMPLOYEE COSTS 

  

  As Restated 
 2019 2018 
 £ £ 

Wages and salaries 5,381,962 5,046,066 
Employer pension contributions 850,566 784,663 
Social security costs 515,041 

--------------------------------------------------- 
485,165 

---------------------------------------------------- 

Total employee costs 6,747,569 6,315,894 

Additional employee related costs: 
  

Redundancy payments 50,682 16,485 
Agency costs 367,387 202,996 
Other staff costs 144,755 131,862 
Recruitment 9,053 7,311 
Training and seminars 142,073 

--------------------------------------------------- 
103,666 

---------------------------------------------------- 

 7,461,519 
--------------------------------------------------- 

6,778,214 
---------------------------------------------------- 

IAS 19 defined benefit pension cost adjustment 1,399,000 
-------------------------------------------------- 

1,049,000 
-------------------------------------------------- 

 8,860,519 
========================= 

7,827,214 
======================== 
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5. EMPLOYEE COSTS (continued) 
 

The average monthly number of employees during the year was made up as follows: 

2019 2018 
No. No. 

 
Housing 90 85 
Property services 76 77 
Resources 31 23 
Senior management 12 

--------------- 
13 

--------------- 

 209 
======== 

198 
======== 

The directors’ aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services was: 
 

2019 2018 
£ £ 

 
Directors’ emoluments 108,712 40,199 
Employer pension contributions to defined   
contribution plans 16,691 

---------------------------------------------- 
5,446 

---------------------------------------------- 

 125,403 45,645 
 =================== ====================== 

In the year, the number of directors receiving remuneration was 2 (2018: 2). 
 

In the year, the number of directors to whom retirement benefits are accruing in  
respect of qualifying services was 1 (2018: 1). 

 
During the year to 31 March 2018, one of the directors had only received remuneration 
and pension contribution for the final five months of that year. 

 
All directors are entitled to be reimbursed for expenses incurred in performance of their 
duties. During the year these amounted to £10,642 (2018: £9,854). 

 
 

6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 

2019 2018 
£ £ 

 
The Council 1,425,847 705,100 
Other receivables 16,450 8,528 
Prepayments and accrued income 95,307 90,297 

 ------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 

 1,537,604 
======-=-==================== 

803,925 
======================== 

75



 
7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  

 2019 2018 
 £ £ 

Cash at bank and in hand 1,363,057 
========================= 

1,769,285 
===================== 

 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the 
following at the end of the year: 

 
 2019 

£ 
2018 

£ 

Cash at bank and in hand 1,363,057 
======================== 

1,769,285 
========================= 

 
8. RESERVES 

  

Company limited by guarantee   

The Company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital. The liability of the 
member, the Council, in the event of winding-up is limited to £1. 

 
 

9. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES  

 2019 2018 
 £ £ 

Payable to trade suppliers 50,908 60,959 
Other payables 91,579 87,432 
Taxation and social security payable 139,067 133,159 
Accruals and deferred income 1,413,952 

--------------------------------------------------- 
860,004 

------------------------------------------------ 

 1,695,506 
========================= 

1,141,554 
======================= 
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10. PROVISIONS  

 2019 2018 
 £ £ 

Provision for building reinstatement:   

Balance brought forward 72,200 26,136 
Movement for year 10,050 46,064 

 ---------------------------------------- -------------------------------------- 

 82,250 
================== 

72,200 
================== 

Environmental provision:   

Balance brought forward 4,180 4,180 
Movement for year - - 

 --------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- 

 4,180 
================== 

4,180 
================== 

Provision for privately leased building venture: 
  

Balance brought forward 5,856 4,684 
Movement for year 2,715 1,172 

 ------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 

 8,571 5,856 
 ================== =================== 

Provision for holiday pay:   

Balance brought forward 113,464 89,753 
Movement for year (15,270) 23,711 

 ------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------- 

 98,194 113,464 
 =================== =================== 

 
Total provisions carried forward 

 
193,195 

 
195,700 

 ================== =================== 
 

The holiday pay provision represents holiday balances accrued as a result of services 
rendered in the current period and which employees are entitled to carry forward. The 
provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of absence. 
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS   

 2019 2018 
 £ £ 

Financial assets   

Financial assets which are debt instruments   

measured at amortised cost 1,442,297 
--------------------------------------------------- 

713,628 
------------------------------------------------- 

 1,442,297 
======================== 

713,628 
======================= 

Financial liabilities   

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1,545,439 
-------------------------------------------------- 

998,895 
----------------------------------------------- 

 1,545,439 
========================= 

998,895 
====================== 

 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise balances due from the Council 
and other debtors. 

 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, other creditors 
and accruals. 

 
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying value of its loans and 
receivables. 

 
All of the Company’s financial liabilities are due for payment within one year. The 
Company manages the related liquidity risk through the preparation of profit and cash 
flow forecasts, regular monitoring of actual performance against these forecasts, and 
ensuring that adequate sources of finance are in place to meet the requirements of the 
business. 

 
The Company does not have any financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value  so 
has no significant exposure to market risk. 

 
The Company prepares reserves and cash flow forecasts, and regularly monitors actual 
performance against these forecasts in order to ensure that adequate sources of finance 
are in place to meet the requirements of the business. In order to maintain liquidity to 
ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future 
developments, the Company has access to group debt finance. 
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12. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES 
 

At the end of the year the company had total commitments under non-cancellable 
operating leases as set out below: 

 
Land & Buildings 

 2019 
£ 

2018 
£ 

Operating leases which expire:   
Less than 1 year 184,300 177,568 
Within 2 to 5 years 581,412 604,054 
Over 5 years 158,400 

============-========== 
227,074 

===================== 
 

Other 
2019 2018 

£ £ 
Operating leases which expire: 
Less than 1 year 116,882 132,035 
Within 2 to 5 years 318,845 401,229 

================== =================== 
 
 
 

13. PENSION COMMITMENTS 
 

(a) The assets and liabilities of the pension scheme at 31 March were: 
 

 
% of 

scheme 

2019 2018 
% of 

scheme 

assets Value assets Value 
£ £ 

 
Equities 62.3% 20,734,000 65.8% 20,093,000 
Bonds 11.2% 3,714,000 10.4% 3,193,000 
Properties 8.9% 2,961,000 9.2% 2,823,000 
Cash 2.6% 877,000 3.7% 1,119,000 
Alternative assets 9.7% 3,247,000 6.8% 2,087,000 
Other managed funds 5.3% 1,770,000 4.1% 1,224,000 

------------------------- ------------------------- 
Total market value of assets 33,303,000 30,539,000 

 
Present value of scheme liabilities (41,968,000) (38,907,000) 

------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
 

Net estimated pension liability (8,665,000) (8,368,000) 
============================= ============================== 
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13. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 

The following information was received from the administering authority regarding the 
detail of the Fund’s assets as at 28 February 2019, representing the percentages of the 
total Fund held in each asset class (split by those that have a quoted market price in an 
active market, and those that do not). 

 
Asset breakdown 

 
28 February 2019 

% Quoted % Unquoted 
 

Index Linked Government Securities  
UK 5.3% - 

Corporate Bonds   

UK 5.8% - 

Equities   
UK 4.5% - 
Overseas 53.2% - 

Property   

All 3.3% 5.6% 

Others   
Private equity - 4.6% 
Infrastructure - 5.0% 
Timber - 3.0% 
Private debt - 1.7% 
Other managed funds - 5.3% 
Cash/temporary investments - 2.6% 

Net Current Assets   

Debtors - 0.1% 

Total 72.1% 
================ 

27.9% 
================ 
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13. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)  

(b) Asset and liability reconciliation: 

  
 
Reconciliation of liabilities 

2019 
£ 

2018 
£ 

 
Liabilities at start of period 38,907,000 37,306,000 

 Service cost 1,883,000 1,823,000 
 Interest cost 1,003,000 1,044,000 
 Employee contributions 336,000 317,000 
 Change in financial assumptions 2,167,000 (1,253,000) 
 Change in demographic assumptions (2,395,000) - 
 Settlements and curtailments 680,000 - 
 Benefits paid (613,000) (330,000) 
  

Liabilities at end of period 
---------------------- 
41,968,000 

---------------------- 
38,907,000 

  ========================== =========================== 

  
 

Reconciliation of assets 

 
2019 

£ 

 
2018 

£ 

 
Assets at start of period 30,539,000 27,206,000 

 Interest on assets 793,000 772,000 
 Return on assets less interest 1,084,000 1,800,000 
 Employer contributions 862,000 784,000 
 Employee contributions 336,000 317,000 
 Benefits paid (613,000) (330,000) 
 Settlement prices received 314,000 - 
 Administrative expenses (12,000) (10,000) 
  

Assets at end of period 
-------------------- 
33,303,000 
========================== 

-------------------- 
30,539,000 
========================== 

 
(c) 

 
Return on scheme assets: 

  

 

The overall return on scheme assets is estimated to be 6% in 2018/19. This figure will 
vary year on year depending on the assumptions made and the underlying distribution of 
the fund’s assets which will vary during the year and as a result it is not appropriate to 
break down the return on assets across the different asset categories. Actual returns on 
scheme assets have been £1,877,000 for the year to 31 March 2019. 
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13. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 

(d)  A full actuarial valuation was carried out for the defined benefit scheme at 31st March 
2016 and updated to 31 March 2019 by Barnett Waddingham using the Projected unit 
method. The major assumptions used by the actuary were: 

2019 2018 
% % 

Major assumptions: 
Rate of increase in salaries 3.9 3.8 
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2.4 2.3 
Discount rate 2.4 2.6 

(e) Movement in deficit during the year: 
2019 2018 

£ £ 
At 1 April 2018 (8,368,000)  (10,100,000) 
Current service cost (2,249,000)    (1,823,000) 
Net interest cost (210,000)       (272,000) 
Actuarial gains/(losses)         (note 13(b)) 1,312,000      3,053,000 
Employer contributions 862,000         784,000 
Administrative costs (12,000) (10,000) 

---------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------- 

At 31 March 2019 (8,665,000)    (8,368,000) 
======================= ======================== 

 
 

The Council supports the annual pension contributions due from Colchester Borough 
Homes, including the back funding, through the management fee. 

 
Defined benefit pension disclosures are not on the same basis as the triennial actuarial 
review of the pension fund valuation and the two are for different purposes. These 
disclosures are a one-off assessment at the year-end for accounting disclosure purposes. 
The calculations required for disclosure under IFRSs are more prescriptive. At the current 
time they emphasise the liabilities and produce a net obligation on the statement of 
financial position that is higher than the triennial valuation position. 

 
While the figure is substantial it should be remembered that: 

 
• It is not an immediate deficit that has to be met now. The sum is the current 

assessment taking a long term view of the future liabilities both for existing 
pensioners and current employees who are accruing pension entitlement. 

 
• It is not a problem unique to Colchester Borough Homes or indeed ALMOs 

generally. There is a national problem for pension funds both private and public 
sector. 

 
• The Essex County Council Pension Fund is regularly reviewed and additional 

contributions have already been initiated to address the problem over a period of 
years. 
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13. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)  

(f) Analysis of the amount charged to the income and expenditure account: 
 2019 2018 
 £ £ 
 Current service cost 2,249,000 1,823,000 
 Employer contributions (862,000) (784,000) 
 Administration Costs 12,000 10,000 
 -------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- 
 Adjustment to the income and expenditure account 1,399,000 

===================== 
1,049,000 
====================== 

 
Analysis of amounts charged to finance costs: 

 

 2019 2018 
 £ £ 
 Other finance costs: expected return on assets in  

 the scheme 793,000 772,000 
 Other finance costs: interest costs (1,003,000) (1,044,000) 
 -------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

 Net cost (210,000) 
====================== 

(272,000) 
======================= 

 
During the year to 31 March 2019 the employer contribution rate was 16.6%. 

 

(g) Life assumptions: 
 

 2019 2018 
 Life expectancy:  

 
Current pensioner aged 65 

 

male 21.3 22.2 
female 23.6 24.7 

Future pensioner aged 65 in 20 years’ time 
male 22.9 24.4 
female 25.4 27.0 
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13. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)  

(h) Sensitivity analysis 

  £000s £000s £000s 
 Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% 0.0% -0.1% 

 Present value of total obligation 41,109 41,968 42,846 
 Projected service cost 1,834 1,879 1,925 

  
Adjustment to long term salary increase 

 
+0.1% 

 
0.0% 

 
-0.1% 

 Present value of total obligation 42,062 41,968 41,875 
 Projected service cost 1,879 1,879 1,879 

  
Adjustment to pension increases and 
deferred revaluation 

 
 

+0.1% 

 
 

0.0% 

 
 

-0.1% 

 Present value of total obligation 42,751 41,968 41,202 
 Projected service cost 1,925 1,879 1,834 

  
Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions 

 
+1 Year 

 
None 

 
-1 Year 

 Present value of total obligation 43,390 41,968 40,593 
 Projected service cost 1,941 1,879 1,819 

 
 

The primary limitation of the above sensitivity analysis calculations is that each variable 
is considered individually, however in reality all variables are inter-related and therefore 
these calculations do not constitute a complete analysis. 
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Ultimate controlling party 

The Company is an Arms Length Management Organisation under the ultimate control 
of the Council, which is also the immediate parent undertaking. The members of the 
Council are considered to be the ultimate controlling parties. 

 
Key management personnel received remuneration of £391,709 (2018 : £421,204). This 
included pension contributions of £42,196 (2018: £54,153). 

 
During the year, Colchester Borough Homes Limited received income of £13,717,743 
(2018 : 12,529,533) from Colchester Borough Council for the Management Fee,  Capital 
recharges and other services. During the year, Colchester Borough Homes Limited paid 
£298,634 (2018 : £410,003) to Colchester Borough Council for support services. 

 
At the year end Colchester Borough Homes Limited was owed £1,425,847 (2018 : 
£705,100) by Colchester Borough Council. 
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MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements 
which are the subject of the independent auditor's report on pages 6 to 8. 
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 
 
 

Revenue 

As restated 
2019 2018 

£ £ £ 

Management fee 9,315,007 9,253,561 
Capital fee 4,141,764 3,166,126 
Trading income 530,582 319,211 
Sundry income 51,251 346,515 
Other income 260,972 109,846 

-------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------ 
14,299,576 13,195,259 

 
 

Operating costs (before defined 
benefit pension scheme adjustment) 
Employee costs 7,461,519 6,778,214 
Premises costs 269,350 380,943 
Other operating costs 852,498 1,113,401 
Service delivery direct costs 5,950,573 4,956,329 

------------------------------ -------------------------------------------------------- 

14,533,940 13,228,887 
------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------- 

Operating deficit (234,364) (33,628) 
Interest on management fee 10,368 7,617 

-------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit on ordinary activities (223,996) (26,011) 
Defined benefit pension scheme 
staff cost adjustments (1,399,000) (1,049,000) 
Defined benefit pension scheme 
interest adjustment (210,000) (272,000) 

--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

Deficit on ordinary activities post 
defined benefit pension scheme 
adjustments and pre taxation (1,832,996) (1,347,011) 

======================= ======================= 

87



 
 

  As restated 
2019 2018 

 £ £ £ 
Employee costs    

Salaries 5,381,962  5,046,066 
Employers national insurance contributions 515,041  485,165 
Staff pension contributions 850,566 

---------------------------------------------------- 

 784,663 
---------------------------------------------------- 

  6,747,569 6,315,894 
Redundancy payments 50,682  16,485 
Agency 367,387  202,996 
Other staff costs 144,755  131,862 
Recruitment 9,053  7,311 
Training and seminars 142,073 

---------------------------------------------------- 
 103,666 

---------------------------------------------------- 

  713,950 462,320 
  -------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- 

  7,461,519 6,778,214 
  7,461,519 6,778,214 
Defined benefit pension costs adjustment  1,399,000 1,049,000 

  
8,860,519 
====================== 

7,827,214 
======================= 

Premises costs    
Rent 229,805  230,600 
Utilities 10,282  10,645 
Repairs and maintenance 20,997  10,026 
Other premises costs 8,266  129,672 

 --------------------------------------------------  ------------------------------------------------ 

  269,350 
====================== 

380,943 
======================= 

Other operating costs    
Travel and subsistence 61,757  63,101 
Telephone 78,893  120,626 
Printing, postage and stationery 77,140  64,716 
Publicity and marketing 14,499  15,186 
IT and other equipment 58,265  120,410 
Insurance 99,036  106,761 
Catering 7,997  9,312 
Support services 298,634  410,003 
Internal auditors remuneration 29,100  23,346 
Auditors remuneration 14,850  12,000 
ISO audit 11,351  4,127 
Professional fees and consultants 90,070  111,129 
Other expenses 9,567  51,521 
Bank charges 1,339  1,163 

  
----------------------------------------------   

-------------------------------------------------- 

  852,498 
====================== 

1,113,401 
======================= 

88



 
  

£ 
2019 

£ 
2018 

£ 
Service delivery direct costs 
Sub-contractors 

 
5,196,397 

  
4,306,840 

Materials 522,773  406,563 
Vehicle expenses 161,768  147,829 
Ex gratia payments 8,826  11,327 
Grants 49,092  71,977 
Other service delivery direct costs 11,717 

---------------------------------------------- 
 11,793 

-------------------------------------------------- 

  5,950,573 
====================== 

4,956,329 
======================= 
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1. Scope of Responsibility 
 

Colchester Borough Homes (CBH), formed in October 2003, is the Arms-Length 
Management Organisation of Colchester Borough Council (CBC), responsible for the 
management and maintenance of the Council's homes and transferred general fund 
services. In 2018/19, these were primarily financed from the Council through a 
Management Fee of £9,315,000. This fee also includes Property Services professional 
fees, Corporate Facilities management fee and CBH Revenue work costs. Property 
Services also manages capital and revenue work costs paid directly by CBC, totalling 
£4,142,000. 

 
There is a formally binding Management Agreement between the Council and CBH in place 
until August 2023, with a review in 2020. This clearly sets out the governance 
arrangements that should apply between the two parties and complies with national best 
practice. 

 
CBH is managed by a Board comprising at least three Council nominees, three tenants, 
three independent members and the Chief Executive. The Memorandum and Articles of 
Association were revised and approved in 2017 to change the number of members on the 
Board, and to give the flexibility to add member(s) of the Executive Management Team. In 
discharging this overall responsibility, Colchester Borough Homes is responsible for putting 
in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. Two 
committees reported directly to the Board: Finance & Audit and Appointments & 
Remuneration. Additionally, there is also a Business  Opportunities Panel and a Residents 
Service Panel. These all have formal, approved terms of reference, which are reviewed 
biennially. 

 
2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

 
Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good stewardship, good 
public engagement and ultimately good outcomes for citizens and the service user. Good 
governance enables the Company to pursue its vision effectively, as well as underpinning 
that vision with mechanisms for control and management of risk. 

 
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by 
which the Company is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts 
to, engages with and serves the community. It enables the Company to monitor the 
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led 
to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 

 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to  achieve policies, 
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process, designed 
to: 

 
• identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Company’s policies, aims 

and objectives 
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• to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they 

be realised 

• to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 

The governance framework has been in place at Colchester Borough Homes for the year 
ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements of 
accounts. 

 
Colchester Borough Homes exercises control through: 

 
• Corporate governance arrangements outlined in the Memorandum & Articles of 

Association, the Code of Governance and the Standing Financial Instructions. 

• The employment of suitably qualified and experienced staff to take responsibility 
for key areas of the business. This is supported by a formal annual appraisal 
system. 

• The preparation of forecasts and budgets that allow the committees and the 
executive officers to monitor the key business risks and financial objectives, and 
identify variances arising during the monthly reporting cycle. 

• Business planning is based on a Strategic Plan, that sets out key actions to enable 
CBH to achieve its goals for the ensuing year, and the Medium Term Delivery Plan 
which is approved by CBC. This cascades through supporting Service Plans and 
individual performance appraisals. The key aims of the new Strategic Plan are: 

 
 Customer Plan 

o To deliver services that reflects the needs and diversity of our 
customers 

o To make it easy for customers to do business with us 
o To improve Customer Satisfaction 

 
 Value for Money, Technology and Investment Plan 

o To invest money in a way that helps customers and communities 
o To use technology to do things better 
o To get the most for the money we spend 

 
 People Plan 

o To support our staff to do the best job possible 
o To make CBH a great place to work 
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 Business Development Plan 
o To protect services by looking after the future of the business 
o To bring in extra income to invest in our services 

 Leadership Plan 
o To show we can be trusted to do what we say we will 
o To be clear about our organisational goals and how to achieve 

them 
 

 Community Plan 
o To raise awareness of our work in the community 
o To bring together organisations and residents for the benefit of the 

community 

 
The Executive Management and the Board will carry out regular reviews of performance 
against objectives and targets detailed in the Strategic Plan. 

 
3. Review of Effectiveness 

 
Colchester Borough Homes conducts, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its 
governance framework, including the system of internal control. The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the Executive Directors and Senior Management 
Team within the Company, who have responsibility for the development and  maintenance 
of the governance environment. This is supported by the Internal Auditor’s annual report, 
and by comments made by external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

 
The Company has produced a Strategic Plan, setting out the direction of the Company until 
2022. This combined with the Medium Term Delivery Plan are the primary guiding 
documents for the Company. From these plans, Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and 
projects are produced. A performance and scrutiny framework is in place to review and 
monitor delivery against these. This is a combination of Board, senior management and 
tenant and CBC scrutiny as well as benchmarking against other providers 

 
CBH’s internal arrangements for ensuring the effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements consist of: 

 
• The board receiving quarterly progress reports on delivery of the Strategic plans 

and the Medium Term Delivery Plan. 

• The Appointments & Remuneration Committee considering significant staffing 
matters. 

• The Finance & Audit Committee considering Internal Audit reports throughout 
the year, reviewing how well strategic risks are identified and managed, and 
monitoring financial performance against budgets. 
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• The Finance & Audit Committee monitoring the regular review of key policies 
against an agreed policy review timetable. 

• The Residents Panel, consisting of Board Members and involved residents, 
reviewing key service areas to help improve service delivery and ensure that 
residents have the opportunity to influence and be involved in governance of 
the Company. 

• The Business Opportunities Panel reviewing performance against the Business 
Development Plan and scrutinising new business opportunities. 

• The production and approval of annual Manager Assurance Statements by 
service directors and their teams to assess compliance with key governance 
processes throughout the year. 

 
CBH will ensure that its arrangements to monitor the effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements remain in place and reflect best practice. 

 
Internal Audit 

 
Internal Audit is delivered through a contract with Mazars LLP (Mazars). A five-year risk- 
based Strategic Audit Plan was initially approved by the Finance and Audit Committee in 
June 2016, following the successful re-appointment of Mazars in April 2016. This is 
refreshed on an annual basis in consultation with the Directors Management Team. The 
updated plan was approved by the Finance & Audit Committee in March 2019. 

 
The audit plan was delivered, with reports issued to senior managers at the conclusion of 
each audit highlighting internal control weaknesses identified and the actions required to 
address them. Recommendations were also reviewed to ensure they were implemented 
properly by the due date. Reports were presented to each Finance & Audit Committee of 
progress against the audit plan as well as the status of outstanding recommendations. 

 
The Head of Internal Audit prepares an annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion (HOIA) report 
that includes an overall opinion on CBH’s internal control environment based on the results 
of the audit work completed. This was considered by the June 2019 Finance & Audit 
Committee. 

 
Internal Audit performance is subject to annual review by the external auditor of CBH in 
order that they can place reliance on its audit work. The Company provided the Council 
with the following assurance regarding the robustness of its governance arrangements 
during the year: 

 
• Internal Audit reports 

• Summary results of Manager Assurance Statements 

• The Annual Report, which incorporates the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report 
(including an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal 
control) 
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External Audit 
 

External Audit of the annual financial statements is undertaken by Scrutton Bland LLP with 
a view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK). 

 
In carrying out the audit work, Scrutton Bland LLP will consider whether the financial 
statements are free from ‘material misstatement’. Materiality is an expression of the relative 
significance of a particular matter in the context of the financial statements as a whole. An 
item will normally be considered material if its omission would reasonably influence the 
decisions of those using the financial statements. 

 
Scrutton Bland LLP will issue a report to management at the conclusion of the audit work. 
This will include a management letter that will contain comments and recommendations for 
improvements in operations and internal control in respect of the Company. This will be 
discussed with management prior to the issue of the final report. The report will also include 
details of significant adjusted and unadjusted items that arise as a result of the audit work. 

 
The Finance & Audit Committee considers the external auditor’s report and recommends 
adoption of the financial statements to the Board. 

 
4. Significant Governance Issues from 2017/18 

 
There were no significant governance issues reported in 2017/18 and no actions brought 
forward to 2018/19 

 
5. Significant Governance Issues 2018/19 

 
The Company conducted a Board Effectiveness Review lead by an external specialist 
consultancy. The review formed a positive conclusion on the Board’s effectiveness and 
made some recommendations for improvements. These recommendations form  the basis 
of an action plan for the coming year. 

 
Other governance issues identified through the Governance Assurance Process in 
2018/19 that are to be addressed in 2019/20 are: 

 
• Procurement training, particularly for medium and low value transactions 
• Review and testing of the Business Continuity Plan 
• Imbed the new risk management process 
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Action Plan 
 

An action plan is set out below to address the governance issues that have been identified 
through the governance assurance process. Progress against this plan will be monitored 
by the Finance and Audit Committee and Board. 

 
 

Description 
 

Action 
 

Responsibility 
Target 
Completion 
Date 

Procurement Additional training Director 
Resources 

of Feb 2020 

Business 
Continuity Plan 

Review and testing of Plan DMT Dec 2019 

Risk 
Management 

Imbed new process Director 
Resources 

of Mar 2020 

Board 
Effectiveness 
Review 

Complete 
plan 

review action CEO Mar 2020 

 
Through completing this action plan the Company is satisfied that it will have made the 
improvements that were identified in its review of effectiveness. 

 
 

Signed:    
(Chair of the Board) 

 
 

Signed:    
(Chair of the Finance & Audit Committee) 

 
 

Signed:    
(Chief Executive Officer) 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 
 
DATE:   03 July 2019 
 
TIME:   5.30 pm 
 
VENUE:  Room 1, Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 7. 
 
SUBJECT:  Business Development Plan 2018 – 2022 Review (Part A) 
 
REPORT BY: Matt Armstrong Head of Asset Management   
    (01206) 506917   
     matthew.armstrong@cbhomes.org.uk 
 
 
FOR DECISION 
 
1. Decision Required 
  
1.1 To note the progress made on the Business Development Plan (BDP) to date 

and agree to change the focus of the BDP as detailed in this report. 
  
2. Purpose of Report  
  
2.1 This report is an update on the progress made to date since the plan was 

established in February 2018.  It aims to review and refocus the plan based 
on lessons learnt from the past 18 months of trading activity to ensure future 
opportunities are maximised. 

  
3. Background & Content 
  
3.1 In September 2017 the Board agreed the new CBH Strategic Plan 2017-22.  

The CBH Strategic Plan is underpinned by six delivery plans, one of which is 
the BDP. 

  
3.2 The Board requested that each of the delivery plans should be reviewed on 

an annual basis to provide an opportunity to review the progress to date and 
the progress towards the achievement of the plan’s objectives. 

  
3.3 The BDP was approved by Board on 22nd February 2018 and can be seen at 

appendix 1 of Part B. 
  
3.4 The aims of the BDP are: 

 
• To protect services by looking after the future of the business; 
• To bring in extra income to invest in our services and our communities. 

  
3.5 The trading ambition by 2022 was to generate a level of income from both 

Council fee-generating projects and from projects in the education and 
housing sector.  To deliver this the we would need to demonstrate: 
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• We have a social enterprise mindset and skill base 
• We are able to create capacity to invest in business development 
• We have new income streams 

  
3.6 To achieve our aims, we planned to: 

 
• Ensure we had access to the required commercial skills 
• Develop a clear product offering, market appraisal and pricing strategy 
• Develop a flexible resourcing strategy to ensure availability of key skills 
• Develop pour marketing and sales capability 

  
3.7 Progress would be measured by: 

 
• £ net additional revenue per annum (net of direct costs) 
• £ profit per annum 
• % of total company income that is non-Council management fee 

  
4. Progress to date against the Action Plan  
  
4.1 The BDP identified a number of focus areas with corresponding actions. 
  
 Developing a flexible resourcing strategy to ensure availability of key 

professional skills 
  
4.2 Action: Establish project team resources to drive the business development 

plan forward. 
 
Completed: A project team was established with the Head of Corporate 
Facilities Management as the lead. 

  
4.3 Action: Restructure the Property Services directorate to meet the anticipated 

business development needs for the Strategic Plan period. 
 
Completed: Property Services underwent a restructure in March 2018 with 
inbuilt capacity to flex at minimal cost to establish the availability of key 
professional skills. Recruitment has been a challenge as roles become vacant 
with two posts within the team we have been unsuccessful in recruiting to.  
This has led to sub-contracting the work which puts pressure on the profits to 
be realised from the initial fee bid.  Further work is being carried out to create 
a more robust structure to cater for staff leaving CBH during projects.  
Retaining staff has also been difficult once they have reached the top of their 
salary grade or less-interesting projects are tasked. 

  
 Developing our product offering, pricing strategy and market appraisal 
  
4.4 Action: Deliver a product and pricing strategy for relevant services and 

assess the market opportunity. 
 
Completed: A pricing framework was established and is in use with Council 
and Amphora (CAHL) commissioned projects.  The same pricing structure is 
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used for external projects with contingency within the fee added dependant on 
the level of risk. 

  
4.5 Action: Review framework and basis for assessing and prioritising business 

opportunities. 
 
Update: As projects complete, we are working on creating a system that will 
provide accurate management data allowing a thorough assessment of the 
fee bid, including time sheet information and staff performance.  This will also 
be used to establish the robustness of the pricing framework and the level of 
productivity and identified those projects where we can maximise profit and 
those projects requiring a high resource for little profit. We have started 
collecting this data on the Mercury project and projects which started this 
financial year so will be able to report our findings later this year. 

  
4.6 Action: Use existing procurement channels to test product and pricing 

strategy and generate market insight. 
 
Update: An on-going assessment is being made of the market and to date 
our pricing framework is lower than architectural practices used by CBC and 
CAHL providing similar services. 

  
 Developing our marketing and sales capability 
  
4.7 Action: Develop sales and marketing plan driven by the outcomes of product 

and pricing strategy. 
 
Update: There has been no proactive marketing of our services to date due to 
a skills gap in this area and initial focus being concentrated around current 
projects. 

  
4.8 Action: Proactively target potential customers and tender/bid for business 

opportunities. 
 
Update: During the 18 months of trading the Council has established a 
number of commercial companies with Amphora Homes (CAHL) being our 
main commissioner of council fee-generating projects.   
 
External trading has been mainly through small school construction projects 
with work being commissioned through existing relationships.  There has 
been no bidding for external contracts to date as we are fully resourced with 
current projects. 

  
 Ensuring the company has access to the required commercial skills 
  
4.9 Action: Agree skills plan to support business development. 

 
Update: The structure incorporates the required skills to run the projects we 
are currently undertaking with specialist skills, such as structural engineering, 
brought in when required.  When team members leave CBH it has proved 
difficult to recruit quickly to posts due to a buoyant construction market and 
having the ability to match private sector salaries. 
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4.10 Action: Design/select and deliver internal skills development programme. 

 
Update: We are currently sponsoring the assistant Quantity Surveyor through 
university as we identified this was a post at risk of being able to recruit to. 

  
4.11 Action: Source required external skills. 

 
Update:  The team has access to commercial skills that are not suitable for 
internal development through an existing framework.  Relationships have 
been built with a number of recruitment agencies to allow roles to be quickly 
filled should the need arise but this hasn’t always materialised. 

  
5. Future works 
  
5.1 The lifting of the HRA debt cap has significantly increased the trading 

opportunities within CBC and CAHL.  In addition, the commissioned work 
carried out to date with CBC and CAHL has been extremely successful and 
relationships between key personnel have strengthened.  This has led to CBH 
being a trusted contractor and being given early sight of emerging projects 
which is more likely to lead to secured future commissions. 

  
5.2 Due to the nature of securing council fee-generating projects we can only 

forecast 2-3 years in advance, however the Councils ambitious 5-year house 
building programme gives confidence that CBH are well-placed to receive 
future commissions. 

  
6. Review of the Business Development Plan  
  
6.1 The diagram at appendix 2 of Part B, shows the BDP original focus of external 

trading.  Due to the opportunities stated in 5.1 a number of proposed changes 
for the 19/20 and 20/21 financial years were agreed at the Business 
Opportunities Panel on the 14th February 2019 which are as follows: 
 

• Focus trading around CBC and CAHL workstreams and become the 
contractor of choice for all future projects; 

• Not to grow or market CBH trading services to external education and 
housing providers; 

• Continue to establish and grow relationships with CBC and CAHL 
Officers and promote work through word of mouth, website content and 
press releases to other local public sector organisations; 

• Set new KPI targets based on anticipated future works. 
  
7. Risk Management 
  
7.1 The risk of maintaining the original focus of the BDP may direct resources to 

the least profitable workstreams.  
 
Strategic risk 3 - New Trading Opportunities achieve insufficient income 
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Although a large proportion of trading activity is forecast through CBC/CAHL, 
the work type is varied and projects have been commissioned for up to 3 
years in advance. 
 
A risk register for the BDP is at appendix 3 in Part B. 

  
8. HR Implications 
  
8.1 None 
  
9. Legal Implications 
  
9.1 None 
  
10. Financial Implications 
  
10.1 Remaining on the original focus will have future financial implications due to 

the level of unknown work or leads under the external trading workstream. 
  
11. Value for Money 
  
11.1 None. 
  
12. Health & Safety Implications 
  
12.1 None. 
  
13. Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
13.1 None. 
  
14. Residents at the Heart 
  
14.1 None. 
  
15. Decision Required? 
  
15.1 Yes 
  
16. Appendices 
  
16.1 The following documents are appended to Part B of this report: 

 
• Appendix 1 - Business Development Plan (Part B) 
• Appendix 2 - Business Development Plan Diagram (Part B) 
• Appendix 3 - Risk Register (Part B) 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES  
BOARD 
 
 
DATE:   03 July 2019 
 
TIME:   5.30 pm 
 
VENUE:  Room 1, Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 8. 
 
SUBJECT: Strategic Risk Register 
 
REPORT BY:  Brian Richardson, Interim Director of Resources 
    07957 371581   
     brian.richardson@cbhomes.org.uk 
 
 
FOR DECISION 
 
1. Decision required 
  
1.1 
 
1.2 
 

To approve the Strategic Risk Register and progress on mitigating actions. 
 
For the Board to suggest and consider any emerging risks that should be 
included on the Strategic Risk Register. 

  
2. Background & Content  
  
2.1 
 
 
 

The Board approved a revised Risk Management Strategy at its meeting on 
12 September 2016. Under this strategy the Finance and Audit Committee 
(F&A) has a remit to scrutinise the Risk Register and to report to the Board on 
high-level and difficult to manage risks.  This is now a standing item on the 
agenda for all future meetings. 

  
2.2 Strategic Risk Register 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
2.5 
 
 
 
 
 

The strategic risk register was presented at the most recent Board meeting on 
24 April 2019 and to the Finance & Audit Committee on 4 June 2019. 
 
The register can be found at Appendix 1. 
 
New Risks 
No new strategic risks or emerging risks have been identified by management 
since the last Board Meeting on 24 April 2019. 
  
Removed Risks 
At its meeting on 4 June 2019 the Finance and Audit Committee agreed that 
Strategic Risk 7 relating to the impact of the Homelessness Act should be 
downgraded to an operational risk.  
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2.6 
 
 
 

This is because the Act has been in operation for in excess of a year and is 
now part of normal operations. The Board received a report on how the 
requirements of the Act is being managed at its meeting on 14 February 2019.  
 
Progress on Further Actions: 
All identified actions remain in progress and are reviewed monthly by the 
DMT. 

3. Financial Implications 
  
3.1 Robust risk management and financial management is required to ensure that 

service delivery is not compromised and that financial exposure is mitigated.   
 
4. 

 
Value for Money Implications 

  
4.1 Strong financial control will identify and drive efficiencies, enabling resources 

(both financial and people) to service provisions that may require it. 
  
5. HR Implications 
  
5.1 All senior members of staff review their operational risks on a quarterly basis 

and are escalating these if deemed necessary. Risk management training will 
be provided to managers later in the year. 

  
6. Residents at the Heart Implications 
  
6.1 Any possible adverse impact on residents is one of the most important factors 

used to identify and score a risk. Resident considerations then form an integral 
part in designing the action plan to mitigate or manage the risk that has been 
identified. 
 

7. Legal, Health & Safety and Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
7.1 All of the above are given due consideration when determining the risk 

exposure to the organisation.  Where the position is unclear, professional third 
party advice is sought. 

 
8. 

 
Risk Management 

  
8.1 
 
 

If the Company does not have a robust Risk Management Strategy and Action 
Plan, then its progress to achieving its key goals will be impaired or 
unachievable. 

  
9. Appendix 
  
9.1  Appendix 1 – Strategic Risk Register  

 Appendix 2 – Risk Heat Map 
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Colchester Borough Homes Strategic Risk Register
Review 12/06/19

Risk No Area Risk Potential Consequences Risk Type Unmitigated 
Score Assurances Current Score Further Actions Completion date Target Score Comments/Progress Update

Programme initiated for the replacement of the Housing Management 
System with involvement from CBC and CBH. High level system scope, 
roles and responsibilities and programme management arrangements 
agreed with CBC.

Complete

Project plan is set to have main housing systems modules procured and 
implemented by September 2020 Sep-20

Properly resourced initiatives.         

Assessment for each project

Properly resourced initiatives.         

Assessment for each project

Review approach/methodology for collated information and monitoring and
consider resourcing requirements where necessary
Develop partnership with the DWP to make most effective use of 
resources 

Continual Review and reforecasting of the financial position to enable
efficient deployment of resources within CBH and the wider HRA Business
Plan

Ongoing

Implementation of Private Sector Letting Scheme (PSL) to offset 
escalating costs of Temporary Accommodation In Place

Engage CBC for early discussions as to possible consequences for the 
social housing provision in the borough Ongoing

Develop Action Plan to manage the impact of the new regulations TBC

6 Strategic 10 10

Uncertainty remains in the sector as it awaits the outcomes from the Social Housing 
Green Paper and how/whether the findings of the Hackett review on Building 
Regulations and Fire Safety become legislation.                
 CBH has developed its first iteration of a Business Plan that will be monitored by 
Board and DMT.   CBH supports the wider HRA business plan as well and is subject 
to regular review and stress testing. Joint procurement meeting with CBC has made 
positive changes to the procurement strategy.

5 Strategic

Impact of Welfare 
Reform adversely 
affecting the ability to 
collect rents from 
tenants

Increasing financial pressure on tenants leading to possibility 
of increasing rent arrears, possible transfers and increase in 
homelessness, increase in court actions

Economic/           
Reputational 16

Maintaining the regular liaison meetings at all levels. Chief Executive keeping a 
watching brief that these are maintained and effective. 6

No surprises, no blame culture
Celebrate what is good
One organisation - where there is a joint accountability across teams and 
resolve                

Ongoing 4

Welfare Reform Strategic Action Group set up with key partners within 
CBC and CBH

Changes in Economic & 
Political environment or 
contractual or difficult to 
manage cost pressures 
may impact on financial 
viability of organisation

The Economic Environment (Inflation/Interest Rates), 
reduction in social housing due to the national house building 
programme, Brexit and changes in planning requirements, 
leading to Management Fee reductions. Contractual and 
difficult to manage cost pressures, such as salary incremental 
growth, not matched by management fee increase leading to 
CBH not being able to maintain contracted level of services. 
CBH service delivery adversely affected due to financial 
constraints

Economic/            
Reputational 15

Increased resources to support tenants to maintain payment and claim 
Discretionary Housing payments; Close work with CBC Housing Benefits. 
Revision to financial inclusion strategy. Creation of digital inclusion strategy. 
Worklessness strategy. Increased payment methods available. Increased 
financial support and assistance. Increased opportunity for DD. Staff trained.  

Maintaining the regular liaison meetings at all levels and work closely with CBC 
colleagues to ensure impact is minimalised to continue to provide a social 
housing solution that fits the requirements of the Borough. Annual management 
fee budget setting process. Annually agreed Delivery Plan. Regular liaison with 
Portfolio Holder. A 5 year financial plan and organisational review to ensure 
financial viability. Reduce length of contact so tendered rates can realisticly be 
maintained throughout the contract term.

Financial inclusion team supporting those in financial difficulty. Positive outcomes 
achieved from this and Grant agreement with CAB for debt advice. Ongoing 
partnership for delivery of change with the local Job Centre Plus 

4 Strategic
Relationship with CBC 
not maintained or 
effective

Detract focus of Board and senior management leading to 
damaging service delivery and new initiatives, ultimately 
closure of ALMO.

Reputational 12

The appointment of the CEO in September 2016, who worked for CBC, has further 
strengthened the relationship between the two organisations, with regular meetings 
between the Chair, both CEOs and Portfolio Holder now taking place. The CEO has 
also been appointed to the Board of Colchester Amphora Homes (CBC's development 
company)

Ongoing12 9

Carry out a core business risk assessment before agreeing new projects.

Ongoing 6

Business Development is a key theme of Proposed Strategic Plan and was presented 
at the Feb'18 Board for approval. There continues to be opportunities via CBC to 
provide professional services for Corporate Projects with other potential opportunities 
presented to the Business Opportunities Panel (BOP) at each meeting. All 
opportunties considered and those approved are in line with the Trading Protocol. 
February 2019 BOP approved a revised business development plan that focused on 

Ongoing 6

Business Development is a key theme of Proposed Strategic Plan and was presented 
at the Feb'18 Board for approval. There continues to be opportunities via CBC to 
provide professional services for Corporate Projects with other potential opportunities 
presented to the Business Opportunities Panel at each meeting. All opportunities 
considered and those approved are in line with the Trading Protocol.

Carry out a core business risk assessment before agreeing new projects.

3 Strategic

 New Trading 
Opportunities achieve 
insufficient income and 
may compromise the 
viability of CBH in the 
medium term

Increased financial pressure on CBH adversely impacting on 
service delivery.  Reduction in Council's confidence in CBH 
through failing to meet key expectations

Reputational/     
Economic 12  Trading protocol created. Business Opportunities Panel in place.

Financial Risk Management for new business agreed. 9

Strategic

Failure of our Housing 
Management Systems 
and associated 
modules/support to 
enable CBH to deliver 
its core services

Service delivery impeded, restricted or compromised by IT 
systems breaking down or not meeting new business 
requirements, resulting in poor service and additional cost

Technological / Economic 
and Financial / 
Reputational

15

2 Strategic
New Trading 
Opportunities Detract 
from Core Business. 

Reduced Performance - Increase in complaints and loss of 
reputation . Reduction in Council's confidence in CBH 
through failing to meet key expectations

Reputational/    
Professional 12

Ring fence new business wherever possible.
Trading protocol created. Business Opportunities Panel in place.
 Financial Risk Management for new business agreed.            
Use of timesheets to record trading and core hours work

9

 Housing Systems Team now part of CBH. Regular ICT Liaison meetings with 
CBC to monitor IT delivery and resolve any issues. CBC moving systems to 
cloud based deployment, improving reliability.

12 9

Capita have given a De-Support Notice for the Capita Housing System from 1 
September 2020. CBH will be able to continue using the system after September 
2020 but it will not be supported. Project Aurora to replace the Capita system is 
underway with a plan to have the new system in operating by September 2020.

1

8. Appendix 1. Strategic Risk Register
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CBH Strategic Risk Register - Heat Map
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES  
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 
DATE:   3 July 2019 
 
TIME:   5.30 pm 
 
VENUE:  Room 1, Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 9 
 
SUBJECT:  New Risk Management Process 
 
REPORT BY:  Brian Richardson, Interim Director of Resources 
    07957 371581   
     brian.richardson@cbhomes.org.uk 
 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
1. Purpose  
  
1.1 
 

To update the Board on the progress made in implementing the new risk management 
arrangements. 

  
1.2 To present to the Board the first strategic plan risk registers in the new format, for the 

Board’s review and approval. 
  
2. Background & Content  
  
2.1 At its meeting on 4 October the Finance and Audit Committee received a presentation 

from the Interim Director of Resources on a revised approach to risk management. The 
Committee approved this approach and requested that the proposal be taken to the 1 
November Board meeting, where it received Board approval to be implemented.  

  
2.2 
 

The key features of the revised risk management process are: 
 

• Risk identification to be objective based, informed by what is critical to achieve 
an objective; 

• Managers to be provided with a “tool kit” to ensure that risks are scored in a 
consistent manner; 

• The numeric scale used to express either the likelihood of a risk occurring, or 
the severity of its impact, to be quantified in Likelihood and Impact Tables. 

• The Board to set its risk appetite against the Impact Table. 
  
2.3 The stages to implement this new approach were agreed as: 

 
• A working party from the Finance and Audit Committee and Board to meet to 

consider examples of the likelihood and impact tables, and agree on the tables 
that CBH would use; 
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• The Board to consider the Impact Table and set their risk appetite against each 
of the impact descriptors; 

• Using these tables, the management team to prepare a new risk register.  
• The risk register would then be brought to the Finance and Audit Committee and 

Board for review and approval. 
• The Risk Management Strategy and Policy would be updated to reflect the new 

arrangements. 
  
3. Progress and Next Steps 
  
3.1 The Working Party met on 14 January 2019 with DMT and developed a draft of both 

the Likelihood and Impact Tables, which included a risk appetite statement.  
 

3.2 A progress report was taken to the Board Meeting on held on 21 February 2019 when 
the draft Likelihood and Impact Tables were shared with the Board. 
 

3.3 The Board meet as a working party on 26 March and agreed the Tables and the risk 
appetite shown on them. The approved Impact Table and Likelihood Table are 
attached as Appendix 1 and 2. 

  
3.4 Following the Board working party, the Director of Resources has been working with 

members of the senior management team to prepare risk registers for each of the 
strategic plans.  

  
3.5 The first two of these risk registers are attached as appendices to this report. These 

risk registers cover delivery of the People Plan, attached as Appendix 3 and delivery 
of the Customer Plan in Appendix 4.  
 
These risk registers were reviewed by the Finance and Audit Committee at its meeting 
on 4 June 2019 and now are presented to the Board for review and approval.   

  
4. Financial Implications 
  
4.1 
 
 

There are no direct financial implications from this report. However robust risk 
management is a key part of corporate governance aimed at ensuring the organisation 
is protected from unnecessary financial risk.  
   

5. Value for Money Implications 
  
5.1 Directly linking risk management to company objectives should assist in driving value 

for money. 
 
6. 

 
HR Implications 

  
6.1 Managers will be trained in the new risk management process and supported as they 

develop a new risk register.  
  
7. Residents at the Heart Implications 
  
7.1 There are no direct implications for residents from this report. More broadly impact of 

residents is one of the most important factors used to identify and score a risk. Resident 
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considerations then form an integral part in designing the action plan to mitigate or 
manage the risk that has been identified. 
  

8. Legal, Health & Safety and Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
8.1 There are no direct implications from the report, but the risk assessment process would 

consider these areas in scoring and controlling risks. 
 
9. 

 
Risk Management 

  
9.1 If the Company does not have a robust Risk Management Strategy and Action Plan, 

then its progress to achieving its key goals will be impaired or unachievable. 
  
10. Appendices 
  
10.1 • Appendix 1 – Impact Table 

• Appendix 2 – Likelihood Table 
• Appendix 3 – People Plan Risk Register 
• Appendix 4 – People Plan Action Plan 
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Appendix 1

Risk Impact Table

Descriptor Minor Significant Serious Major

1 6 17 22

Service delivery failure Unavailability or significant impairment of: 

Priority Service for 1/2 day, or Single 

Customer Facing Service for up to 1 day, or 

Back Office Systems for up to 2 days. 

Unavailability or significant impairment of: Priority 

Service for 1 day, or Multiple Customer Facing Services 

1 day, or Single Customer Facing Service for up to 3 

days, or Back Office Systems for up to 3 days. 

Unavailability or significant impairment of: Priority Service for 2 

to 4 days, or Multiple Customer Facing Services  for 2 to 5 days, 

or Single Customer Facing Service for up to 1 week, or Back Office 

Systems up to 1.5 weeks 

Unavailability or significant impairment of: Priority 

Service for in excess of 4 days, or Multiple Customer 

Facing Services for in excess of 5 days, or Single 

Customer Facing Service for over 1 week, or Back 

Office Systems for over 1.5 weeks 

Rare 2 ‐ combined score 2 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 12 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 34 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 44

Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 4 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 24 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 68 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 88

Possible 6 ‐ combined score 6 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 36 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 102 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 132

Likely 10 ‐ combined score 10 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 60 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 170 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 220

Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 16 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 96 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 272 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 352

Appetite ‐ likelihood rating Almost Certain ‐ 16 Likely ‐ 10 Unlikely ‐ 4 Rare ‐ 2

Staff welfare Minor injuries or stress with no workdays lost 

or minimal or no medical treatment. No 

impact on staff morale  

Injuries or stress level requiring some medical 

treatment, potentially 1 or 2 workdays lost. Potential 

impact on morale & performance of small number of 

individuals or a single team 

Injuries or stressful experience requiring medical treatment and 

up to 6 workdays lost. Major impact on morale & performance of 

several teams 

Life threatening or multiple serious injuries or worse 

injury, or prolonged work place stress. Severe 

impact on morale & service performance 

throughout most of the organisation

Rare 2 ‐ combined score 2 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 12 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 34 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 44

Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 4 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 24 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 68 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 88

Possible 6 ‐ combined score 6 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 36 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 102 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 132

Likely 10 ‐ combined score 10 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 60 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 170 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 220

Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 16 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 96 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 272 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 352

Appetite ‐ likelihood rating Almost Certain ‐ 16 Almost Certain ‐ 16 (see Note B.1) Possible ‐ 6 Rare ‐ 2

Compliance breach Minor breach of internal procedures, no 

consequential loss but resulting in adverse 

audit report 

Minor external compliance breach with no financial 

sanction. Significant breaches of internal procedures 

resulting in a financial loss of up to £1,000, adverse 

audit finding

Breach of external regulations with likelihood of financial cost up 

to £10,000 and/or other form of sanction. Or significant breaches 

of internal procedures resulting in financial loss  of £1,001 to 

£10,000.  

Significant breach of external regulations requiring 

disclosure to regulatory body. Likelihood of financial 

cost in excess of £10,000 and/or other form of 

sanction. Or significant breaches of internal 

procedures resulting in financial loss in excess of 

£10,000 

Rare 2 ‐ combined score 2 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 12 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 34 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 44

Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 4 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 24 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 68 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 88

Possible 6 ‐ combined score 6 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 36 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 102 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 132

Likely 10 ‐ combined score 10 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 60 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 170 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 220

Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 16 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 96 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 272 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 352

Appetite ‐ likelihood rating Almost Certain ‐ 16 Possible ‐  6 Unlikely ‐ 4 Rare ‐ 2

Reputation damage Adverse comments amongst staff no external 

impact. Stakeholders not aware

Adverse local press/public awareness, low level 

negative social media comment, stakeholder aware of 

issue

Extended local press coverage, extensive negative social media, 

negative coverage in industry press, criticism from stakeholders 

Adverse national media coverage / public 

awareness, intervention by stakeholder

Rare 2 ‐ combined score 2 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 12 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 34 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 44

Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 4 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 24 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 68 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 88

Possible 6 ‐ combined score 6 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 36 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 102 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 132

Likely 10 ‐ combined score 10 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 60 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 170 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 220

Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 16 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 96 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 272 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 352

Appetite ‐ likelihood rating Almost Certain ‐ 16 Likely ‐ 10 Likely ‐ 10 (see Notes B.2) Rare ‐ 2

Direct financial loss Between £0 and £5,000  Between £5,000 and £20,000 Between £20,000 and £50,000 In excess of £50,000

Appetite ‐ likelihood rating:

Rare 2 ‐ combined score 2 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 12 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 34 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 44

Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 4 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 24 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 68 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 88

Possible 6 ‐ combined score 6 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 36 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 102 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 132

Likely 10 ‐ combined score 10 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 60 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 170 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 220

Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 16 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 96 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 272 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 352

Normal operations normal operations Likely ‐ 10 Possible ‐ 6 Rare ‐ 2 Rare ‐ 2

Rare 2 ‐ combined score 2 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 12 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 34 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 44

Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 4 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 24 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 68 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 88

Possible 6 ‐ combined score 6 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 36 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 102 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 132

Likely 10 ‐ combined score 10 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 60 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 170 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 220

Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 16 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 96 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 272 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 352

Trading trading Almost Certain ‐ 16 Likely ‐ 10 Possible ‐  6 Rare ‐ 2

Customer and public welfare Minor nuisance or disturbance to small 

number of people for duration of up to 3 

days. No physical injuries.

Persistent nuisance or disturbance to small number of 

people for in excess of 3 days, or short duration 

nuisance or disturbance to large number of people, or 

minor injury to a person requiring minimal or no 

medical treatment.

Injuries or stress level requiring some medical treatment, of a 

severity that for an employed person could result in up to 3 

workdays lost, or minor injury to multiple people, or significant 

nuisance or disturbance to a large number of people for 2 to 3 

days

Serious injuries or stressful experience requiring 

medical treatment and of a severity that for an 

employed person could result in more than 5 

workdays lost to one person, or injury requiring 

medical treatment to multiple people, or life 

threatening injury , or significant nuisance or 

disturbance to a large number of for in excess of 3 

days

Rare 2 ‐ combined score 2 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 12 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 34 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 44

Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 4 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 24 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 68 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 88

Possible 6 ‐ combined score 6 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 36 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 102 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 132

Likely 10 ‐ combined score 10 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 60 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 170 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 220

Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 16 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 96 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 272 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 352

Appetite ‐ likelihood rating Likely ‐ 10 Possible ‐ 6 Rare ‐ 2 Rare ‐ 2

business objective / strategic Little impact on the organisational strategy or 

on it achieving objectives

Some impact on organisational strategy or on achieving 

objectives but this could be resolved within existing 

resources.

Significant impact on the organisational strategic/critical 

objectives and would require additional resources to overcome

Would require a significant change in organisational 

strategy/critical objectives 

Rare 2 ‐ combined score 2 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 12 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 34 Rare 2 ‐ combined score 44

Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 4 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 24 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 68 Unlikely 4 ‐ combined score 88

Possible 6 ‐ combined score 6 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 36 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 102 Possible 6 ‐ combined score 132

Likely 10 ‐ combined score 10 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 60 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 170 Likely 10 ‐ combined score 220

Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 16 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 96 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 272 Almost certain 16 ‐ combined score 352

Appetite ‐ likelihood rating Almost Certain ‐ 16 Almost Certain ‐ 16 Likely ‐ 10 Unlikely ‐ 4

Appetite ‐ heat map

Appetite ‐ heat map

Appetite ‐ heat map

Appetite ‐ heat map

Appetite ‐ heat map

Appetite ‐ heat map                  Normal 

Operations

Appetite ‐ heat map                  Trading

Appetite ‐ heat map
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Notes
A. Impact descriptors

A.1) Service Delivery Failure

A.2) Staff Welfare

A.3) Compliance Breach

A.4) Reputation Damage

A.5) Direct Financial Loss

A.6) Customer and Public Welfare

A.7) Strategic

B. Appetite ‐Likelihood Rating
B.1)

B.2)

This descriptor is used to assess the impact on any person or groups affected by an event. The impact on CBH's tenants, leaseholders and other service users is considered here. It also covers members of the general public who have no dealings with CBH but may 

be affected by something CBH does or does not do. This could include, but is not limited to, people living adjacent to CBH managed properties.

This descriptor recognises that there may be events which do not affect any of the other descriptors but nevertheless prevent CBH achieving a strategy or objective. This descriptor enables these risks to be assessed and managed.

The likelihood score reflects that some of the work undertaken by CBH staff, for example in carrying out responsive repairs, visiting construction sites and for Housing Officers meeting a wide variety of clients, has greater level of risk than exclusively office based 

work

The appetite likelihood rating recognises that CBH sometimes have to take decisions that will lead to unfavourable press reaction. Past examples of this have been decisions taken about ASB cases

This descriptor considers the impact on CBH's reputation arising as a consequence of an event. This could include impact on CBH's reputation from the actions of one of its contractors

This descriptor is used to assess financial loss arising from any event except for a compliance breach, where the Compliance Breach descriptor is used to assess the financial impact. The risk appetite rating gives two appetites: one for normal operations and one for 

trading, where it is recognised that the additional uncertainty inherent to trading activity requires a higher risk appetite.

A priority service would be one that has significant and immediate impact of customers, for example the responsive repair service, or the Gateway Housing Options register.  Customer Facing Services are ones used by customers such as the CBH website, payment 

taking systems, the contact centre and service desks at Greenstead Housing Office and the Library. The Capita Housing system is designated a customer facing system as its unavailability impairs many of the other elements of front line service delivery, not least 

repairs and the Contact Centre.  The loss of use of let properties is not considered a Service Delivery Failure under these risk impact descriptors, it would be assessed under Customer and Public Welfare.  Back Office Services are services used only by staff and do 

not directly or immediately affect customers, though prolonged loss of these services would start to impact on customer facing service delivery 

This descriptor only considers the risks to staff delivering CBH services. This includes CBH employees, agency staff paid by CBH and staff employed by CBH's contractors whilst working on CBH's projects. Impact on the welfare of all other people is considered under 

the Customer and Public Welfare impact descriptor

This descriptor covers all forms of compliance breach in the broadest sense. Included under this would be a breach of CBH's own internal policies such as its Standing Financial Instructions or Contract Procedure Rules, failure to meet a statutory duty, for example 

the Homeless Act or safeguarding, failure to complete government returns, or failure to comply with tax or VAT legislation. This descriptor would include compliance breaches by CBH's contractors where CBH was also liable for any resulting penalties
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Appendix 2

Likelihood Table

Descriptor Score Frequency of event occurring Time Period
Rare 2 Would only happen in very exceptional circumstances Less than once in 10 years
Unlikely 4 Not expected to happen but definite potential exists - unlikely to occur. Once in 10 years

Possible 6 May occur occasionally, has happened before on occasions - reasonable chance of 
occurring. Once in 5 years

Likely 10 Strong possibility that this could occur - could occur several times. Once in a year
Almost 
certain 16 This is expected to happen frequently / in most circumstances - more likely to occur 

than not. Once in 3 months

112



Appendix 3 
Strategic Plan Risk Register 

Plan: People Plan 
 

AIM: become a Times Top 100 not-for-profit employer 
By: 

• Creating a working culture and environment that ensures staff perform at their best 
• Matching the skills, experience and outlook of our workforce to our vision and purpose 
• Making our staff feel valued and supported 
• Ensuring everyone is recognised and rewarded fairly 
• Providing a better work-life balance for staff. 

Measured by: 
• % of employees who would recommend CBH as an employer  
• % of staff who are supported by their manager to do the job to the best of their ability  
• % of staff who feel empowered to make decisions and have ownership of their work. 

 
Ref Risk and  

Risk Impact Descriptor 
Current Consequence Mitigation Owner 

I L C 
 
1. 

 
Creating a working culture and environment that ensures staff perform at their best 
 

 

1a 
 

RISK: Project management 
function not suitably 
resourced, or resource not 
maintained through to 
completion of plan 

   Project not effectively managed, 
effort not focused or maintained to 
ensure outcomes successfully 
delivered  

Staff capacity identified to 
manage project. DMT, SMT and 
Board progress reviews to ensure 
project activity continues  
 

DMT 

 Business objective / strategic 17 4 68    
        
1b RISK: Actions identified in the 

action plan do not result in the 
desired outcome of improved 

   No improvement in working culture 
or staff performance 

Leadership charter; 
Management training; 
Appraisal process review; 

Head of 
HR & Gov 
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Ref Risk and  
Risk Impact Descriptor 

Current Consequence Mitigation Owner 

I L C 
working culture and staff 
performance  

 Business objective / strategic 17 6 102    
        
1c RISK: CBH fails to achieve IIP 

platinum 
   Miss key success measure for plan Gap analysis done;  

Project plan to get organisation to 
platinum standard; 
Team engaged  
 

Head of 
HR & Gov 

 Business objective / strategic 6 6 36    
 Reputational 1 6 6    
        
1d RISK: The new Appraisal 

System fails to result in 
improved staff performance, 
either through its design or 
how it is utilised 

   Golden thread not imbedded 
throughout organisation 
Lack of direction 
Staff not recognised or supported 
Base line for performance 
management not set 

Consult with DMT SMT and staff 
forum; 
Research what other 
organisations do; 
Explore how to link to Balanced 
Scorecard 

Head of 
HR & Gov 

 Business objective / strategic 6 6 36    
        
1e RISK: % improvement in staff 

survey results will not be 
achieved  

   Miss key success measure 
Loss of confidence in People Plan 
Likely that staff performance has 
not improved 

Strategy action plan; 
Mini pulse surveys throughout 
year to identify areas for further 
actions 

Head of 
HR & Gov 

 Business objective / strategic 6 4 24    
        
 
2 
 

 
Resourcing the Organisation 
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Ref Risk and  
Risk Impact Descriptor 

Current Consequence Mitigation Owner 

I L C 
2a RISK: CBH unable to recruit 

suitable staff for certain 
positions 

   Organisation performance drops 
through lack of high-quality staff; 
Additional cost/poor VFM through 
having to employ skilled agency 
workers to cover hard to fill posts or 
to outsource functions where staff 
cannot be found to run them;  
Additional cost/poor VFM through 
having to provide extra training to 
bring staff to required standard. 
Direct financial cost of re-
advertising roles 

Review of advertising and 
recruitment process. 
Use of search company to identify 
candidates 
Flexibility on starting point within 
pay grade; 
Use of market supplement for key 
difficult to fill positions. 
Make CBH a desirable place to 
work. 
 

Head of 
HR & Gov 

 Financial 1 10 10    
 Business objective / strategic 6 10 60    
        
2b RISK: Management 

restructure leads to breach of 
employment legislation and / 
or employee legal challenge 

   Employment tribunal 
Damage to staff morale 
Drain on management time and 
financial cost 
 

Qualified HR team advising on 
restructure; 
Following ACAS code of practice 
and employment legislation; 
Consult unions. 

Head of 
HR & Gov 

 reputation 6 2 12    
 Staff welfare 6 2 12    
 financial 17 2 34    
        
 
3 
 

 
Skill development 

 

3a RISK: Poor level of IT skills in 
some staff adversely impact 
on adopting new technology 
to improve performance   

   Staff unable to use Office 365 and 
SharePoint effectively, or are slow 
to adopt these technologies 

e-learning modules; 
classroom training courses; 
“share and learn”; 

Head of 
HR & Gov 
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Ref Risk and  
Risk Impact Descriptor 

Current Consequence Mitigation Owner 

I L C 
Benefits from new technology not 
realised  

Head of ICT and Business 
Improvement to coordinate 
training needs with HR. 

 Business objective / strategic 17 16 272    
        
 
4 
 

 
Reward and recognition 

 

4a RISK: Unable to increase the % 
of staff happy with their pay 
and benefits 

   Unable to meet a KPI target as staff 
continue to be unhappy with 
benefits package  

Benchmarking pay levels for 
difficult to recruit posts; 
Review and publicise benefit 
package; 
Pension seminar; 
Total reward statements.  

Head of 
HR & Gov 

 Business objective / strategic 1 10 10    
        
 
5 
 

 
Wellbeing 

 

5a RISK: generic H&S risk to staff 
including breach or failure to 
address legislation, lone 
worker risks, abuse / assault 
risk from customers or others, 
accidents in offices or work 
sites / homes, exposure to 
harmful substances or objects, 
unsafe work places 

   Death or injury to staff 
HSE penalties, legal penalties 
 

Qualified H&S manager; 
Assure H&S reporting/monitoring 
system; 
H&S work plan; 
Lone worker system; 
H&S report to DMT; 
Training and induction for all staff; 
H&S standing item at team 
meetings; 
Insurance. 

PS Head of 
Operations 
 
H&S 
Manager 

 Compliance breach 6 4 24    
 Staff welfare 6 4 24    
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Strategic Plan Risk Register 
Plan: CUSTOMER PLAN 

 
AIMS: To achieve top 25% satisfaction compared to other LA owned housing companies and LAs 

By: 
• To deliver services that reflect the needs and diversity of our customers 
• To make it easy for customers to do business with us 
• To improve customer satisfaction. 

Measured by: 
• % overall customer satisfaction  
• % satisfaction that we listen to & act on customers’ views  
• % customers accessing services digitally  
• Completed resident engagement impact assessments. 

 
 

Ref Risk and  
Risk Impact Descriptor 

Current 
Score 

Consequence Mitigation Owner 

I L C 
 
1. 

 
AIM: Empower staff and support a customer-focused culture 
 

 

1a 
 

RISK: Project management 
function not suitably 
resourced, or resource not 
maintained through to 
completion of plan 

   Project not effectively 
managed, effort not focused or 
maintained to ensure outcomes 
successfully delivered  

Staff capacity identified to 
manage project. DMT, SMT and 
Board progress reviews to 
ensure project activity 
continues  
 

DMT 

 Objective / strategic 17 6 102    
        
1b RISK: Staff cease acting in 

accordance with the 
customer service training 

   Staff do not act in customer-
focused manner, no 

embedding training sessions on 
going; 

KB/KW 
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Ref Risk and  
Risk Impact Descriptor 

Current 
Score 

Consequence Mitigation Owner 

I L C 
they received in 2017, or 
new staff are not 
appropriately trained  

improvement in customer 
satisfaction 

Customer service champions in 
teams; 
Induction process; 
PADs process requires staff to 
demonstrate commitment to 
customer focus. 

 Objective / strategic 17 6 102    
        
1c RISK: Staff are not 

empowered to make the 
decisions  

   Customer service does not 
improve, customers face delays 
while staff check with managers 
before acting. 
Poor VFM as managers and 
team leaders get involved in 
decisions that staff should have 
taken 

Senior management review 
and decision-making analysis; 
Job accountability statements, 
departmental procedures to 
reflect delegated authority; 
PADs process.  
Actions to be added to 
Customer and People Plans 

DMT/SMT 

 Objective / strategic 6 10 60    
 financial 1 6 6    
        
 
2 
 

 
AIM: Communicate more clearly with customers about services and be consistent in way they are delivered 

 

2a RISK: Services not 
delivered in consistent 
manner, including when 
delivered by contractors 

   Increased incidence of 
complaints and of complaints 
being upheld through both 
internal and Ombudsman 
process. Increase in number of 
councillor and MP enquiries 
where CBH at fault. Fall in 
customer satisfaction. 

Clear corporate service 
standards. “My Customer 
Focus” tools used to agree 
consistent approach to top ten 
service policy challenges 
identified by service teams.  
CBH customer liaison officers 
to provide customer support 

KB / SMT 
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Ref Risk and  
Risk Impact Descriptor 

Current 
Score 

Consequence Mitigation Owner 

I L C 
Compensation payments and 
staff time managing the case. 

on major projects delivered by 
contractors; 
System to update on 
contractor repairs completions 
being developed; 
Complaints process, CSC 
feedback; 
Customer given direct access to 
housing officer for on-going 
cases.  

 Compliance breach 6 10 60    
 reputation 6 6 36    
 financial 1 10 10    
        
 
3 
 

 
Creating insight into our customers and using it to improve service delivery 

 

3a RISK: Lack of a plan, or 
failure to implement a plan 
that would use customer 
insight data to improved 
service delivery 

   Resources used to collect 
insight data are wasted. 
Opportunity to improve 
services is lost 
Failure to meet ambition to 
anticipate customer’s needs 
before they contact us 

Plan to be developed to use 
insight data to improve service 
delivery 

KW 

 Objective / strategic 6 10 60    
        
3b RISK: Process to learn from 

complaints to improve 
service delivery not 
developed or effective  

   Similar types of complaint are 
repeated with associated loss 
of customer satisfaction and 

Trends highlighted in monthly 
balance scorecards reported to 
DMT/SMT  
 

KW / NA 
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Ref Risk and  
Risk Impact Descriptor 

Current 
Score 

Consequence Mitigation Owner 

I L C 
cost in officer time and possibly 
compensation 

 Compliance breach 6 6 36    
 reputation 6 6 36    
 financial 1 10 10    
        
 
4 

 
AIM: Improve access to services 
 

 

4a RISK: existing systems, 
particularly the Housing 
Management System, limit 
opportunity for channel 
shift 

   Not possible to achieve 
significant channel shift around 
main rent or repair transactions 
No improvement in % accessing 
services digitally KPI  

Project to replace Housing 
Management System, with 
enabling channel shift a 
requirement for new system. 
Website based tools, as used 
for Housing Options, provide 
ways to offer alternative access 
to some services 
 
   

KW / KB 

 Objective / strategic 6 16 96    
        
4b RISK: CBC/CBH has no 

working Housing 
Management System as 
existing system ceases to 
function before new 
Housing Management 
System is fully operational 

   Operating efficiency severely 
affected without a reliable 
housing system; 
Prolonged downtime if housing 
system not supported; 
Increased operating costs; 
Increased risks of poor service 
delivery and complaints. 

Project to replace the Housing 
Management System 
underway. 
Current supplier has confirmed 
that housing system can be 
used after the De-Support 
date, but without any support.  
 

Aurora Project Board 

 Financial 6 4 24    
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Ref Risk and  
Risk Impact Descriptor 

Current 
Score 

Consequence Mitigation Owner 

I L C 
 Service delivery failure 17 4 88    
        
 
5 

 
KPI’s 
 

 

5.1 RISK: No improvement in 
% satisfaction that listened 
and acted on customers 
views 

   Failure to meet key objective 
performance measure 

Completing customer impact 
assessments for all changes 
that effect tenants, covering 
service delivery and policy 
changes; 
Resident Panel; 
Learning from complaints; 
Transactional surveys to 
monitor satisfaction within 
case management period 

KW  /KB 

 Objective / strategic 6 6 36    
 Reputation 6 6 36    
        
 
6 

 
Trusted choice for local housing, property and community services 
 

 

6.1 Health and safety risk to 
customers and public 
including unintentional 
breaches of legislation / 
best practice, exposure to 
hazardous substances, 
failure to maintain housing 
stock and public buildings 
to safe standard. 

   Death or injury to customers or 
public; 
Facilities being closed as 
unsafe; 
HSE penalties, legal penalties 

Qualified H&S manager; 
Qualified experience staff 
managing properties; 
Assure H&S 
reporting/monitoring system; 
H&S work plan; 
H&S report to DMT; 
Insurance. 

PS Head of 
Operations / 
Corporate Facilities 
Manager 
 
H&S Manager 
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Ref Risk and  
Risk Impact Descriptor 

Current 
Score 

Consequence Mitigation Owner 

I L C 
 Compliance breach 6 4 24    
 Customer and public 

welfare 
6 4 24    
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CBH Strategic Plan assurance report 
Q4 2018-19 

 

Customer plan 

Top 25% ALMO for satisfaction by 2022 
 

Value for Money, Technology & Investment plan 

Lowest 25% cost per property in the East by 2022 

 

People plan 

Times top 100 not-for-profit employer by 2022 

 

Business development plan 

£1.6m from trading income by 2022 (subject to annual review) 

 

Leadership plan 

Leadership that inspires trust and confidence in CBH by 2022 

 

Community plan 

A community enabling leader for Colchester by 2022 

 

 
 

Key 
 

On target 
Currently below target but 

expected to achieve 
target 

Unlikely to achieve target 
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Customer plan 

Top 25% ALMO for satisfaction by 2022 

Highlights 

• Customer insight dashboard launched with senior managers

• Further transactional customer satisfaction measures developed and agreed

• Upgrade to customer web portal – improved access from mobile devices. CSC
can now access same view as customer from website.

• Repairs handbook has been launched to help diagnose repairs and first call
resolution

• Locator workshop for CSC staff to improve Schedule of Rates (SOR) codes and
right first time

• iPads installed in 4 communal lounges in sheltered schemes to assist with
channel shift.

• CBC Customer Service Centre call volumes to Housing management and
Housing Register continue to decrease

• Tenants involved in new contract cleaning procurement for sheltered
accommodation

• Promotional poster for communal blocks “Who is your community housing
officer?” launched, also included in Spring edition of Housing News and Views

• Customer Champions have developed Mary Gober (customer service) refresh
quiz for all teams to use in their team meetings

• Launched SMS text for involvement – result new tenants attended Your Views
our Future event

• Customer workshop to test the new website and suggestions made for
improvement considerations.

• Satisfaction surveys and impact assessments now being completed for capital
works

• 1266 tenants have been involved in helping us to improve service provisions
and standards throughout the year

• 115 impact assessments completed to measure the impact of our tenant
engagement activities.

Forward look 

• Launch of new
website

• Arrears letter
review – new
format to
indicate more
clearly where
the customer is
in the arrears
process.

• Service
planning
utilising
customer
insight
priorities.

• Customer
involvement in
general needs
contract
cleaning
procurement

• Agreeing
customer
satisfaction
survey areas

• Customer
insight –
analysing no
access
properties for
responsive
repairs

Risks, issues & support required 

• One repairs contractor is underperforming. Main concerns are poor
customer communication relating to plastering and flooring works. Site
teams are meeting weekly and going through work in progress and updating
the system for access, variation issues

• Housing Investment Programme satisfaction has declined for the quarter,
due to two contractors. One has now left, and the another is about to. Works
are being re-tendered.

Progress measure Latest 
2018/19 
target 

2022 
target 

% overall satisfaction 92 95.0 98 

% satisfaction that we listen to & act on views of customers NA 66 71 

% customers accessing services digitally NA 

Completed resident engagement impact assessments 115 26 60 
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Value for Money, Technology & Investment plan 

Lowest 25% cost per property in the East by 2022 

Highlights 

• Aurora programme – agreed high level spec, project team & high-level
timeline. Engaged technical consultant & Programme & Project Manager.
Exploring procurement options & market engagement. timeline agreed at
Principal Liaison

• Phase 1 of SharePoint project completed with all teams’ file storage areas
built and in use. Transfer of files from old server-based drives well
advanced in preparation for the drives to be made read only.

• Staff training in SharePoint and Office 365 continues both through
externally run training sessions and through informal support from the ICT
team.

• Automated Section 20 calculations populating correspondence without
need for manual intervention

• SMS text launch for tenant engagement – VFM communication method

• Discussions started with CBC regarding self-check in at the Community
Hub

• Launch of Windows 10 to replace VDI.

• Migration of Capita systems to Microsoft Azure (cloud).

• Reviewed guidance in Locator plus, to assist the CSC in accurately
diagnosing & raising repairs - anticipated decline in number of variations
being actioned on repairs.

• Automation of production & mailing garage discount & Wifi refund letter –
process developed will enable future automation for similar work

• Reviewed Technology Plan

Forward look 

• Balanced scorecards
being used to
monitor performance
on a monthly basis
starting in April with
a review of 2018/19

• Aurora – workshops,
detailed
specification,
preparation of tender
documentation,
planning for data
cleansing &
migration

• Completion of WiFi
installation in
sheltered and
Greenstead Housing
Office

• New process to
report trading
profitability and
monitor Design
Team productivity
and capacity will be
fully operational from
April

• Systems interface
will enable all gas
servicing to
automatically update
in our systems –
tested & awaiting
deployment by
contractor.

Risks, issues & support required 

• Capita de-support notice received for main housing management system,
effective from September 2020 – challenging timeframe to procure &
implement a replacement system. In negotiation with Capita – meeting
scheduled for April. Phased implementation to be considered.

• Greenstead WiFi – connectivity impacting significantly on productivity.
Long delays to installation & repeated surveys to outline requirements –
escalated to CBC.

• Teething issues with Windows 10 – generally an improvement on VDI, but
CBC still resolving outstanding issues.

Progress measure Latest 
2018/19 
target 

2022 
target 

Cost per unit (repairs & housing management combined) £879 
£1022 

Top 
Quartile 

% staff who feel their productivity has improved with technology 39% 40% 75% 

£ reinvested  £0 0 TBC 

Cashable savings achieved £0 TBC TBC 

127



People plan 

Times top 100 not-for-profit employer by 2022 

Highlights 

• 2019 staff survey completed and results analysed. All three KPI targets
within the People Plan exceeded and results communicated to staff

• All SMT members discussed staff survey results with teams and
identified new actions for the People Plan action plan

• Met with IIP assessor to discuss our assessment and plans for
assessment at platinum level

• Local Government Association has completed interview process and
produced a report which will feed into the smarter working review of
senior management arrangements

• Equality Statement and revised objectives agreed by the Board

• Successfully recruited to key roles including Health, Safety,
Environmental and CDM Manager and Board Assurance Officer

• Revised special leave policy agreed

• Free BMI testing and information on healthy eating provided to staff

• 4 new starters & 7 leavers in Q4. New starter induction day held in
February

• Two members of staff have commenced their Management
Apprenticeships

• Data Protection Awareness E-Learning module written and launched to
all staff

• Added Total Mobile user guide to Learning Pool portal

• 15 members of staff within Housing Options have chosen to take up
supervisions with an external counsellor in the last quarter.

• Training held during Q4: Office 365, Homelessness Reduction Act,
Basic Scaffold Inspection, 18th Edition, Manual Handling mop up & new
starters, Conflict & Resolution, CIH – The Big Conversation, Unvented
Course, CORE online, = Homelessness Conference, Sharps Training,
Working at Heights & Ladders and Steps, Gas Safety Regulations, Intro
to Homelessness Law, Asbestos Awareness and Employment Law
update.

Forward look 

• Annual review of
People Plan at April
Board.

• Working Smarter
review of senior
management
arrangements

• Consultation with staff
and managers on
appraisals

• Launch of the
Leadership
Commitment

• Review of
Performance
Capability Policy and
Ill Health Policies

• Military Correctional
Training Centre- 
looking into placement
within Corporate
Facilities Team

• Review of recruitment
process and
procedures

• Launch of E-Learning
modules: Equality and
Diversity for Staff and
Equality and Diversity
for Managers,
Asbestos awareness

• Free men's health
checks by CHAPS, the
Men's Health Charity
in April

Risks, issues & support required 

• Recruitment for hard to fill posts continues to be a risk. Roles are now
being advertised more widely, however pay levels continue to be an
issue.

• Technology most significant area for dissatisfaction with staff – being
addressed via VfM, Technology & Investment plan

Progress measure Latest 
2018/19 
target 

2022 
target 

% of staff who feel empowered to make decisions and have 
ownership of their work 

79% 75% 78% 

% of staff who are supported by their manager to do the job to the 
best of their ability 

84% 76% 79% 

% of employees who would recommend CBH as an employer 82% 76% 79% 
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Business development plan 

£1.6m from trading income by 2022 

Highlights 

• Mercury Rising Phase 1 main contract works on site and currently on
programme.

• Phase 1 of Castle Park WC project completed on time and within
budget. Phase 2 currently on site.

• Heritage Highlighted project being developed to tender. Likely that
Roman Wall and Castle lighting now to be tendered separately due to
ongoing issues with approval of lighting design for Castle by Historic
England.

• Town centre water fountains project tendered. Currently awaiting
instructions from Council to commission successful contractor.

• Classroom remodelling project for Roach Vale school tendered and
works due on-site w/c 08/04/19.

• Corporate Facilities Management (CFM) commissioned by CBC
Museums to survey Roman Church on Southway and Natural History
Museum ahead of potential grant funded refurbishment projects.

• CFM submitted fee bid to CBC for delivery of Shrub End Depot
redevelopment project. CFM likely to be commissioned in June 2019.
Commission worth £60k (£40k CBH direct fee).

Forward look 

• Works on HRA Phase
2 project commence
May 2019.

• Roman Wall condition
survey commences
May 2019.

• Mercury Rising Phase
2 works commence on
site July 2019.

• Works on next phase
of sheltered housing
refurbishment
programme to be
brought forward to
May 2019. Overall
project fee c£840k.

• c£418k fees confirmed
and c£271k fees
possible, but to be
confirmed for 19/ 20
financial year.

• Pricing for roofing
project and fixed
electrical wire testing
for local organisation.

Risks, issues & support required 

• Final income for 18/19 - net loss of £139k (after overhead and Corporate
Facilities funding shortfall) as some works expected for 18/19 have been
delayed.

• Recruitment challenges mean that additional resources will have to be
sourced from external consultants/ agencies to deliver Mercury Theatre
and HRA Phase 2 projects, reducing direct fee income to CBH.

 Progress measure Latest 
2018/19 
target 

2022 
target1 

£ net additional revenue per annum (net of external specialist 
costs) 

£216k £312k £1.6m 

£ net profit per annum after overhead (£139k) £(8k) £235k 

% of total company income that is non-Council management fee 1.61% 2.40% 2.97% 

1 cumulative total for 2018/19 to 2021/22 
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Leadership plan 

Leadership that inspires trust and confidence in CBH by 2022 

Highlights 

• Working group established - first meeting held in January.

• Recruitment of Chair and Independent Board Member
o Job and Person specification created and agreed
o Method of recruitment and timeframes agreed.

• Board Effectiveness Review:
o Review of action plan by the Working Group with

actions prioritised.
o Action plan 85% on target (11 of 13 actions

completed by 31 March).

• Board session on review of risk appetite and some
scenarios of how risk will be used in the strategic plan
updates.

• Review of format of budget and value for money reporting
to continue to increase clarity.

• Review of forward plan against the Strategic Scheme of
Delegation and Strategic Risk Register.

Forward look 

• Work with Mark Healy to include
‘Tenants experience’ slots to the
private agenda to improve Members’
understanding of the business. A
recording of a Tenant talking about
their experience of a chosen CBH
process with comments from those
staff which administer the process.

• Work to formalise key skills and
strength requirements of Board
Members including a gap analysis.
Update KPI.

• Board recruitment process including
Board recruitment policy review at
April Board.

• Decision to implement action plan to
be agreed at April Board.

• Interview panel proposed to April
Board Meeting with individuals to be
named at the meeting.

Risks, issues & support required 

• Potential loss of knowledge and consistency with Chair
and Independent Board Member positions coming to the
end of term in Oct and Nov 2019. Recruitment process
implemented ahead of time to ensure smooth transition.

Progress measure Latest 
2018/19 
target 

2022 
target 

% staff have confidence in senior managers at CBH 70% 72% 74% 

Stakeholder confidence in CBH’s leadership TBC 

Board skills required vs current Board Skills Matrix (1-4) TBC 3.5 
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Community plan 

A community enabling leader for Colchester by 2022 

Highlights 

• Staff survey results show significant improvement on impact in the
community as follows:

o 88% agree My organisation encourages charitable activities (up
from 79%)

o 87% agree CBH genuinely cares about its Customers and
Communities

o 84% agree CBH has a positive impact on the wider community
o 75% agree CBH cares about the environment (up from 62%)

• Additional funding secured for Rough sleeper and Private Sector initiatives
from Ministry of Housing and Local Communities

• HACT Social value indicator demonstrates that for every £1 invested in
resident engagement, volunteering and Community engagement a social
value return of £280 has been achieved.

• App on trial to identify and map community assets and incidents

• Mapping work complete by University of Essex to identify geographic areas
which are at highest risk of anti-social behaviour or domestic abuse
occurring. This will develop planning for intervention and advice.

• Spring clean collection boxes to donate cleaning materials to Foodbank

• Focus on Health & Wellbeing – Mental health support work secondment in
place at CBH

• Defibrillators installed at 5 sheltered housing schemes.

Forward look 

• Volunteer pool to
be developed with
C360

• Training developed
for volunteers to
support rough
sleepers

• Small grant funding
scheme to be
launched, to
provide opportunity
for local
organisations to
support rough
sleeping and
pledge to reduce
homelessness in
Colchester

• Get Online training
launched with
Wilson Marriage
Adult learning
Centre

Risks, issues & support required 

• Challenge in maintaining volunteers and developing appropriate training.
Working with C360 to assist with this.

Progress measure Latest 
2018/19 
target 

2022 
target 

The value of our social impact on communities £548,516 
Staff who agree that CBH has a positive impact on the wider local 
community 

84% 86% 88% 
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Customer 
Highlights 
• Training delivered with scripts for CBC Customer Service Centre staff 

supporting more effective ordering of repairs 

• Tenant consultation workshop held to review new website 

• Customer insight dashboard in place to support service planning for 2019/20 

• Resident Panel meeting held February to review rent collection and support for 
tenants – improvements agreed 

• TPAS event attended by Engagement officer and residents 

• Shortlisted for NFA portrait competition 

• Homeless acceptance letter redrafted to improve customer understanding and 
reduce appeals 

• Single point of contact agreed for bereaved families when ending a tenancy 

• IPads introduced into 4 sheltered schemes for customer channel shift – training 
sessions arranged for residents 

• Range of partnership events held in sheltered schemes to provide for older 
residents targeted to information, support and advice on health and wellbeing 

• Training delivered to Helpline staff on Capita to be able to directly raise repairs 
out of normal working hours 

• “Your Views our Future” event hosted by Gareth Mitchell providing residents 
with opportunity to raise questions and make comments in relation to CBH 
services. 

Forward look: 
• Launch of new 

CBH website 

• Let's Get 
Digital events 
planned for 
residents 

• Fire safety 
talks with 
Essex Fire and 
Rescue 
Service in 
sheltered 
schemes 

• Improvements 
to content and 
format of rent 
letters and to 
provide on line 
form to set up 
Direct debit 
payments as a 
result of 
Resident Panel 
feedback 

• Housing News 
and Views 
Spring 
publication. 

Risks, issues & actions required: 

• One repairs contractor is underperforming. Main concerns are poor customer 
communication relating to plastering and flooring works. Site teams are meeting 
weekly and going through work in progress and updating the system for access, 
variation issues 

• Housing Investment Programme satisfaction has declined for the quarter, due to 
two contractors. One has now left, and the another is about to. Works are being 
re-tendered. 
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Housing Options and Homelessness 
Highlights 
• Homelessness acceptances reduced by 37% from previous year with 

115 households accepted as homeless from 744 applications 

• Home Step Landlord incentive scheme launched with promotional video 
www.cbhomes/homestep.org.uk 

• Successful Landlords Forum held in March – 49 landlords attended 

• Housing register applicants have been contacted with applications 
updated, resulting in reduction of applicants on the housing register 

• Severe Weather Emergency Provision in place from end November to 
end March. Places offered to 20 rough sleepers with 7 places accepted 

• Developing private rented housing offer using Ministry of Housing and 
Local Communities (MHCLG) award of £160k 

• Continuation of the Rough Sleeper Initiatives to provides emergency 
accommodation and outreach workers using MHCLG funding of £208k 

• Continued work to prevent or relieve homelessness and rough sleeping 
using MHCLG funding of £26k, which provides direct access beds at the 
Night Shelter and outreach support.  

Forward look 
• Bid submitted to 

MHCLG for 
Navigators (Advisors) 
to support Rough 
sleeper outreach 
team 

• Severe Weather 
Emergency Provision 
evaluation for 
2018/19 

• Training for 
volunteers to work 
with Rough sleepers 

• Small grants 
programme to support 
homeless to be 
promoted along with 
Homelessness 
Prevention Charter 

Risks, issues & actions required 
• No homelessness prevention KPI reporting for 2018/19 due to 

changeover to Homelessness Reduction Act. Still awaiting government 
guidance on reporting but homelessness acceptances percentage KPI 
and target agreed for 2019/20 

• Difficulties in recruiting and retaining volunteers to support rough 
sleeping initiatives 

• Numbers in B & B accommodation increased in Q4 with closure of 
temporary accommodation at Creffield Road. 
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1
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Repairs and Maintenance 
Highlights 
• Repairs handbook to assist customers to identify repairs 

available on website 

• Fire Risk assessment works completed in two and three 
storey blocks 

• Disrepair claim process reviewed in line with increased 
numbers 

• Successful system test of interface between CBH and 
gas contractor – awaiting go live date 

• Review of contractor performance on revenue works 

Forward look: 
• Appointment of new Electrical 

Supervisor & Multi-trade 
Supervisor 

• Creation of online post-inspection 
form 

• Developing coding for garage 
structure works 

• Noise assessment of joinery shop 

• Reviewing plumbing risk 
assessment 

• Update all equipment onto Asset 
register on Assure System. 

Risks, issues & actions required: 
• Increased number of disrepair claims due to phone 

canvassing from specialist solicitors. 

• Difficulties recruiting Multi-trade supervisor  

% repairs completed on time

Cumulative

Result
98.3% Target 97.0%

Adjusted 

Status

96%

97%

97%

98%

98%

99%

99%

100%

2017/18 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

% on time by priority
21 day

priority

3 day

priority

24 hour

priority

96%

97%

98%

99%

2017/18 Yr-end Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Quarter only Cumulative Target
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Housing Asset Management 
Highlights 
• 2018/19 Capital programme delivered 166 kitchens, 52 bathrooms,103 wet 

rooms, 41 rewires, 152 full heating systems and 170 boilers. There were 
121 front doors and 17 windows installed. 185 windows and doors were 
installed in the Dutch Quarter and 126 external work tasks completed. 

• Year-end position slightly ahead of forecast with a programme slip of 
£1.1m. Remaining works will be completed by 30th June 

• Successful procurement of heating contract on a 2 (+1+1) year term 

• Training completed on the NHF Schedule of rates with a view that capital 
contracts will be using the planned maintenance schedule for future 
procurements 

• Initial meetings started for the HRA projects – Sheltered Review and 
Airspace development 

Forward look: 
• Kitchen and 

Bathroom contracts 
to be tendered in 
May for 2019/20 

• Roofing contract 
out in April 2019 

• Work starting on 
Window and Door 
contract and 
Adaptations 
contract (both 
expiring in Dec 19) 

• Workshops to 
establish a new 
Decent Homes 
Standard. 

Risks, issues & actions required: 
• 2018/19 Capital programme not delivered on time. However good 

forecasting and communication with CBC has ensured visibility on what 
contracts would not deliver on time. Plans in place to complete the work by 
30 June 19. Standard of work and tendered rates not compromised, and 
Decency target met. 

• Time spent managing poor contractor performance is taking up other project 
work for team members. New contract terms being introduced aimed at 
smaller, batched tenders; more detailed tenders; use of NHF schedules 

• External works contractor invoked contract break clause 1.5 years into a 4-
year contract – could not complete work at their tendered rates 

• Unsuccessful procurement of the Loft Fire Wall Separation contract - going 
back out to tender 

% capital program elements completed on time

Cumulative

Result
66.3% Target 95.0%

Adjusted 

Status
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Housing Management 
Highlights 
• Rent collection exceeded target with good mitigation in place to manage the 

impact of Universal Credit and Welfare Benefit changes, resulting in 1017 tenants 
in arrears at year end with arrears equal to 0.73% of the rent debit raised. 

• 11 evictions throughout the year for rent arrears, increased from 8 in the previous 
year. Every effort is made to prevent eviction through support and advice, but a 
number of the cases included significant neighbour nuisance issues as well as 
rent arrears 

• Leasehold Service Charge collection 99.08% 

• 1631 of 2247 Garages let at year end, with arrears outstanding reduced to 
£899.02 

• Local Lettings Policy applied to an area in St Anne's ward following 3 closure 
orders (drug related ASB) 

• 5 evictions carried out for ASB over the year leading to positive impact on local 
community (3 drugs related ASB, 1 subletting and 1 criminal activity resulting in 
prison sentence) 

• Essex University Criminology students job shadowed the Anti Social Behaviour 
and Housing Solutions Officers 

Forward look: 
• System 

changes to 
enable Direct 
Debits to be 
collected in 
advance 

• CBC/CBH 
Tenant 
Incentive to 
move 
Scheme 
Policy Review 
with tenant 
involvement 

• 2019 Make a 
Difference 
Day 
programme 
advertised 
and promoted 

Risks, issues & actions required: 
• With ongoing Welfare reform rent collection target will remain under pressure 

• Tenants in receipt of Universal Credit receive monthly payments which will not 
include payment for week 53 (2019/20) 

• Universal Credit direct payment in arrears in place for 158 tenants 

• ASB Officers vetting to work from Police station Hub has been delayed 

• Increase of drug related ASB may lead to further evictions. Joint work with Police 
under way. 

% rent collected from current tenants (of rent due)

Cumulative

Result
99.0% Target 98.0%

Adjusted 

Status

93%

94%

95%

96%

97%

98%

99%
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102%

103%

2017/18 Yr-end Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Quarter only Cumulative Target
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Letting Homes 
Highlights 
• Rent loss through empty properties reduced due to falling number of 

properties becoming empty, CBC has procured new contractor for voids 
and insurance works – start onsite w/c 15th April 2019 

• All works with outgoing contractors have been completed and handed 
over 

• 410 empty homes let over the year including temporary accommodation 
and 68 Sheltered housing re lets. 283 homes required capital 
improvement work 

• Procured a temporary contractor to help support right to buy back 
properties, which were outside the current contract. 

Forward look: 
• Mobilisation of new 

voids contractors 

• Review process with 
Registered Providers 
to shortlist new build 
developments 

• Lettings team to start 
advertising and 
shortlisting for Colne 
Housing 

• Refurbishing & letting 
significant number of 
Right to Buy Backs for 
2019-20 – 
approximately 50 
properties in total 

Risks, issues & actions required: 
• End of year target not achieved 

• Outgoing contractor’s performance deteriorated after the 26-week break 
clause was triggered. 

• Additional workload on the voids team to manage the poor performing 
contractors has been a challenge. 

• Street services performance - report now generated from Capita for 
Street Services to help them deliver clearances of empty properties. 

Days to relet general needs properties (incl capital works, excl structural)

Cumulative

Result
26.8 Target 25.0

Adjusted 

Status
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Corporate Facilities Management 
Highlights 
• Target for repairs completed on time exceeded – revised target of 90% for 

2019/20 

• In-depth condition surveys of corporate stock 100% complete 

• Phase 8 of Building Maintenance Programme (BMP) agreed with Portfolio 
Holder for Resources 

• Latest phase of works consists of 10 separate projects with a total value of 
c£480k 

• Main projects include replacement of Sports Hall roof and extensive internal 
redecoration at Leisure World Colchester, resurfacing and structural repairs at 
St John's and St Mary’s multi storey car parks, replacement of boiler plant at 
Colchester Town Hall and the refurbishment and remodelling of Political Group 
Rooms and Members Room within the Town Hall 

• Corporate cleaning contract tender returned. Incumbent contractor has retained 
contract and corporate building cleaning costs £18k less per annum than 
previous tender overall 

• CFM delegated budgets within budget at closure of 18/19 financial year  

Forward look: 
• New cleaning 

contract 
commences 
01/05/19 

• Legionella and 
ventilation 
system 
cleanliness 
contract to be 
retendered 
19/20 

• Corporate 
photovoltaic 
systems 
maintenance 
contract to be 
explored and 
tendered. 

Risks, issues & actions required: 
• Recruitment challenges for Building Services Engineer post. In view of this, 

external consultants and/or agency staff likely to be required to assist with 
delivery of BMP projects. 

% repairs to corporate properties completed on time
Reporting on in-house repairs only, not contractor jobs

Cumulative

Result
95.5% Target 75.0%

Adjusted 

Status
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Compliance 
Highlights 

• GDPR – good progress on compliance plan: 
• Duplicate person records merged on Capita housing system 
• Completion of review of all contracts where data sharing is 

involved, and clauses needed 

• Data processing details uploaded to CBC’s information asset 
register database 

• Fire upgrade works continue in general needs flats 

• UK wide issue with fire door testing has now been resolved and the 
installation of new FD 30 doors restarted in March 2019 

• All general needs homes have an asbestos management survey. 
These surveys have been routinely updated between 2014 and 2018 
and are carried out at the same time as and when planned works and 
repairs, or as they become void.   

• OHSAS 18001 – Audit complete on the 14th March 

Forward look: 

• GDPR deletions on 
Capita system in 
May 

• Asset Register 
Training for SMT 
and Staff, FLOWZ 
data input for data 
processing activities  

• All staff undertaking 
annual E-Learning 
Data Awareness 
refresher training, 

• Currently developing 
a full compliance 
register for Property 
Services  

• Corrective Action 
plan for OHSAS 
18001 

• Electrical safety – 
Working on tenders 
in line with CBC new 
fixed wire policy 

Risks, issues & actions required: 

• Issue of data cleansing and retention for GDPR e.g. IDOX remains 
unresolved 

• 190 of 7746 properties require an updated asbestos survey as they 
have proven difficult to access. Housing Management Team has also 
become involved to assist in gaining access and we expect the 
remaining surveys to be completed within the next few months. 

• New Board Assurance Officer awaiting training place on BCS 
Foundation Certificate in Data Protection. A higher level of support for 
GDPR enquiries may be needed from the Data Protection Officer.  

% of properties with a valid Landlord Gas Safety Certificate

Cumulative

Result
100.0% Target 100.0%

Adjusted 

Status
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 
 
 
DATE:  3 July 2019  
 
TIME:   5.30 pm 
 
VENUE:  Room 1, Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 12. 
 
SUBJECT:  Regulator of Social Housing New Consumer Standards – 

letter from Regulator 
 
REPORT BY:  Karen Loweman, Director of Housing 
    (01206) 282805 
     karen.loweman@cbhomes.org.uk 
 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
1. Recommendation  
 To note the recommendation from the Regulator.  Letter attached at 

Appendix 1. 
  
2. Consumer standards and Regulation  
  
2.1 Further information regarding the Regulatory standards for housing are 

available on the web site  https://www.gov.uk/guidance/regulatory-
standards 

  
3. Background & Content 
  
3.1 The Regulator of Social Housing wrote to the Chief Executive of housing 

stock owning Local authorities on 17 May 2019 to remind them of their 
obligations for their tenants’ safety under the Regulator of Social Housing’s 
Consumer standards.  

  
3.2 The Regulator’s Governance and Financial Viability and the Value for 

Money standards do not apply to Local Authorities or their ALMO’s, the 
Consumer standards do.   

  
3.3 In the letter from the regulator (attached as Appendix 1) attention is drawn 

to the Home standard, which requires the responsible Councillors and 
Board members of their obligation to:   
 
Meet all applicable statutory requirement that provide for the health 
and safety of the occupants in their homes.  
 
That obligation remains with the Local Authority where it is the stock-
owning body, even if the management has been contracted to another 
body such as an ALMO.  However, it is important that an ALMO Board is 
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aware of, and monitors compliance of the standards through regular 
review.  

  
3.4 This report sets out the requirement of the Consumer Standards and 

includes a completed self-assessment for Colchester Borough Homes. 
 
The requirements of the standards are monitored within our Medium Term 
Delivery Plan.    

  
4. Consumer Standards 
  
4.1 The Consumer Standards apply to all registered providers including Local 

Authorities.  The Regulator sets the standard and intervenes where 
failure to meet the standards has caused, or could have caused, serious 
harm to tenants.   

  
4.2 The 4 consumer standards are:  

 
1. Home Standard 

To ensure that tenants ‘homes meet the Decent homes guidance. 
 
Provide a cost-effective repairs and maintenance service to homes 
and communal areas that responds to the needs of, and offers 
choices to, tenants, and has the objective of completing repairs and 
improvements right first time. 
  
Meet all applicable statutory requirements that provide for the health 
and safety of the occupants in their homes.  

 
2. Tenancy Standard  

To ensure that homes are let in a fair, transparent and efficient way.  
Taking into account the housing needs and aspirations of tenants and 
potential tenants.   
 
The letting process should: 
 
• Make the best use of available housing 

• Be compatible with the purpose of the housing 

• Contribute to local authorities’ strategic housing function and 
sustainable communities 

• There should be a clear application, decision-making and appeals 
process. 

The Tenancy standard sets out clear guidance in relation to the 
requirements for the approach to tenancy management, including 
sustainment to prevent eviction and tackling fraud.   
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3. Neighbourhood and Community Standard 

This standard requires housing providers to keep neighbourhoods 
and communal areas clean and safe.  Requiring partnership with 
tenants and relevant local services to promote environmental and 
economic wellbeing in areas of housing stock. 
 
The Standard requires a local policy to set out the approach to Anti-
social behaviour and Neighbourhood/Estate Management.   

 
4.  Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Standard 

This standard sets out the requirement to provide choice, information 
and communication that is appropriate to the diverse needs of 
tenants in the delivery of all of the standards previously mentioned.   
 
It requires organisations to have an approach to complaints that is 
clear, simple and accessible that ensures that complaints are 
resolved promptly, politely and fairly. Providing some specific 
expectations regarding customer service, choice and influence 
through development of resident involvement. 
 
The standard also expects that organisations will have a good 
understanding of their residents and be able to respond to their need 
by the way in which services are delivered and communicated.    

 
4.3 How are the Consumer Standards assessed? 
 Our Medium-Term Delivery Plan and performance information provides 

information to monitor the Consumer Standards, and relevant information 
is also included in our Annual Report to residents.  This information is 
reviewed by the CBH Board and is reviewed by the Council at regular 
Principal Liaison meetings.  
  
The Board’s Resident panel regularly assesses key service areas to 
support compliance and make suggestion for improvement to the way in 
which services are delivered to comply with the standards.  
 
The Regulator will only become involved if a failure to meet the standards 
has caused, or could have caused, serious harm to tenants.  Generally, 
the Regulator will be alerted to failure by concerns raised by the Housing 
Ombudsman or through direct contact from residents.    

  
5. Risk Management 
  
5.1 Health & Safety risks are monitored through performance and compliance 

reports. 
 
Reputational risk if standards are not adhered to. 

  
6. HR Implications 
  
6.1 None 
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7. Legal Implications 
  
7.1 The Regulator of Social Housing will only intervene where failure to meet 

the standards has caused, or could have caused, serious harm to tenants. 
  
8. Financial Implications 
  
8.1 Finance is available through Management fee and delegated budget to 

meet requirement of the Consumer Standards 
  
9. Value for Money 
  
9.1 Not applicable 
  
10. Health & Safety Implications 
  
10.1 The Consumer standards intend to ensure tenants safety and compliance 

with the standards agreement with government 
  
11. Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
11.1 CBH has a good understanding of its residents, which supports us to 

ensure that residents are aware of services available, and that they are 
able to access them. 
 
Residents specific needs are considered when assessing our approach to 
compliance with health and safety requirements.    

  
12. Residents at the Heart 
  
12.1 The Tenant Involvement and Empowerment standard expects that 

organisations will understand their residents needs and be able to deliver 
services to meet their specific requirements.  The insight that we gather in 
respect of our residents supports us to deliver a range of engagement 
activities and to be able to gather feedback from services delivered.     

  
13. Decision Required? 
  
 No 
  
14. Appendices 
  
14.1 The following documents are appended to this report: 

 
• Appendix 1 – Letter from Regulator to Colchester Borough Council 
• Appendix 2 – Consumer Standard – self assessment 
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The address for service of any 

legal documents on RSH is: 

Level 1A, City Tower, Piccadilly Plaza, 

Manchester M1 4BT 

Regulator of Social Housing 

Fry Building 

Marsham Street 

London SW1P 4DF 

 

T: 0300 124 5225 

E: enquiries@rsh.gov.uk 

W: www.gov.uk/rsh 

 17 May 2019 
Dear Chief Executive 

 

Housing stock-

standards 

 

You may be aware that following the Grenfell Tower fire we wrote to all registered providers of social 

letter you will have seen that we have issued 

regulatory notices to two local authorities in respect of compliance with the Home Standard (which is 

one of our Consumer standards), and specifically a range of health and safety requirements.  

 

ply 

to local authorities, the consumer standards do apply. In particular, I draw your attention to part 1.2 (b) 

of the Home Standard, which requires that registered providers shall:  

 

meet all applicable statutory requirements that provide for the health and safety of occupants in 

their homes. 

 

That obligation remains with the local authority where it is the stock-owning body, even if the 

management has been contracted to another body such as an ALMO. An extract of the above-

mentioned letter is below: 

 

Meeting health and safety obligations is a primary responsibility for registered providers. Boards 

and councillors must ensure that they have proper oversight of all health and safety issues 

(including gas safety, fire safety, asbestos and legionella). Contracting out delivery of services 

does not contract out responsibility to meet the requirements of legislation or standards, so 

providers need systems to give boards assurance of compliance. 

 

We set out our approach to regulation in Regulating the Standards; in relation to the consumer 

standards it is illustrated in our annual Consumer Regulation Review. Should any provider find 

that they have systemic failings in relation to internal control of health and safety, which indicate 

that they are not in compliance with the Standard, based on our co-regulatory approach, we 

expect you to notify us as Regulator and resolve the issues immediately. We expect all 

u will 

wish to access professional advice in the event that you are not clear on your statutory 

obligations. 
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2 

This letter is a reminder to local authorities that the consumer standards apply to them and that while 

we currently only consider information that is referred to us, this does not diminish the obligation on 

local authorities to comply with the standards. Currently, legislation only permits us to take enforcement 

action where there has been a breach of a consumer standard, and that breach has, or could, cause 

serious detriment to current or future tenants. As can be seen from our various Consumer Regulation 

Review publications, we most commonly find breach and serious detriment in relation to the Home 

Standard.  

 

You may wish to seek your own assurance that your authority is complying with the consumer 

standards. I would also be grateful if you could bring this letter to the attention of your elected members.   

 

If it would be helpful to discuss this letter, or the requirements of the consumer standards, please let me 

know.   

 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 

 
 
 
Fiona MacGregor 
 
Chief Executive 
Regulator of Social Housing 
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Appendix 2 – Consumer Standards – Self Assessment  
 
 
 Requirement How is it met/monitored 
1 Home Standard 

 
Tenants homes meet the Decent 
homes guidance 
 
 
 
 
Cost effective repairs and 
maintenance service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meets statutory requirement for 
health and safety 
 
 

 
 
Maintenance of homes are planned to 
achieve decent homes standard with 
performance measured and published 
in Medium term delivery plan and Asset 
Management Strategy 
 
Our repairs service is easily available to 
residents through our web site or the 
Councils Customer contact centre. 
Customer satisfaction is measured 
following each repair and currently 
achieves around 97.5% satisfaction for 
the quality of the repair. 
Budgetary control is maintained through 
regular meetings  
Our performance is benchmarked 
through House mark 
 
All key areas of Health & Safety are 
monitored through our “Assure” Health 
& Safety monitoring, with a suitably 
qualified H & S officer and Operations 
Manager to oversee compliance of Gas 
servicing, Asbestos, Fire safety, Water 
hygiene (Legionella testing) an 
Electrical safety.       
    

2 Tenancy Standard 
 
Ensuring homes are let in a fair, 
transparent and efficient way 
 
 
 
 

 
 
As part of the Gateway to Homechoice 
partnership of Local authorities, homes 
are advertised weekly and allocated 
according to assessed need following 
agreed policy. 
 
An appeals process is available for 
applicants unhappy with any decision 
that we make regarding their housing 
application. 
 
The Council has a Housing and 
Homelessness strategy which we 
contribute to and take direction from, 
and provides the framework for setting 
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rents, charges and tenancy 
management. 
 
Performance management of properties 
let and satisfaction of new tenants 
monitors compliance   

3 Neighbourhood & Community 
Standard 
 
Keep neighbourhoods and 
communal areas clean and safe. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Work in partnership with residents 
and other public bodies to support 
Community Safety and well being  

 
 
 
Our Community Caretakers maintain 
standards of safety and cleanliness, 
through effective contract management, 
safety inspections and engagement 
with residents (Quality Assurance 
Assessments)  
 
Fire and Safety inspections of all blocks 
are routinely complete to an agreed 
annual schedule   
 
Our Community Safety/anti-social 
behaviour team work as part of the 
Safer Colchester partnership. 
 
Our Anti Social Behaviour policy sets 
out how we deal with reports of 
nuisance    
 
Our Community Plan sets out our 
ambition to develop and promote 
partnership work  
 

4 Tenant Involvement and 
Empowerment 
 
Tenants are given a range of 
opportunity to influence and be 
involved in making decision in 
respect of housing services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Information is provided, and tenants 
can communicate regarding 
services in way which is appropriate 
and accessible 
 
 
 

 
 
We have varying ways for customers to 
access our services and be involved in 
decision making.  Tenants are part of 
our governance structure and we have 
various panels where tenants influence 
service delivery.  
Our Resident Engagement and Insight 
strategy sets out methods of 
involvement and describes how 
residents can influence services.  
 
Our Customer Plan sets out our 
ambition to make continuous 
improvements to the way that 
customers can access our services.  
This includes access through face to 
face customer contact centres at 
Greenstead and the Town centre, 
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Complaints are resolved promptly, 
politely and fairly 

Telephone calls to the Councils contact 
centre and an increasing range of 
services which are available 24/7 via 
our website.  
We publish a newsletter to residents 3 
times a year and our Annual report 
provides information for residents 
regarding our performance and 
achievements   
 
We have a dedicated complaints 
service to ensure that complaints are 
dealt with promptly and that standards 
of response are monitored to capture 
trends and improve services 
Complaints received are monitored and 
reported to Directors and at regular 
management liaison meetings with 
Colchester Borough Council   
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 
 
 
DATE:  09 July 2019 
 
TIME:   5.30 pm 
 
VENUE:  Room 1, Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 13. 
 
SUBJECT:   Annual Health, Safety, and Fire Report 2019 
 
REPORT BY: Kirk Braker, Head of Operations  
    (01206) 282608 
     kirk.braker@cbhomes.org.uk 
 

 
FOR INFORMATION  
 
1. Decision Required  
  
1.1 The Board are asked to review the performance of the health, safety, and fire across 

the Company during 2018 to 2019 financial year, and to agree the key objectives for 
2019/20.  

  
2. Purpose of Report  
  
2.1 Is to provide an annual review of the Company’s approach to Health, Safety, and 

Fire.  
  
2.2 The Board requires an annual report concerning health and safety as part of its 

governance arrangements. This is also considered best practice and is an important 
measure to ensure compliance with OHSAS 18001 - the international standard for 
health and safety. 

  
3. Background & Content 
  
3.1 The Company has a Strategic Health and Safety Policy and Fire Safety Policy. 
  
3.2 Our current health and safety goals are: 

 Establish health and safety management standards  
 Establish the health and safety competencies of our workforce  
 Control the risks to all the Company and Council's assets  
 Ensure the control of contractors 

  
3.3 This review of the health, safety, and fire arrangements are to establish the following: 

 That the Health, Safety, and Fire Policy is valid 
 That the management systems for Health, Safety and Fire are effective. 

 
3.4 The Health and Safety team and their responsibilities are as follows: 
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Title Hours Qualifications 
Health and Safety Manager   37  NEBOSH GENERAL, 

NEBOSH FIRE, IFE RISK 
ASSESSMENT  

Health and Safety Advisor 35 NEBOSH GENERAL 
Health and Safety Co-ordinator 22.5 IOSH Managing Safety 

 
NEBOSH The National Examination Board in Occupational Safety and Health 
IOSH – Institution of Occupational Safety and Health 
IFE – Institution of Fire Engineers 
 
 Advising managers, safety representatives and staff on matters of health and 

safety at work; 
 Developing, implementing and maintaining an Occupational Safety 

Management System (Assure) on behalf of CBH;  
 Developing and implementing health and safety policies and procedures to 

improve the management of health and safety across CBH;  
 Developing and delivering bespoke health and safety training courses as 

appropriate;  
 Providing information and corporate data analysis in respect of CBH-wide 

health and safety compliance. 
  
4. Review 2017-2018 
  
4.1 Active Monitoring (Before things go wrong) 

 We reinforce a positive and proactive culture across the Company 
 We produce monthly reports, updating senior management and our clients of 

risks and issues 
 Mandatory training is delivered across the Company 
 A Health and Safety Committee exists 
 A Fire Task Group exists, our client attends 
 Internal Auditors review risk area within the Company 
 During this year we had no intervention visits from the Health and Safety 

Executive (HSE) 
 Our insurers reviewed our arrangements for the management of Asbestos and 

Health and Safety 
 Mazars carried out a Fire Safety audit in October 2018 
 British Standards Institute audited our OHSAS 18001 accreditation in March 

(Part year ISO9001 & 14001) 
 All corrective actions are managed within the Assure System. 

  
4.2 Reactive Monitoring (After things go wrong) 

 We do not operate a “blame “culture toward any health and safety incidents 
 We actively request that all staff report near misses, incidents and accidents 

on Assure and the team aids staff who are not confident with using the Assure 
system 

 From 1st March all incidents are being fully investigated, this is no longer 
dependent upon severity 

 We want to learn from incidents, so all cases will be discussed at the H&S 
Committee 

 Understanding the root cause of the problem 
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4.3 Accident/Incident/Near-miss data 

A trend analysis of accidents and incidents of data was conducted over the last 12 
months.  We looked at the following trends: 
 
 Reoccurrence of same accident 
 Reoccurrence of same location, equipment or product involved 
 The same member of staff being involved 
 The same contractors being involved 
 The same tenant being involved 

 
Our Data for analysis 
 
Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013 
(RIDDOR)  
 

Category April 
18 

May 
18 

June 
18 

July 
18 

Aug 
18 

Sept 
18 

Oct 
18 

Nov 
18 

Dec 
18 

Jan 
19 

Feb 
19 

Mar 
19 

Fatality  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Specified 
Injuries 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Over-seven-
day 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Occupational 
Diseases 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Dangerous 
Occurrences 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
 

  
4.4 We only had one reportable accident to the HSE during this period. The investigation 

found the risk assessment for plumbing works had not been reviewed in the past 12 
months and the selection of works equipment was incorrect for the activity 
undertaken. 
 
Title of Training Provider Cost of Training Date Delivered 
Company Health, 
Safety, Fire 
Induction H&S Manager In-house 2018-19 
Manual Handling H&S Manager In-house 2018-19 
Evac and Chair 
Operator Training Evac and Chair £450.00 28th August 2018 

Fire Extinguisher PFSS Ltd £0.00 
9 May and 16th 
May 2018 

Ladders and Steps 
and Working at 
Heights Safetymen £550.80 5th June 2018 
Ladders and Steps 
and Working at 
Heights Safetymen £367.20 6th July 2018 
Ladders and Steps 
and Working at 
Heights Safetymen £918.00 19th June 2018 
PASMA Towers Safetymen £540.00 24th May 2018 
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PAT Testing Plugtest £500.00 
29th & 30th 
November 2018 

Unvented Course Plumb City £340.00 31st August 2018 

Fire Door Training 
Independent Fire 
Inspections Ltd £4,212 

18th & 19th July 
2018 

18th Edition 
Senate Electrical 
Wholesalers £1,197 

23rd, 24th & 25th 
July 2018 

NRSWA 1991 
Supervisors 

Project Skills 
Solutions £335.00 

3rd & 4th 
September 2018 

Unvented Course Plumb City £680.00 
28th September 
2018 

Blood Bourne 
Viruses BOHSA £695.00 

11th September 
2018 

Assure 
Administrator 
Training She Software £300.00 

26th September 
2018 

Conflict & 
Resolution (Violence 
& Aggression) Douglas Smale £500.00 19th October 2018 
Next Steps for 
Building 
Regulations & Fire 
Safety 

Westminster 
Briefing £780.00 

25th September 
2018 

Assure Training She Software £1,500  
CAT & Genny Safetymen £357.00  
Harness & Lanyards Safetymen £595.00  
Conflict and 
Resolutions 
Training Douglas Smale £500.00 28.01.19 
Asbestos 
Awareness 
Refresher Training 

Asbestos Training 
Ltd £925.00 08.01.19 

Asbestos 
Awareness 
Refresher Training 

Asbestos Training 
Ltd £925.00 14.01.19 

CSCS CSCS & ECS Cards £387.00 Nov/Dec 18 
Locksmith Course Matrix Locksmiths £5,424 12.12.18 
18th Edition Rexel £1,215 25.02.19 
Sharps Pragmatics £972.00 10.01.19 
Scaffold Inspection Safetymen £199.00 13.02.19 
Gas Safety 
Regulations CIBSE £372.00 22.03.19 
Ladders & Steps 
and WAH Safetymen £200.00 21.02.19 & 28.02.19 
Lone Working - 
Person Safety E-Learning   

 

  
4.5 Non-reportable incidents/accidents: 
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4.6 The data shows we had 64 non-reportable cases, of which, 23 were relating to 

violence and aggression, mainly in the Housing Options area at the Library and 
Housing Management staff. Additional security has been placed in the Library which 
is managed by Essex County Council, whereas incident numbers have significantly 
reduced from last year’s figures. The Greenstead Housing office has now had new 
security measures to the front doors, so residents must use an intercom system to 
gain entry. All staff have access to the lone working system ‘Peoplesafe’. 

  
4.7 Training Record 

A full training needs analysis of mandatory training was completed at the beginning of 
the financial year in collaboration with the Resources training co-ordinator. The team 
were able to deliver a range of training internally; tailoring courses more to our 
business needs. This had a cost saving against external providers. 

  
4.8 The last report stated that the H&S training record would be uploaded onto Assure so 

managers can review any training gaps within their teams. This information is now 
uploaded; however, the reporting still requires development into an easy access 
report for managers. 
 

  
4.9 Inspection Reports 

The main inspections carried out during this year: 
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 Health & Safety F15 (Contractors Inspections) 
 Health & Safety Office Inspections – H & S Team complete Rowan and 

Gosbecks, the other offices are completed by the managers/supervisors 
 Health & Safety Audits (carried out by supervisors) 
 Fire Assessments – Carried out by H & S Team or FRA Assessors 

 
  
4.10 With the additional works from the Fire Task Group and change of personnel (the 

Health and Safety Manager) the number of ad-hoc and unplanned visits has declined 
during the year. We plan to increase visibility across the Company, and create a 
report documenting all inspections. 

  
4.11 The Health and Safety Team have been working hard on embedding the Assure 

system. The system is now more bespoke to CBH. One-to-one training on the use of 
the system has been given by the H&S team and four formal training sessions were 
delivered by Assure (SHE software) in the financial year. 

  
4.12 Functions now being used on the Assure system FY ‘18/19 include: 

1. Recording H&S training  
2. Running basic reports 
3. All types of risk assessments now undertaken using the system 
4. Actions set and completed 
5. Claims logging incidents 
6. Inspections  
7. Equipment register (ladder checks etc)  
8. Waste transfer notes logging 

  
4.13 Risk Assessments 

We have a comprehensive register of general risk assessments which staff all have 
access to in some form. We are still reviewing and working to input assessments into 
the new format using our Assure System.  
 
General Risk Assessment 31 
Activity Risk Assessments 37 
Noise Assessments 2 
DSE Assessments 211 
Manual Handling Assessment 5 
Fire Assessments 471 
COSHH Assessments 47 
Project Risk Assessment New for 2019 

   
  
4.14 Fire Safety 

The Fire Task Group meetings are still held quarterly. All the tasks from the fire risk 
assessment on repairs have been completed and works by the caretakers making 
communal areas ‘sterile’ is complete. The main works which are outstanding are the 
replacement fire door programme. Works are due for completion in December 2019. 

  
4.15 Fire Risk Assessments are now all completed, and on a rolling programme for 

sheltered schemes annually. 
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FRA Type Number 
required 

Number 
completed 

Outstanding Estimated finished 
date 

Sheltered  20 20 0 Complete 

General needs blocks  445 445 0 Complete 

Temporary 
Accommodation  

2 2 0 Complete 

CBH office locations  3 3 0 Complete 

Workshops - Dedham 1 1 0 Complete 

Total 471 471 0  
 

  
4.16 Communication - Issues Raised by staff or their representatives 

Health and Safety Committee meet quarterly to discuss operational health and safety 
issues. All service areas have a representative, including a representative from the 
trade union. This formal meeting gives staff a voice to raise any concerns relating to 
health, safety, and fire issues. 

  
4.17 We are looking at ways to improve communication with staff using the Yammer 

systems, our planned go live date is the 1st July. 
  
4.18 Two members of the Committee have successful completed their NEBOSH General 

certificate.    
  
4.19 Conclusion 

This report sets out to establish the following:  
 Our Health, Safety, and Fire Policies are valid 
 Our management systems for Health, Safety and Fire are effective 

  
4.20 As the Strategic Health and Safety Policy is to be reviewed in September 2019, we 

would like to change the document format, so it’s more in keeping with the Health 
and Safety Executive’s best practice of the management of health and safety HSG65 
guidance. Also, being accredited to the OHSAS 18001 standard will help us to be 
more aligned when being assessed using HSG65 guidance. 

  
4.21 Our management system for compliance still needs development. Record control has 

been our biggest challenge and capturing data can often be time consuming when 
being audited.  

  
4.22 The Board has put in place the resources to effectively manage health, safety, and 

fire across the Company. Our trend analysis shows our greatest risk area is violence 
and aggressions shown towards staff, especially in the housing directorate. 

  
4.23 The key objectives for 2019/20, are part of our preventative action plan to help 

support staff. We know it’s almost impossible to eradicate all risks associated with all 
the activities the Company undertake, but more visibility from the Health and Safety 
team is a must for 2019/20. 
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5. Key Objectives for 2019/20 – To be agree by the Board 
  
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Plan  
 Rewrite our Strategic Health and Safety Policy in line with HSG65, using the 

Plan, Do, Check, Act - linking this to our management system 
 Company wide gap analysis with regards to health and safety legislation 
 Proactive approach to managing workplace health and safety  
 Review activities to identify new risks to prevent work place injuries 
 Review Terms of Reference for the Health and Safety Committee   
 Development of the Insight function on Assure (new function) 

  
5.2 Do 

 Work to continue developing the Health and Safety Yammer Page 
 Conduct frequent inspections and implement a schedule (FRA, H&S audits, 

site visits, team visits, equipment use and work processes) 
 CBH will create an environment where all staff are encouraged to challenge 

unsafe situations or those that cause harm to health.   Reminding staff there is 
an anonymous box to tick on Assure. 

 Create and implement multiple training packages that meet the needs of all 
CBH teams. 

  
5.3 Check 

 An audit of each section against the Risk Management Process will be 
completed 

 Revisiting IOSH Managing Safely Training Managers 
 Implement more effective reporting tools for review performance across the 

Company 
 Analysing trends across the Company monthly 

  
5.4 Act 

 Work with service areas to investigate all incidents in a prescribed time and 
create lesson learnt report for next year’s report 

 Evaluate effectiveness of current H&S safety documentation 
 Evaluate effectiveness of any training relating to H&S 

  
6. Risk Management 
  
6.1 Health & Safety feature on the operational risk registers for all Directorates and the 

actions set out in the report are a key strand for all mitigations in respect of Health & 
Safety.  

  
7. Human Resources 
  
7.1 All work-related stress sits within the HR team and this is covered within their annual 

report. The Health and Safety team support them with DSE assessments and 
Occupational Health referrals. The team also sit on the Well-being Group. 

  
8. Legal Implications/Health and Safety Legislation 
  
8.1 HSE Brexit  
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The Health and Safety (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2018 were drawn up to 
ensure that the UK’s Health and Safety legislation is fit for purpose should the nation 
exit the EU. In the government’s own language, minor amendments to regulations to 
remove EU references but legal requirements, and the protections these provide will 
be the same as they are now. 

  
8.2 Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998 (GSIUR) as amended  

Approved Code of Practice and guidance - introduce a degree of flexibility to the 
timing of landlords’ annual gas safety checks. This change means that landlords can 
carry out the annual gas safety check in the two months before the due date and 
retain the existing expiry date.  This avoids landlords waiting until the last minute and 
not gaining access or having to shorten the annual cycle check to comply with the 
law. There is no change to the legal requirement for an annual gas safety check or 
for maintenance to be carried out. 

  
8.3 Fire Doors 

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) began 
investigating the fire door industry, specifically regarding composite doors. They 
identified several doors that failed to meet the 30-minute fire door requirement, 
outlined in Approved Document B – Flat entrance fire doors should have test 
evidence demonstrating they meet the performance requirement in the Building 
Regulations guidance for fire resistance and smoke control from both sides. 

  
8.4 However, this advice has led to some confusion within the industry. The MHCLG 

published Advice Note 17 on 28 August 2018, updating its initial advice in Advice 
Note 16, clarifying that the advice given relates to composite doors only. 

  
8.5 Which fire doors are affected - currently only 30-minute GRP composite fire doors, 

but the investigations are ongoing.  
  
8.6 Getting tough with Employers - Sentencing Guidelines for Manslaughter | H&S 

Legislation Changes 
On the 1st November 2018 the sentencing guidelines for manslaughter came into 
force in the courts. There are different types of manslaughter which will be covered 
by the guidelines these include: 
• Unlawful Act Manslaughter 
• Gross Negligence Manslaughter 
• Manslaughter by reason of loss of control 
• Manslaughter by Reason of Diminished Responsibility 

  
8.7 The introduction of these guidelines will ensure consistency and transparency within 

the courts and ensure that the penalty reflects the level of offence committed when 
deciding on the sentence. The change in these sentencing guidelines will mean that 
jail sentences are much longer than they were when someone had been convicted of 
gross negligence manslaughter. 

  
9. Financial Implications 
  
9.1 No unbudgeted financial implications arise from the matters set out in this report. The 

activities from the team were delivered within budget during 2018/19. 
  
10. Value for Money 
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10.1 Particular note should be drawn to the reduction in costs of delivering in-house 

training in order to reduce training costs. We plan to develop this further this year. 
  
11. Health & Safety Implications 
  
11.1 The report and its attachments refer to Health and Safety matters. 
  
12. Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
12.1 None arising from the report.  
  
13. Residents at the Heart 
  
13.1 Matters of Health and Safety include public safety and as such the whole of the 

report reflects the discharging of the Company’s obligations in respect of public 
safety. Particular attention should be drawn to the increased fire safety work 
undertaken in the reporting period. 

  
14. Decision Required 
  
14.1 The Board are asked to review the performance of the health, safety, and fire across 

the Company during 2018 to 2019 financial year, and to agree the Key Objectives for 
2019/20. 

  
15. Appendices 
  
15.1 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 – Colchester Borough Homes – Strategic Health and Safety Policy 
 
Appendix 2 – Colchester Borough Homes – Fire Safety Policy 
 
Appendix 3 – HSE – Leading health and safety at work 
 
http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg417.pdf 
 
 
Appendix 4 – HSE – Managing for health and safety (HSG65) 
 
http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/priced/hsg65.pdf 
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1. Introduction & purpose 

At Colchester Borough Homes we recognise our responsibility to ensure the health, 
safety and welfare of all employees at work so-far as is reasonably practicable. This 
policy statement sets out our commitment to endeavour to maintain a continual and 
measurable improvement to our Health and Safety performance to ensure 
compliance with all applicable Health and Safety legislation. 

2. Policy statement 

As a corporate body and employer, we at Colchester Borough Homes recognise and 
accept our responsibility to provide a safe and healthy working environment for our 
employees and non-employees who may be affected by the Company's work 
activities and we will take the necessary steps to fulfil our statutory duties under the 
Health and Safety at Work Act (1974). 

A positive culture will be encouraged, actively supported by senior management, to 
involve employees in the decision-making processes either on an individual basis or 
through their Health and Safety representatives. 

The approach to Health and Safety is based on the identification and control of risks, 
ensuring that the appropriate levels of resources are allocated to keep risks to a 
minimum. 

To enable adequate planning, monitoring and review of the Health and Safety Policy, 
we will provide competent technical advice on Health and Safety matters to assist 
managers and supervisors with their responsibility. 

To fulfil our statutory duties, the following form our Health and Safety aims and 
objectives as a company: 

 To provide and make readily-available the necessary information, instruction, 
supervision and training to employees and others, including temporary staff that 
may be required by legislation, approved codes of practice, British Standards and 
any local agreements. 

 To ensure all visitors, contractors and suppliers of goods and services comply 
with relevant Health and Safety requirements. 

 To ensure that Health and Safety is equal to all other functions and will attach 
equal importance to achieving Health and Safety targets. 

 To devote the necessary resources in the form of finance, equipment, personnel 
and time to ensure and develop a safe and healthy culture. The assistance of 
expert help will be sought where the necessary skills are not available within the 
Company. 

 To co-operate fully in the election and appointment of Safety Representatives by 
recognised trade unions and if appointed provide them, where necessary, with 
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sufficient facilities and training to carry out their tasks. To ensure that appropriate 
systems are developed and maintained for the effective communication of Health 
and Safety matters throughout the organisation, including the training of Board 
Members in their Health and Safety responsibilities. 

 To ensure the continued presence of the Health and Safety Committee and that 
all staff groups have representation.  

 To ensure that Health and Safety is fully integrated into the management and 
decision-making processes within the organisation and that Health and Safety 
management is an integral part of the management function. We will also monitor 
their Health and Safety performance along with their other duties. 

 To ensure all services have relevant Health and Safety policies which clearly 
specify the organisational arrangements in compliance with this Company policy.  

 To maintain systems to ensure that incidents, ‘near-misses’ and work-related ill-
health are fully investigated and appropriate action taken to reduce the likelihood 
of their recurrence. 

 To ensure risk assessments of all workplaces and work activities are 
systematically undertaken and their findings recorded, to identify and effectively 
act upon Health and Safety risks to employees and non-employees, therefore 
ensuring that procedures are established and safe equipment and plant are 
provided. Also to review all risk assessments after significant change or time 
elapsed.   

3. Responsibilities 

The Chief Executive is responsible to the Board for all Health and Safety matters of 
the company. 

The Director of Resources will be responsible for ensuring that strategic policies and 
procedures are approved. Where this involves health & safety, this will be in liaison 
with the Health & Safety Manager, Director of Property Services and the employee 
and trade union representatives. 

Strategic activities will include: 

 Advising management upon all Health and Safety matters, including safety 
legislation, writing of core procedures, policies and guidance notes. 

 Conducting Health and Safety audits to ensure compliance throughout the 
Company’s undertaking using statutory and corporate Health and Safety 
standards. 

 The provision and delivery of relevant Health and Safety training. 
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 Advising managers and team leaders upon matters concerning the Health and 
Safety of the employees under their control. 

 The supervision and control of all designated First Aid facilities. 

Service activities will include:  

Service managers, helped and assisted by the Health & Safety Manager, will be 
responsible for the implementation of the Strategic Health and Safety Policy and for 
the production and implementation of safe working practices for the service for which 
they are responsible. These include but are not exhaustive of, the arrangements for 
the provision of: 

a) Safe systems of work 

b) Safe places of work 

c) Environmental control 

d) Hazard reporting 

e) Risk assessment 

f) First aid 

g) Emergency procedures. 

The Service Managers will make all employees under their control aware of safe 
working practices and review and amend as appropriate. 

Team leaders/supervisors will be responsible to the Service Managers for the 
implementation of policies, procedures and safe working practice within the work 
areas under their control. 

Employee duties 

Employees have a duty to take care of their own health and safety and that of others 
who may be affected by their actions at work. They must also co-operate with 
management and co-workers to help everyone meet legal requirements. Employees 
must: 

 take care of their own health and safety and that of others; 

 co-operate to help Colchester Borough Homes comply with health and safety 
legislation; 

 follow any instructions or health and safety training you provide; 

 report any work situations that present a serious and imminent risk; and 

 Highlight any other failings they identify in our health and safety 
arrangements. 

Employees also must not interfere with or obstruct anything provided in the interests 
of health and safety at work. 
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4. Strategic arrangements 
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5. Operational arrangements 
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6. Health & safety framework within the Company 

Colchester Borough Homes is an Arm’s Length Management Company (ALMO) set 
up by Colchester Borough Council to manage the Council’s housing. It is wholly 
owned by the Council. 

Colchester Borough Homes can be divided into three principal areas, each with their 
own Health and Safety risks, namely: 

1. Property Services  

2. Housing Management + Sheltered Housing Services 

3. Business services. 

As a company we have our own Health & Safety Policy (this document), our own 
Health & Safety Manager responsible for advising on Health and Safety matters but 
has formally adopted Colchester Borough Council’s Health & Safety procedures (as 
from time to time adapted to CBH arrangements) recognising them as best practice. 

The Company will participate in Health & Safety training and forums for Health & 
Safety representatives, first-aiders, incident controllers and fire marshals as 
appropriate. 

We will seek to achieve (and retain) an internationally recognised standard for Health 
& Safety management systems and practice (Occupational Health and Safety 
Management Systems OHSAS 18001). 

The CBH headquarters at Rowan House is leased from Colchester Borough Council. 
As landlords, the Council has procedures to manage emergencies and fire and bomb 
threats and would therefore act as incident controllers in such a case. 
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7. Strategic organisation & responsibilities 
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provision of Health and Safety advice, 
management and control of the Health and 
Safety function 

 

 

H&S Liaison Committee 

Supported by Property 

Services HS&E Committee 

 

Specialist Advice 

Monitor the effectiveness of the strategic and 
Operational Health and Safety Strategy, 
Policies and Provisions 

 
 
 
Offer specialist advice to CBH Health & 
Safety Liaison Committee, undertake specific 
Health & Safety duties as agreed 
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8. Operational Organisation and Responsibilities 

Health & Safety Manager 

First Aiders 

Senior Managers 

Health and Safety 
Representatives 

Manager/Supervisor 

Responsible to the Director of Property Services for 
the management of Health and Safety within the 
Service 

Responsible to the Senior Managers for the 
management of Health and Safety in the workplace, 
the production of Codes of Safe Working Practices, 
Risk Assessments and Accident Investigations 

Responsible for providing a comprehensive, 
professional Health and Safety Advisory Service to 
Group Service Managers, Managers and 
Employees, assisting in the implementation of 
Service and Strategic Health and Safety Policies 
and Procedures 

For taking care of their own Health and Safety and 
the Health and Safety of others who may be affected 
by what they do, or fail to do 

Fire Marshals 

To make representations to management on 
behalf of their members on all matters 
concerning their health and safety 

To monitor the provision of the First Aid 
services, and to provide first aid to employees 
whilst at work and other persons on Council and 
Company property 

To manage emergencies such as fire and bomb 
threats. To control building evacuation and re 
entry into buildings and to liaise with the Fire 
and Police Authorities  
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9. Objectives 

This Strategic Health and Safety Policy commits us to carrying out our 
undertakings in such a way as to ensure that they are not harmful to the 
Health and Safety of our employees, contractors, and other persons not in the 
employ of the Company. 

The Company recognises that Health and Safety is an integral part of the 
management function and, as such, needs to be managed using the same 
managerial skills and techniques that are used in the management of other 
services. To this end, Strategic Health and Safety Goals have been set for the 
management of Health and Safety. 

Purpose of Health and Safety goals 

The purposes of the Health and Safety goals are to: 

1. Establish Health and Safety management standards 

2. Establish the Health and Safety competencies of our workforce 

3. Control the risks to all of the Company and Council's assets 

4. Ensure the control of contractors. 

To carry out our undertakings in such a way as to ensure the Health and 
Safety of all Colchester Borough Homes employees whilst at work and that of 
others who might be affected by the Company’s undertaking. 

This includes the training of staff to undertake their own responsibilities to 
identify and report Health and Safety risks and to protect others from harm on 
behalf of CBH. 

10. Consultation  

The document is guided by the Company’s Health, Safety and Environmental 
Liaison Group. 

It is their guidance that formats the Policy Statement and the supporting 
documentation, covering roles and responsibilities and implementation of this 
policy. 

11. References  

The principal references come from the requirements outlined in Health and 
Safety Legislation, specifically: 

 Health & Safety at Work Act (1974) 

 Safety Representatives and Safety Committees Regulations (1977) 
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 Health and Safety Information for Employees Regulations (1989) 

 Management of Health & Safety at Work Regulations (1999) 

 Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order (2005) 

12. Related Documents 

This document is expanded through three supporting documents: 

 SAF 002 CBH Health & Safety organisational responsibilities  

 SAF 003 CBH - H&S Procedures 

 OHSAS 18001 guidance, practice, report and recommendations 
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Glossary 

CBC Colchester Borough Council  

CBH Colchester Borough Homes 

COSHH Control of Substances Hazardous to Health 

DSEAR Dangerous Substances Explosive Atmosphere 
Regulations  

RRFSO Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 
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1. Introduction 

As landlord of the premises covered by this policy, Colchester Borough 
Council has legal and moral obligations in relation to fire safety as outlined by 
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 and the Health and Safety at 
Work Act 1974 

CBC has appointed Colchester Borough Homes as agents to discharge their 
duties. Therefore this policy describes the practices and procedures 
implemented by CBH in order to undertake this. 

This document identifies the structure, procedures and responsibilities of 
managing fire safety in accordance with legal requirements as delegated to 
CBH and covers the fire safety approach to all of the dwellings and workplace 
facilities such as offices and workshops. This fire safety policy also forms part 
of the CBH overarching risk management strategy. 

2. Purpose 

The consequences of a fire at any of the dwellings occupied by CBC 
tenants/or leaseholder can be especially serious due to the difficulties and 
dangers associated with the emergency evacuation of residents, some of 
whom may be highly dependent and lack physical or mental capacity. The aim 
therefore must be to ensure that, if possible, outbreaks of fire do not occur 
and that, if and when outbreaks do occur, they are rapidly detected, effectively 
contained and quickly extinguished. This means that overall fire safety will 
depend on physical factors such as building construction, design and 
maintenance, together with equipment and furnishings and proper use and 
maintenance of detection and alarm systems, and also on local policies and 
staff training for handling emergencies. 

Although, if required, evacuation from any of the non-dwellings buildings, such 
as offices and workshops should be much simpler, poorly managed fire 
precaution could be just as catastrophic. Therefore this policy equally 
describes procedures required in non-residential areas under the control of 
CBH. 

3. Emergency response procedures 

3.1 Fires in dwellings - Stay Put Policy 

All of the dwellings under the control of CBH operate a stay put policy, fire action 
notices to this effect are on display in each building. On discovering a fire or 
hearing a fire alarm the following procedures are to be followed. 

 If the fire is in a communal area or in another flat, (unless you feel 
in danger) stay in your flat and wait for the fire services to either rescue 
you or give the all clear. 

 If the fire is in your flat - raise the alarm and leave your flat 
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 Call the emergency services on 999 and report the location of the fire to 
the fire services 

 If safe to do so warn others in common areas of the building 

 Leave the building by the nearest fire exit 

 If safe to do so, report the incident to the person in charge. 

3.2 Evacuation of employee buildings 

On hearing the alarms employees are to immediately evacuate the building 
via the nearest fire exit. There must be no delay to get personal items or 
attempt to deviate off a designated emergency escape route.  Once out of the 
building employees are to muster at the designated emergency assembly 
point. If safe to do so, trained fire marshals will check the fire panel to confirm 
the location that the alarm was activated from and conduct a sweep of all 
areas, including store rooms and toilets and report to the emergency co-
ordinator/ fire services their findings. Under no circumstances is any person to 
re-enter a building until given express permission from the emergency co-
ordinator. 

3.2.1. Fires in external areas 

If you see a fire in an external areas e.g. car parks, the alarm must be raised, 
either by breaking the nearest wall mounted “break glass” call point, or if none 
are present in the vicinity, or in isolated open car parks / grounds use a mobile 
phone to call emergency services on 999 and if appropriate shout “fire, fire”. 

3.2.2. Personal Emergency Evacuation Plans (PEEP) 

A PEEP must be produced for any member of staff who has a disability that 
could affect their ability to evacuate their workplace. The plan will outline what 
additional measures or assistance are likely to be needed by the individual in 
order for them to evacuate safely. A “buddy system” might be required to 
ensure they are given assistance to evacuate in a fire situation. If a PEEP is 
not appropriate other measures will be put in place.  PEEPs will be 
undertaken by the health and safety team, with consultation with the person 
requiring assisted escape and their line manager. 

4. Fire precautions and system testing 

4.1 Fire alarm testing 

On each site under the control of CBH, where a fire alarm system is in place 
there will be a weekly test of the system. Tests will be carried out at a 
specified time on the same day each week with records being kept locally. 
The alarms will be sounded for approximately four or five rings each test and 
the date/time will be advertised at the premises. 

It is important to note that local individual fire alarm tests are undertaken on a 
rotational cycle at these times. Therefore both staff and residents should not 

181



expect to hear their local alarm each week. This is to ensure that all call points 
are tested in rotation. 

Please be aware that in agreement with Essex Fire and Rescue there are no 
fire detection units or call points in common areas of general needs flats. 
Smoke detection units inside the general needs flats are tested annually. 

On hearing the alarm at any time other that advertised or the continuation of 
these alarms, staff /residents are to respond in accordance with the fire 
procedure for their area, unless they have been specifically forewarned that 
there is to be an additional test. 

Smoke detection units will be serviced at a minimum of an annual frequency 
by a competent person. If the fire risk assessment requires it, this may be a 
shorter frequency. 

4.2 Fire extinguishers and sprinklers 

Fire extinguishers will be tested and maintained in accordance with British 
Standard BS5306. Each extinguisher will be inspected annually via a 
nominated competent person or company and will bear a label displaying the 
date of the most recent inspection. The adequacy of fire extinguisher 
coverage is reviewed annually as part of the fire risk assessment process and 
additional reviews made as necessary if there is a change of use, increased 
risk or new equipment or processes. 

P50 fire extinguisher units are in place in many of the staff based locations. 
These units are exempt from testing as they have a 10 year warrantee. All 
P50 units in our premises will be either refurbished or disposed of after a 10 
year period. 

A limited number of sprinkler system are in place at relevant properties. These 
will be serviced annually by a competent person. 

4.3 Emergency lighting 

The frequency of emergency lighting testing will be established via local fire 
risk assessment, however it will be at a minimum of quarterly by nominate 
responsible persons. Emergency lighting will be serviced at minimum 
annually, this will be undertaken by a competent person/company. 

4.4 Fire precautions & high risks 

This section highlights high fire risk issues and how CBH takes its approach to 
minimise the risk. 

4.4.1. Arson 

The risk of arson is ever-present and is still the biggest cause of fires in non-
domestic premises in the UK. The most effective tactic to employ against the 
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arsonist is to deny the opportunity. Careless disposal of combustible materials 
outside a building or in a common area is an encouragement to the arsonist 
and should be avoided. When safe to do so unfamiliar faces or persons 
without relevant identification should be challenged to identify themselves and 
any failure to do so satisfactorily reported immediately to the person in charge 
and/or the health and safety team. 

Service managers and others having responsibility for buildings or parts of 
buildings must ensure that the potential for arson is recognised and taken fully 
into account and where necessary improvements made. Advice is available 
from the CBH health and safety team as required. 

Following a fire started under suspicious circumstances, or where arson is 
suspected, managers are to ensure that the scene and material evidence in 
any form is left undisturbed pending investigation by the relevant authority. 
Any personnel with involvement in the fire incident should be released from 
duty and made available for immediate interview by the authorities. 

4.4.2. Smoking materials 

The use of smoking materials including e-cigarettes is not permitted within 
any of the common area of residential buildings that CBH have responsibility 
or areas such as doorways and windows that are adjacent. The use of 
smoking materials including e-cigarettes is not permitted in any area that 
employees work, this includes all staff based buildings, outside areas and 
company vehicles. The charging of e-cigarettes is also not permitted in any of 
the aforementioned areas. Illicit smoking has the potential to pose a 
significant fire risk and is to be treated seriously with appropriate actions taken 
to enforce the no smoking policy. 

Under no circumstance must a resident or tenant be allowed to smoke or use/ 
charge an e-cigarette whilst using or being near medical gases. 

4.4.3. Medical gases 

Signage must be placed on the main door to any resident or tenant abode that 
uses medical gases such as oxygen as well as the main entrance door to the 
building. 

Tenants/leaseholders must inform CBH if they are using or going to use 
medical gases. 

4.4.4. Hot works 

Before any hot works are undertaken a hot works permit must be filled out 
and submitted to a designated competent person. Once the hot works are 
completed the permit must be closed down and signed off. Only trained and 
competent persons either CBH employees or contractors are permitted to 
undertake hot works in areas under the control of CBH. 
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4.4.5. Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) 

The amount of flammable substances being stored should be kept to a 
minimum and stored in a cool, well ventilated secure area, preferably one 
reserved for the storage of flammable substances and having adequate low-
level ventilation. 

Aerosol cans or gas bottles must not be exposed to excessive heat, for 
example direct sunlight or radiators 

Flammable substances must be handled and stored carefully and in 
accordance with the manufactures instructions to avoid damage and never 
used near naked flames or other sources of ignition. An aerosol canister must 
not be operated when it is damaged. Manufacturers’ warnings printed on the 
container must always be observed. Containers are to be sealed or capped 
immediately after use and not be left standing in direct sunlight or where they 
may be knocked over. 

The health and safety team must be made aware of any new substances 
being used by CBH employees, so a COSHH risk assessment can be 
undertaken. It is employee’s responsibility to read and comply with COSHH 
risk assessments with a view to fire safety. CBH COSHH assessments can be 
viewed on the Assure system, COSHH assessments undertaken by 
contracted clearing companies are stored locally in cleaning cupboards, 
contractors working on voids or sites must have undertaken COSHH 
assessments  and kept then in safety folders on site.  . 

4.4.6. Electrics 

All electrical items used in common areas must have a portable appliance test 
via a competent person or company before use. Unauthorised electrical 
appliances must not be used in common area of any of the premises. Further 
PAT are undertaken at   intervals set via risk assessment but no greater than 
a three year cycle. 

On discovering any faulty/ damaged electrical appliances, employees must 
stop using the appliance, where possible isolate the electrics and report the 
issue to the property services department for repair or replacement. 

The use of block electrical plugs is not allowed in any areas under the control 
of CBH. Strip plugs can be used as long as they are not adjoined (daisy 
chained) and have a current PAT in place. 

4.4.7. Cooking Appliances 

Microwaves, kettles and toasters are to be used only in authorised areas with 
appropriate fire detection i.e. kitchens or rest rooms. 

Cooking appliances in commercial kitchens are included as part of the fire risk 
assessment process. Procedures in the management of kitchen equipment 
must ensure they are under a robust system of test and maintenance. 
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Care is to be taken with toasters and microwaves to prevent food stuffs being 
burnt that may activate a smoke detection and cause unwanted fire alarms. It 
is recommended the toaster crumb trays are emptied/cleaned regularly to 
guard against unwanted fire alarms. 

The areas where cooking takes place, such as a kitchen must be fitted with 
heat sensor detection and the door kept closed to prevent any smoke from 
cooking activating smoke detection outside of the area. 

The location of toasters and microwaves is to be away from combustible 
materials and not placed next to notice boards with paper attachments and 
care taken when used under wall mounted cabinets. 

4.4.8. DSEAR (Dangerous Substances and Explosive Atmospheres 
Regulations 2002) 

There are no quantities of substances stored or used in any CBH locations 
that would fall under the provision of DSEAR 

4.4.9. Escape Routes 

It is in everyone’s interest that buildings have good efficient fire precautions, 
everyone can help by taking the following action: 

• Do not allow items that will obstruct or slow down evacuation, or combustible 
materials to be placed on escape routes 

• Do not wedge/prop open fire doors 

• Do not secure or obstruct doors on escape routes so they cannot be opened 
easily by those making an escape 

• Do not obstruct signs that show escape routes, fire alarm call points or 
extinguishers 

• Do not allow holes or gaps in walls and floors to develop. This would allow 
the spread of smoke and heat. Defects must be reported property services. 

8. Fire risk assessments 

Fire Risk Assessments are undertaken by the health and safety team or a 
nominated competent person/company using the Assure system. 

Fire risk assessments for all buildings under the control of CBH (with the 
exception of general needs blocks of flats) are reviewed every 12 months or 
when there is a significant change of risk. Electronic copies of the completed 
fire risk assessments are available on the Assure system with paper copies 
kept in the grey fire boxes at sheltered schemes and on notice boards at the 
general needs blocks of flats. 

185



General needs flats - Due to the lack of significant change and ongoing fire 
inspections by the community caretaking team, fire risk assessment reviews 
in general needs flats will be reviewed on a rolling schedule over a 5-year 
period. Visual inspections on general needs flats are formally undertaken 
annually with additional ad hoc inspections as required. 

9. Policy statement 

Colchester Borough Homes agrees to: 

 Bring the fire safety policy and any revisions to the notice of all staff, 
relevant contractors, the board, tenants/leaseholders and anyone other 
relevant person having business on premises under our control 

 Make the policy available to any person who may wish to consult it and 
place copies for reference on Intranet and Assure systems 

 Pledge its commitment to adopt the requirements of The Regulatory 
Reform (Fire Safety) Order, and to comply with all relevant statutory 
requirements in respect of fire safety for the areas under our control 
and make CBC aware if any breaches in areas that they have 
responsibility for. 

 Involve and enlist the support of all employees in achieving fire safety 
objectives 

 Monitor the effects of this policy and present the results in a published 
annual health and safety report. 

10. Scope 

The scope of this policy includes all employees carrying out their duties, 
tenants, leaseholder, contractors and any persons that may be on premises 
under the control of CBH. This fire safety policy covers all premises, fixtures 
and fittings or items that are fire safety related. 

11. Roles and responsibilities 

5.1 The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for CBH performance in 
respect of fire safety. 

5.2      The Director of Resources has direct responsibility for fire safety 
including but not exhaustively: 

 Fire safety issues and activity in conjunction with the Health and Safety 
Manager 

 Ensuring that at least annually, a report is presented to the Board of 
CBH 

 Ensuring that agreed programmes of investment in fire precautions and 
training are properly accounted for. 

 Ensuring that future developments & project works comply with this 
policy 
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 Ensuring the appropriate inspection, testing and maintenance of 
firefighting equipment and associated fire precautions infrastructure are 
carried out. 

5.3 The Health, Safety, Environmental & CDM Manager is responsible for 
including but not exhaustively: 

 Updating the board and senior management of the current state of fire 
safety in all premises for which CBH is responsible 

 Ensuring the effective upkeep of the fire safety policy established for all 
the premises Colchester Borough Homes have responsibility for. 

 Preparing an annual fire safety statement for the board as part of the 
health and safety report. 

 Facilitating all staff to participate in fire safety training and fire 
drills/instruction in accordance with this policy. With enhanced training 
being given to nominated fire marshals and others on request of 
management 

 Reviewing reports of all fire incidents from the CBH Assure reporting 
system and arranging for them to be acted upon as required. 

 For advising on all matters concerning fire precautions and situations in 
premises which do not conform to recognised fire standards or 
requirements, and for preparing and delivering reports containing 
recommendations for improvements. 

 For advising on fire precautions arrangements for new or altered 
existing premises. 

 For liaising, with the Fire Authority and other relevant statutory bodies 
having advisory or mandatory consequences over fire precautions in 
premises. 

 For ensuring that periodic visual inspections of premises under the 
control of CBH are carried out. 

 For ensuring that suitable a sufficient fire risk assessments are 
undertaken as outlined in this policy 

In conjunction with senior management for ensuring the appropriate 
inspection, testing and maintenance of firefighting equipment, fire alarm 
systems, emergency lighting and associated fire precautions infrastructure are 
carried out. 

5.4 Senior managers are responsible for including but not exhaustively: 

 Bringing the existence and contents of the fire policy to the attention of 
those employees for whom they are responsible and to ensure that 
individual members of staff understand their duties and responsibilities 
in the event of fire. 

 Support and promote the nomination and training of fire marshals in 
their work place working with the Health and Safety Manager. 

 Monitor and manage compliance of staff to attend mandatory fire 
training as recorded by the human resources department. 

 To ensure that any contractors working in areas covered by this policy 
have relevant risk assessments in place for their tasks, are suitably 
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trained and have been made aware of localise fire safety and 
evacuation procedures. 

5.5 All employees of CBH have a responsibility to: 

 Attend fire safety training as set out in this policy 

 Take time to understand fire hazards of their working environment 

 Practice and promote fire prevention and report any items left on 
evacuation routes that breach the “sterile area” policy or create a fire 
hazard 

 Report any fire related incidents, hazards and near misses via the 
Assure software system and in the case of a serious situation 
immediately to management / the health and safety team 

 Co-operate with management to ensure that rules and regulations 
regarding fire safety are effective 

 Not interfere with anything provided for fire safety 

 Co-operate with practice fire evacuation “drills”. 

12. Tenant and leaseholder responsibilities 

5.6 Tenants and Leaseholders must comply to the relevant sections of 
this policy that include but not exhaustively 

 Not interfering with or replacing without express permission any door, 
windows or part of the structure of the premises they are living in that 
directly help protect an emergency escape route 

 Not holding/wedging open any fire doors, either to their own premises 
or in common areas 

 Report any fire related incidents, hazards and near misses to CBH. This 
includes items stored in common areas i.e corridors and landings. 

 Not storing or leaving  any items in common areas of the building they 
reside in 

 Not storing or charging a mobility scooter in any area without the 
express permission of CBH, this includes common areas, the 
premises they live in and outside areas adjacent to the building. 

 Not storing large quantities of flammable materials in their place of 
residence 

 Although smoking and using/charging e-cigarettes is permitted in 
tenants/ leaseholders individual homes , this is not allowed in 
common areas inside the buildings or any undesignated areas outside 

 Making CBH aware if they are using/ storing medical gases such as 
oxygen and having an appropriate sign kept on their front door. 

 Co-operate with the local evacuation systems for the building they 
reside in. this includes the “stay put” procedure. 

 Leaseholders are to provide an annual gas safety inspection 
certificate. 
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13. Training 

It is a mandatory requirement that all staff, without exception, undergo training 
in fire precautions. Training required will be appropriate to the employee’s role 
but at minimum fire procedures training will be given on local and safety 
inductions. 

The health and safety team will provide sufficient and suitable fire safety 
training as required/requested to meet the Induction and mandatory fire safety 
training requirements. 

All appointed fire marshals, visiting officers and community caretakers must 
attend fire marshal training. Refresher training will be delivered every two 
years. 

As part of the ongoing employee fire safety training, all staff based buildings 
will have 6 monthly unadvertised practice evacuations “drills”. Results of the 
drill will be recorded and a full debrief with the health and safety team and fire 
marshals undertaken.  Failure to co-operate with the drill could lead to 
disciplinary action. No practice drills will be carried out at sheltered, temporary 
or general needs accommodation. 

14. Incident reporting 

All fire incidents, and events that have the potential to cause a fire are to be 
reported using the Assure system. It is the responsibility of all staff to report 
incidents or near misses using the system. Serious incidents must be reported 
immediately via phone or in person to senior management and the health and 
safety team. 

The investigation by the health and safety team will allocate the appropriate 
risk score for the event and if required actions will be set to reduce the 
likelihood of a reoccurrence. 

15. Monitoring & review 

This policy will be monitored by incident data collected from the Assure 
reporting system and training compliance figures produced by the HR 
department. These will feature in reports going to senior management, the 
board and both the Health and Safety Liaison Committee and Fire Safety 
groups. 

The policy will be reviewed at 3 year intervals or if there is a significant 
change to legislation or CBH practice and procedures. 
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16. Implementation and communication 

This policy and all following revisions will be uploaded to the intranet and the 
policy section of Assure 

This policy and all following revisions will be sent for consultation to: 

 The CBH Fire Safety Group 

 The Health and Safety Liaison Committee 

 The Board of Directors 

 Senior management. 

17. Equality and diversity 

Colchester Borough Homes are committed to the provision of a service that is 
fair, accessible and meets the needs of all individuals. 

18. References 

 Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

 The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 

 HM Guide for sleeping accommodation 

 LG fire safety guide for purpose built blocks of flats. 
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 
 
 
DATE:  3 July 2019 
 
TIME:   5.30 pm  
 
VENUE:  Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 14. 
 
SUBJECT:  Finance Assurance Report  
 
REPORT BY: Brian Richardson, Interim Director of Resources 
    07957 371581 
     brian.richardson@cbhomes.org.uk 
 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
  
1.1 To provide the Board with a high-level budget monitoring statement for the services 

managed by CBH as at 31 May 2019.  
  
2. Recommendations 
  
2.1 That the Board: 

 

• Note the budget position as at 31 May 2019. 
.  

3. Background 
  
3.1 This report focuses on how the services that CBH manages are performing 

financially compared to their budgets. This includes activities that are funded by 
budgets held by CBC. It does not include CBH’s trading activity, which is 
commercially sensitive, and so is not intended to provide a view of CBH’s 
performance as an accounting entity.  

  
3.2 The Management Fee Budgets are managed on a risk-based approach with a high 

level of monitoring on the key risk budgets. These include salaries, premises, SLAs 
and new services taken on from the Council. The salaries budget represents over 
70% of the controllable budgets and a detailed model is used to monitor this. 

  
3.3 The Finance & Audit (F&A) Committee monitors the progress against the budgets 

in detail at their meetings during the year to ensure these are effectively monitored. 
  
4. Review of Budget Position as at 31 May 2019 
  
4.1 Set out on Appendix 1 is a statement of the actual budget position as at the end of 

May 2019 and a forecast of the full year outturn.  
  
4.2 Expenditure on CBH Budgets 
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The period 2 expenditure is overspent on budget by £360.7k.  
 
This overspend can be analysed on the budget streams as follows: -  
 

 • Housing & Resources - under budget £9.2k 
• Property Services - under budget £57.6k 
• Capital works – over budget £427.5k 
 

The underspend on Housing & Resources comes mainly from vacancy factor in 
Housing Options and lower spend in Older Persons Services.  
 
The underspend on Property Services comes from vacancy factor £25,000, which 
includes the vacant Director of Property Services post and lower spend on repairs 
£20,000. The repairs underspend is due to current levels of demand and is not unusual 
going into the summer months. 
 
The higher spend on capital reflects the efforts to catch up on work that was not 
completed in 2018/19. This extra expenditure is matched by extra income and there 
will shortly be a virement to increase this budget as part of the process to make good 
last year’s underspend. 
 

4.3  Expenditure on CBC budgets 
  
 The period 2 expenditure is underspend on budget by £767.6k.  

 
This underspend can be analysed on the budget streams as follows: -  
 

• Capital – under budget £263.2k 
• Revenue – under budget - £20k 
• Delegated budgets - £484.4kk 

 
The underspend on capital is predominantly due to the bathroom and kitchen 
programmes. The bathroom contract is still going through the procurement process, 
once this contract is awarded the programme will need to be accelerated to ensure 
the programme is completed and spend achieved in year. The kitchen programme 
is behind profile due to a new contractor being in place. 
 
The underspend on revenue is predominantly due to the external painting 
programme which is behind profile due to on-going contractor issues. 
 
The underspend on the Delegated budgets is due to primarily to 2018/19 year-end 
accruals being released which have depressed this year’s expenditure. 

  
5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6 
 

Risk Management 
 
A strong financial control framework is essential for the successful delivery of the 
annual budget.  Monthly review of all expenditure items takes place and income 
invoiced and collected in a timely manner.  Any material items that may result in a 
significant deviation away from target will be reported to Finance and Audit 
Committee accordingly.  
 
Financial Implications 

6.1 These are incorporated in the body of the report. 
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7 

 
Value for Money Implications 
 
Successful delivery on performance targets for the year within these financial 
constraints will meet the requirements of the Value for Money Strategy. 

  
8. HR, Health & Safety and Equality & Diversity Implications 
  
8.1 None. 
  
9. Residents at the Heart 
  
9.1 Residents are indirectly involved in budgetary control as they review our 

performance on a regular basis. Our performance on standards is underpinned by 
our expenditure. 

  
10. 
 
10.1 

Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Budget Expenditure Position 
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Review of Budget Position Appendix 1

Budget 
2019/20

Actual 
2019/20

Actual 
(more)/less 
than Budget

Actual 
2018-19

Budget 
2019/20

Forecast 
2019/20

Forecast 
(more)/less 
than Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Expenditure on CBH Budgets
Housing and Resources 786.9 777.7 9.2 4,647.3 4,721.5 4,836.5 (115.0)
Property Services (including Corporate Facilities) 869.2 811.6 57.6 5,157.1 5,215.2 5,215.2 0.0
Capital works 302.3 729.8 (427.5) 4,141.7 1,814.0 1,814.0 0.0
Sub-total 1,958.4 2,319.2 (360.7) 13,946.1 11,750.7 11,865.7 (115.0)

Expenditure on CBC Budgets

Capital works 803.0 539.8 263.2 3,553.6 4,812.0 4,812.0 0.0
Revenue works 291.8 271.8 20.0 1,361.4 1,751.0 1,751.0 0.0
Delegated Budgets 772.0 287.6 484.4 4,999.3 4,632.0 4,632.0 0.0
Sub-total 1,866.8 1,099.2 767.6 9,914.3 11,195.0 11,195.0 0.0

Grand Total 3,825.2 3,418.4 406.9 23,860.4 22,945.7 23,060.7 (115.0)

Year to May 2019 Full Year
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD 
 
 
DATE:  3 July 2019 
 
TIME:   5.30 pm 
 
VENUE:  Room 1, Rowan House 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 15. 
 
SUBJECT:  Annual Report from Finance & Audit Committee 
 
REPORT BY: Glenn Houchell, Chair of Finance & Audit Committee 
 
 
FOR DECISION 
 
1. Introduction & Purpose 
  
1.1 The Committee is required to provide the Board with an annual review of its 

activities. Members are invited to consider the report for submission to the 
Board. 

  
1.2 Decision required: The Committee is asked to approve this report for 

presentation to the Board on 3 July 2019. 
  
2. Background 
  
2.1 This report outlines the activities of the Committee during 2017/18 and is 

presented to the Board as part of the governance assurance process. 
  
2.2 The purpose of the Committee, as set out in the Terms of Reference, is to: 

 
(a) Provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management 

framework and the associated control environment 
(b) Provide independent scrutiny of the Company’s financial and non-financial 

performance, including trading activity, to the extent that it affects the 
Company’s exposure to risk and weakens the control environment 

(c) Oversee the financial reporting process.  
  
2.3 The minutes of each Committee meeting have been reported to the Board 

and the Chair of the Committee has made the Board aware of any concerns 
at these meetings. Furthermore, the Chair of Committee is invited to report on 
any items which have been recommended by F&A for Board approval and to 
detail the Committee’s deliberations on these items. 

  
2.4 During the year, the Committee has received reports at each meeting, setting 

out financial and risk management performance, as well as a report which 
covers key governance issues, actions and timetables. 
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3. Finance & Audit Committee Activity – 2018-19 
  

Chair and Vice Chair 
There were no changes to either the Chair or Vice Chair during the period.  
 

 Risk Management 
  

3.1 The Committee has continued to take a robust approach to managing risk, 
which is a standing item on Committee agendas. Both the Emerging and 
Strategic Risk Registers are reviewed at every meeting. In addition, the 
Committee receives a summary of all the Company’s operational risk registers 
and the number of risks assessed to each RAG rating for each register. This 
helps inform us where resources should be allocated in the management of 
risk.  

  
3.2 We have supported management in the overhaul of the risk management 

process and consulted with the wider Board at key junctures. As reported at 
the last Board meeting, the overhaul is now in its implementation stage. As a 
Committee we look forward to being better equipped to deepen our scrutiny of 
individual risk assessments.  

  
 Financial Performance and Reporting     
  

3.3 The Committee has received a detailed update on the financial position of the 
Company every quarter, including trading activity and CBC’s management fee 
and delegated budgets. 

  
3.4 At its meeting on 7 June 2018, the Committee scrutinised the Audited 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 along with the 
associated documents. Our External Audit Partner, Tim O’Connor, was 
present at this meeting and the Committee was able to question him directly. 
The Financial Statements and accompanying documents were presented to 
Board for approval on 20 June 2018, and duly approved and filed with 
Companies House. Nigel Chapman represented the Committee at CBC’s 
Governance & Audit Committee on 4 September 2018 at which the 
Company’s 2017-18 Annual Governance Statement was presented. 

  
3.5 At its meeting on 5 December 2018 the Committee scrutinised the proposed 

budgets for 2019-20 and recommended them to the Board and CBC, as 
appropriate: 
 
• Management Fee budgets 
• Capital Works budgets 
• CBC delegated budgets 
 

  
3.6 The Committee continued to review regularly the Company’s capital reserves 

which has become an area of increasing focus for the Board. 
 
We have previously mentioned that the Company’s accounting practices need 
to be updated concerning the presentation of income and expenditure relating 
to trading activities. This is work in progress. 
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 Internal and external audit  
3.7 The Committee reviewed and approved the annual internal audit and external 

audit plans. 
  
3.8 The Internal Audit Manager regularly presented his reports on the progress on 

audits and follow reports on actions identified. We are satisfied that internal 
audit continues to identify areas where we may not meet latest best practice, 
and that it provides an effective and productive challenge to management. 
 
The 5-year Internal Audit Plan stretching out to 2023/24 was reviewed and 
agreed on 7 March 2019. We anticipate that there will be some tweaking of 
the plan to accommodate changes in priorities as the business moves 
forward. 
 
Following the self-review of our own performance, and with a view to seeking 
continuous improvement, we instigated a review of the Internal Audit function 
to explore how we might be able to further improve the value we receive from 
the programme. We received presentations from Internal Audit, the views of 
the business, and debated this topic at some length. As a consequence we 
have requested some easy-to-implement actions to help us. 

  
3.9 Committee was given assurance from both internal and external auditors that 

there was a strong culture of co-operation and that their activities had not 
been impaired. 

  
3.10 The external audit plan for the year ended 31st March 2019 was presented to 

Committee by the new audit partner, Luke Morris on 7th March, and was duly 
approved. 

  
3.11 Other matters 

In the summer of 2018 the Committee undertook its first self-assessment of its 
performance. We found it a worthwhile exercise and it identified two key 
themes to take forward: to look at how we might obtain even greater value 
from the internal audit programme from the perspective of seeking continuous 
improvement; and secondly to update the somewhat aged risk management 
process. Both issues have been progressed as noted elsewhere in this report. 
 
During the year the Committee reviewed two policies, as listed below, in 
addition to its own Terms of Reference. 
 
 

Policy Date reviewed 
Whistleblowing Policy 7 March 2019 
Prevention of Fraud, Corruption and Money 
Laundering Policy 

7 March 2019 
 

  
 

3.12 The Committee has continued to oversee the regulatory filings made on the 
Company’s behalf. 

  
3.13 At its meeting on 26 July 2018 the Committee received a presentation from 
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the Chair of the Operations Committee, who provided assurance that the 
committee had fulfilled the duties delegated to them by Board during the 
previous year. Subsequently, following the review of the Board’s committee 
structure, the Operations Committee was disbanded. Similarly, the 
Governance and Remuneration Committee was also disbanded.  
 
We have not received reports from either the Business Opportunities Panel 
(BOP) or the relatively newly constituted Appointments and Remuneration 
Committee. Activities of both are reported at regular Board meetings. We note 
that the Chair of the Board has reported at recent Board meetings that the 
future of the BOP, as currently constituted, is under review.  

  
3.14 In our review of our terms of reference (ToR) we identified that we had not 

hitherto received reports on Business Continuity Planning / Disaster 
Recovery. This may have been due, at least in part, to the nomenclature used 
in the ToR. This has been addressed and we now receive regular reporting 
and assurance accordingly. 
 

  
4. Financial Implications and Value for Money 
  
4.1 The Committee monitors the financial performance of the Company, the 

Company’s accounting policies and the annual audit of the year-end financial 
statements, as described in the main body of the report. Strong oversight and 
monitoring of the Company's finances helps ensure that unnecessary 
spending is identified and minimized and that value for money is maximised, 
noting the Company's social aims.  

  
5. HR Implications 
  
5.1 The audit work conducted by F&A Committee has numerous general HR 

implications. The work of Internal Audit provides assurance regarding the 
effectiveness of the governance, policies and procedures in place to support 
and direct officers, identifying perceived shortcomings. Where causes for 
concern arise, Committee is appraised and informed of actions taken to 
address such concerns.  

  
5.2 The Committee is satisfied that it’s work has been fully and adequately 

supported by officers in the year.  
  
6. Legal Implications 
  
6.1 The Committee assures the Board that it has complied with its duties in 

respect of the audited financial statements, regulatory filings, and the powers 
and duties delegated to it by the Board. 

  
7. Health & Safety Implications 
  
7.1 No direct implications, however Committee’s audit work and oversight is a key 

part of ensuring that CBH adheres to its duties relating to Health & Safety. 
  
8. Equality & Diversity Implications 
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8.1 None. 
  
9. Residents at the Heart 
  
9.1 This report is intended to provide residents with public assurance that the 

Committee is conducting its role of scrutiny and audit effectively. 
  
10. Appendix 
  
10.1 None. 
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Minutes of the Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 
 
Held at 4pm on Tuesday 4th June 2019 
In Room 1, Rowan House 
 
Present:  In Attendance:  
Glenn Houchell (Chair) Gareth Mitchell Chief Executive 
Julie Parker (Vice Chair) Brian Richardson (BR) Director of Resources 
Cllr Nigel Chapman  Luke Morris (LM) (Scrutton Bland) 
Geoff Foster  Vanessa Bateman (VB) (Mazars) 
Cllr Cyril Liddy  Alan Woodhead (AW) (Mazars) 
Michael Campbell  Lucy Williams (LW) Board Assurance Officer 

(Minutes) 
 
 
 
1. Apologies for absence 
  
1.1 Apologies received from Michael Campbell and Sharon Stephens. It was noted 

that LM had given prior notice of arriving late to the meeting. 
  
2. Minutes of the meeting held on 7th March 2019 and Matters Arising 
  
2.1 The minutes were accepted as being a true and accurate record of the meeting 

held on 7th March 2019 and approved for the Chair to sign.  
  
 Matters arising 
2.2 Final item for finding the date of CBC’s Governance and Audit Committee at 

which the Finance and Audit Chair is to present the Annual Governance 
Statement.  
 
Action: Date for CBC’s Governance and Audit & inform F&A chair – LW. 

  
3. Head of Internal Audit Opinion Report 
  
3.1 VB introduced her annual opinion report. The group were reminded of the 

accounts completed in the year. The group were referred to the comparison of 
assurance ratings year on year, and it was noted that the procurement audit was 
outstanding. The committee received a breakdown of Internal Audit Performance 
which included that 100% of the recommendations made were accepted.  

  
3.2 The committee welcomed the report. A query was raised regarding Q1 

procurement and the assurance. AW advised that that assurance information 
was provided in the previous report.  

  
3.3 A query was put to Mazars regarding the upward trend in financial assurance on 

p.19. It was confirmed that it had become increasingly difficult to find fault with 
certain systems and procedures as CBH had improved over time. VB shared 
that there was a finite number of audit days available.  
 
LM joined the meeting.  [ approximately 4.10pm ] 
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4. Internal Audit progress and follow up reports 
  
4.1 AW updated the committee with key features from the report highlighting the 

work 2018 – 19 and outlined some of the work undertaken since then.  
  
4.2 The group heard that an audit was continuing with the capital works for which 

good progress was being made. AW referred to the Appendix for this item and 
advised that two recommendations had been raised (p.2 & p.3).  

  
4.3 A question was asked of the reference to the team leader sending an email. BR 

informed the committee that this was an email to those processing and 
responding regarding the improvement in a paperless format, and it was 
confirmed that email is a simple paperless audit trail.  

  
4.4 Regarding the Suspense Account, which relates to the Rent System, BR 

confirmed the payment received with an incorrect reference. A query was raised 
regarding the new payroll system and GM confirmed that the new system was 
stable and working well.  

  
4.5 A query about the difference between a technical virement and non-technical 

virement was raised. BR informed the committee that if money was to be moved 
in way that does not conform with board approval then this would be a non-
technical virement. A technical virement would be change in cost centre coding 
of an item within a budget, not affecting what the money was to be spent on.  

  
4.6 AW shared with the group that in between the Finance & Audit Committee 

meetings, Mazars follow up all recommendations. The group discussed the audit 
follow up report p.36 - 39 and it was noted that under the section highlighting the 
key issues to bring to the board, that 14% of Internal Audit recommendations 
had not reached due date, but in reality this represented one report. 

  
4.7 Decision: The committee noted the progress of the reports.  
  
5. Strategic Risk Register Review 
  
5.1 The committee heard from BR about the existing risk register. BR highlighted 

that since the Homelessness Reduction Act had been introduced just over a 
year ago it was felt that the risk had been managed and, in this case, had been 
downgraded to operational.  

  
5.2 The group discussed the emerging risks that had been underlined, which were 

risks due to pension and risks due to the website. It was felt that the issues and 
concerns around these items were being addressed.  

  
5.3 A committee member highlighted their recent visit to the Colchester Borough 

Homes (CBH) website and indicated that some of the pages were out of date. 
BR confirmed that the team were working on this and delays had been caused 
because a lot of the website content had to be re-written.  

  
5.4 In reference to the risk score it was questioned why the risk was at target. BR 

advised the committee that the new risk register will cover these items for which 
mitigation would be needed.  
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5.5 An enquiry was put forward regarding the new Capita System and whether 

Gateway reviews had been considered. Ideally 6 – 8 weeks before the system 
goes live. It was felt that this had been a productive process in other high-risk 
systems and was recommended for CBH. GM shared with the committee that on 
the procurement timeline entries had been scheduled with implementation 
methodology so that that decisions could be accounted for. GM confirmed that 
this alternative structure of a Gateway Process and advised that this would be 
considered with the decision process.  
Action: Consider a Gateway Reviews for the new Capita System timeline - GM 

  
5.6 The Working Smarter Plan referred to on p.46 was discussed and it was noted 

that work had moved on to Working Smarter 2, and that this is embedded in the 
appropriate strategic plan. BR suggested that this could be picked up through 
the plan and agreed to remove Working Smarter Plan from this section.  
Action: BR to remove Working Smarter 2 Plan from the Strategic Risk Register 
Review – BR.  

  
5.7 Decision: The committee approved the Strategic Risk Register Review.  
  
6. Redesign of risk management process 
  
6.1 BR introduced the redesigned risk management process and outlined the work 

and decisions that had been involved to get to this stage. BR referred to the 
People Plan and informed the committee that CBH were aiming to get in to the 
Times top 100 employers list. For this section the headings form part of the 
focus and then the risk is detailed below.  

  
6.2 The committee heard that this redesign allowed a challenge of an action against 

the focus to ensure that the outcome can be delivered from that action. BR 
shared that they were reviewing the consequential impacts of not delivering.  

  
6.3 Comments were shared about the colouring of the People Plan. It was felt that 

the colouring system was confusing. The committee were advised that this was 
the change being made to the register, and that different areas of the business 
could tolerate different levels of risk. BR projected a more detailed impact sheet 
for the group to see on the screen so that the committee could see the 
instructions.  
 
The committee felt that the detailed map showing how risk and impact colours 
had been derived was helpful and requested that in future the information that 
the business sees should also be seen by the relevant committee or board.  
Action: Detailed impact heat map to be shared with committees and Board in 
future to aid understanding - BR 

  
6.4 It was questioned about how well the business had been adapting to this new 

register and BR shared with the committee that the new system had been well 
received. In particular, the challenge to the actions in the business plan was well 
received. 

  
6.5 A suggestion was made to put this process to all service areas to ensure that the 

system works, and the committee agreed with this recommendation. BR also 
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highlighted some of the generic operational risks which can be some of the 
biggest.  

  
6.6 A query was raised about mitigation and timelines for the work, and how to factor 

in timetabled risk without becoming stuck in the granular detail, and ensuring 
progress can be made to achieve the objectives. BR explained the process and 
how the actions are fed through from the strategic plan to ensure continuity.  

  
6.7 A comment was put forward regarding the Skills Development on p.56. It was 

suggested that more detail is needed to aid understanding, for example the 
expected timeframe to get this down to a more acceptable level would be 
helpful.  

  
6.8 It was commented that there were no ambers on this system at present, which 

could have just been the way that amber had been set. A suggestion was made 
about the bedding-in issues, such as risks potentially being assessed to be too 
high. It was recommended that at intervals a thorough in-depth review of each 
plan could be completed.   

  
 Action: Every time a new plan is presented to the board, it would also be added 

to the risk register. The committee agreed that there would be a regular 
schedule of risks that would be rotated to the Finance and Committee meetings 
– BR/LW 

  
7. Finance and Audit annual report to Board 
  
7.1 The Chairman invited the committee to consider his annual report to the board 

and invited any questions or comments.  
  
7.2 Decision: The committee approved the Chairman’s annual report to the Board.  
  
8. Annual Governance Statement – RECOMMENDATION REQUIRED 
  
8.1 
 

The committee heard from BR that there had been there had been no 
governance issues during the 2018-19 period to bring to its attention. This year 
BR advised that they would be looking at more procurement training. The group 
heard that the board effectiveness review action plan was to be completed.  

  
8.2 A query was raised regarding the wording on p.75 and it was agreed that the 

wording should be changed from ‘the Internal Audit’s’ to ‘the Internal Auditors’. 
The committee agreed the amendment- Agreed. - BR 

  
8.3 Decision: The committee recommended the Annual Governance Statement, as 

amended, to the Board for approval.  
  
9. 2018-19 Year-end outturn / CBH financial update – DECISIONS REQUIRED 
  
9.1 SJ presented the financial update to the committee and informed that the 

reasoning behind the update was to give more detail and information for the 
accounts that might not be in the financial statements.   

  
9.2 It was noted that on p.79 the year end outturn shows deficit of £224k.  
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9.3 A comment shared regarding appendix B, where it was felt that the presentation 

of accumulated profit could be misleading as it did not seek to demonstrate the 
year-on-year volatility in the trading surplus. For example, from 2017/18 to 
2018/19 there had been a £200k swing from profit to a loss. It was suggested 
that a more conventional approach was to show the profit made in each year, for 
a series of years, in order to indicate progress.  
 
SJ advised that they would report trading year on year if that would be helpful to 
distribute, and the committee welcomed this information for understanding 
trends.   
 

  
9.4 The committee heard about the impacts of salaries, facilities and how making 

money is forecast with the 5-year plan. If this plan is not realised, then it was 
noted that the situation would have to be changed.  

  
9.5 The group discussed the accounting policy and how to recognise revenue in a 

different way. A request was made to have a separate analysis of a project, for 
example the Mercury Project so that these areas can be better understood. 
Action: Separate analysis for projects to be shared with Finance & Audit 
Committee - BR 

  
 The committee heard about new trading opportunities that had come from 

redevelopment of sites in the year. The Council are not yet ready to redevelop 
this area and so CBH are using this as temporary accommodation.  

  
 Decision: The committee noted the following;  

1.1 The 2018/19 CBH and Delegated budget year end outturns. 
1.2 The balance of debts owed to CBH as at 31 March 2019. 
1.3 The CBC delegated carry-forwards of £883,100 which have been submitted            
to the Council for approval. 
1.4 The overall position on general. 

  
  
10. CBH Audited Financial Statements 2018/19 
  
10.1 LM thanked the Chair for drafting the agenda so that he could present his item 

later in the schedule. LM advised the committee that the audit had largely been 
completed. He highlighted that the figures had been verified and the audit was 
clean except for the pensions deficit.  

  
10.2 The group heard that the audit partner anticipated signing off the pension deficit 

number, which needed to be acknowledged by the Council. A small change in 
the pension fund assumptions can cause a big change in the deficit, and LM 
confirmed that he was comfortable that these assumptions were falling within the 
bench mark tolerances.  

  
10.3 LM referred to the financial statements on p.93. The work had been completed 

and changes were not expected.  
  
10.4 There had been reclassification for how to look at employee costs (p.126 of 
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pack). The committee were advised that it is a statutory obligation to include 
employee numbers and costs and additional costs such as redundancy and 
agency payments. The breakdown of additional costs is not required but assists 
the user.  

  
10.5 The group discussed the terminology and the difference between emoluments 

and renumeration. For example, the Chair of the board is not salaried but is 
compensated. LM explained the use of the terms remuneration and emoluments 
and committee agreed to stay with the term originally used, emoluments.  
Agreed. 

  
10.6 Regarding the Directors expenses the committee agreed that these should be 

detailed in a note at the bottom rather than as part of the payment package. 
Agreed. 

  
10.7 LM pointed the group to p.95 and the year end balance sheet and that the net 

pensions liability had increased by £300k. The actuaries discount rate had fallen 
from 2.55% to 2.4% due to the time value of money and this had made a big 
impact before offsets from the changes in other assumptions.   

  
10.8 The pensions deficit, detailed on p.97, will need to be accepted by the Council.  
  
10.9 The Chair asked of the Interim Director of Finance, BR, whether there was any 

reason that the board should not sign the Letter of Representation. BR 
confirmed that there was no reason why the board should not sign it.  

  
10.10 A query was raised about the redundancy payments in the year for which SJ 

provided an explanation for the carry forward for one post, and another post that 
had been reassessed and redundancy offered.  

  
10.11 The committee agreed to recommend to the board that it 1) sign the Letter  of 

Representation, 2) note and accept the Management Letter from the auditors, 
and 3) approve the financial statements subject to the amendments agreed by 
the committee.  

  
11. Governance Report 
  
11.1 LW had nothing further to add to the Governance report in the committee pack.  
  
11.2 Queries included the insurance renewal due in August, where it was noted that 

the broker would be meeting with CBH officers next week. Major variations were 
not expected, though there were variations relevant for volunteers in Severe 
Weather Emergency Protocol, and those working with prison offenders.   

  
11.3 GM advised the committee that there were no GDPR compliance issues that 

they should be aware of. GM confirmed that in future the Data Protection report 
would come directly from the Data Protection Officer (DPO).  

  
12. Any other business 
  
12.1 None.  
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 There being no further business, the meeting closed at 18.04. 
 
 
 
Confidential business 
 
1. The minutes of the confidential section of the meeting on 7 March 2019 were 

approved. 
2. There was no other confidential business. 
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F&A Committee Action List 

Item Action Who By When Done 

7 March 2019 

2.2 

Request a standing item on the agenda for each Client 
Liaison Meeting where CBC can formally notify CBH of 
any upcoming reviews of policies/documents for which 
CBC input, consultation or adoption will be necessary. 

BR 1 Apr 2019 Yes 

3.10 
AW to provide copies of Asset Management audit 
scoping document & report for the Board Assurance 
Officer to circulate to Committee. 

AW & BA 
Officer 21 May 2019 Yes 

6.2 Produce a brief one-page guide for the chair of F&A to 
explain their role in whistleblowing. BR 1 Apr 2019 Yes 

7.2 
Double-check the situation regarding whether CBH can 
carry out DBS checks on staff. Report back to 
Committee if this differs from stated. 

BR 1 Apr 2019 Yes 

7.4 

Move the first paragraph on page 3 of the Prevention of 
Fraud Policy (Section 3.1, paragraph detailing the 
Whistleblowing Policy) and place this in Section 1 
instead, to make this more prominent. 

BR 1 Apr 2019 Yes 

7.6 Change wording of Prevention of Fraud Policy to state 
it will be reviewed once every three years. BR 1 Apr 2019 Yes 

11.2 
Add to action table the annual appearance by the chair 
of F&A to present the Annual Governance Statement to 
CBC’s Governance & Audit (G&A) Committee. 

BA Officer 21 Apr 2019  

4 June 2019 

2.1 
Date for CBC’s Governance & Audit Committee 
meeting needed for Finance and Audit Chair to present 
Annual Governance statement. 

BA Officer 24 June 
2019  

5.5 Consider a Gateway Reviews for the new Capita 
System timeline for testing before system goes live. GM 24 June 

2019  

5.6 BR to remove Working Smarter 2 Plan from the 
Strategic Risk Register Review – BR. BR 21 June 

2019  

6.3 
Detailed information pertaining to risk register to be 
shared with committees and board in future to aid 
understanding. 

BR Future 
meetings  

6.8 

The committee agreed that there would be a regular 
schedule of risks that would be rotated to the Finance 
and Committee meetings, and ensure that new plans 
are added to the register - BR 

BR /LW 11 July 2019  
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8.2 

Regarding the wording on p.75 of the pack, within the 
Annual Governance Statement, it was agreed that the 
wording should be changed from ‘review of 
effectiveness’ to ‘review of auditors’.  

BR 21 June 
2019  

9.5 Action: Separate analysis for projects to be shared with 
Finance & Audit Committee - Brian    
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2018-19 Board Forward Plan 
 
Items highlighted in yellow will be for information only, but Board Members are invited 
to raise any questions that they might have on these items at the meeting under 
which they are listed. 
Items highlighted in green are the reviews of specific Strategic Plan Delivery Plans. 
 
Items highlighted in blue are for the Appointments & Remuneration Committee. 
 
Date Item Committee Presenting 

  

9 Sept ‘19 Operational Scheme of Delegation FOR 
DECISION       [moved from 3/7/19]  BAO 

Health & Safety Policy – FOR DECISION n/a H&SM 

Strategic Health & Safety Policy Statement 
– FOR DECISION n/a CEO & H&SM 

Board Member Code of Conduct – FOR 
DECISION n/a BAO 

Resident insight & engagement strategy – 
FOR DECISION n/a HoH 

Risk Management Policy & Strategy – FOR 
DECISION F&A DoR 

Safeguarding Policy – FOR DECISION n/a HoH 

Approval of Company Annual Report – 
FOR DECISION n/a CEO 

Strategic Plan Assurance Report Q1 n/a CEO 

Medium Term Delivery Plan – Q1 
questions n/a DoR 

Leadership Plan Review - FOR DECISION  HoAM 

Annual HR Report n/a HoHR 

Annual Equality & Diversity Report n/a HoHR&G 

Annual Safeguarding Report n/a HoH & E&DO 

Finance Assurance Report F&A DoR 

Strategic Risk Register Review – FOR 
DECISION F&A DoR 

Chief Executive’s Report Confidential n/a CEO 

Finance Assurance Report Confidential BOP DoR 
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Date Item Committee Presenting 

 
 
24 Oct ’19 

Internal Audit Charter FOR DECISION F&A DoR 

Notice of Appointment of new Chair  n/a Chair 

Appointment of Vice Chair FOR DECISION n/a Chair 

Notice of Appointment of new Tenant 
Board Member & new Independent 
Member – FOR DECISION 

n/a 
Chair 

Appointment of Committee and Panel 
Chairs (if necessary) - FOR DECISION n/a Chair 

Customer Plan Review - FOR DECISION  HoH & HoO 

Finance Assurance Report F&A DoR 

Strategic Risk Register Review – FOR 
DECISION F&A DoR 

Chief Executive’s Report Confidential n/a CEO 

Finance Assurance Report Confidential BOP DoR 

24 Oct ’19 
AGM 

Standard Items on AGM agenda: 

• Adoption of Financial Statements 
• Appointment of External Auditors 
• Annual Resident Insight & 

Engagement report 
• Noting of Resident and Independent 

Board Member selection results 
 

 

 

 

9 Dec ‘19 
 

Capital Investment Programme 2020-2025 n/a DoPS 

Medium Term Delivery Plan Q2 questions n/a DoR 

Strategic Plan Assurance Report Q2 n/a CEO 

VFM, Tech & Investment Plan Review – 
FOR DECISION n/a DoR 

Finance Assurance Report - FOR 
DECISION F&A DoR 

Strategic Risk Register Review – FOR 
DECISION F&A DoR 

Report on Outcomes from Mental Health 
support work secondment – FOR 
INFORMATION 

n/a 
 
DoH 
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Date Item Committee Presenting 

Chief Executive’s Report Confidential n/a CEO 

Finance Assurance Report Confidential BOP DoR 

 

27 Feb ‘20 CBH Budget 2020/21 report FOR 
DECISION F&A DoR 

Housing Investment Programme 2020/21 
FOR DECISION n/a DoPS 

Medium Term Delivery Plan Review - FOR 
DECISION n/a SDM 

Medium Term Delivery Plan Q3 questions n/a DoR 

Strategic Plan Assurance Report Q3 n/a CEO 

Community Plan Review - FOR DECISION n/a DoH 

Finance Assurance Report F&A DoR 

Strategic Risk Register Review – FOR 
DECISION F&A DoR 

Chief Executive’s Report Confidential n/a CEO 

Finance Assurance Report Confidential BOP CEO 

 

 
Items to add once ready: 

• CBH 2019 Pay Award 
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